


NOTICE OF SECURITIES APPLICATION

The Florida Public Service Commission will consider at its 2025, Commission
Conference, Docket No. -El, the application of Florida Power & Light Company
(FPL) for authority to issue and sell securities pursuant to Section 366.04, Florida Statutes, and
Chapter 25-8, Florida Administrative Code. FPL seeks Commission approval to (a) authorize FPL
to issue and sell and/or exchange any combination of long-term debt and equity securities and/or
to assume liabilities or obligations as guarantor, endorser or surety in an aggregate amount not to
exceed $8.6 billion during calendar year 2026; and (b) authorize FPL to issue and sell short-term
securities in an amount or amounts such that the aggregate principal amount of short-term
securities outstanding at the time of and including any such sale shall not exceed $5.6 billion during
calendar years 2026 and 2027.

DATE AND TIME: .__,2025. The Commission Conference begins at
although the time at which this item will be heard cannot be determined at this time.

PLACE: Commission Hearing Room 148, Betty Easley Conference Center, 4075 Esplanade Way,
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850.

PURPOSE: T'o take final action in Docket No. -El

Emergency Cancellation of Meeting: If a named storm or other disaster requires cancellation of
the meeting, Commission staff will attempt to give timely direct notice to the parties. Notice of
cancellation of the meeting will also be provided on the Commission’s website
(http://www .psc.state.fl.us/) under the Hot Topics link found on the home page. Cancellation can
also be confirmed by calling the Office of the General Counsel at (850) 413-6199. In accordance
with the American with Disabilities Act, persons needing a special accommodation to participate
at this proceeding should contact the Office of Commission Clerk no later than five days prior to
the conference at 2540 Shumard Qak Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850, via 1-800-955-
8770 (Voice) or 1-800-955-8771 (TDD), Florida Relay Service. For more information, please
contact , Office of the General Counsel, (850) 413-6218.
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FLORIDA PuBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
Tallahassee, Florida

APPLICATION OF
FLorRIDA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY
FOR AUTHORITY TO ISSUE AND SELL SECURITIES

PURSUANT TO SECTION 366.04, FLORIDA STATUTES,

AND CHAPTER 25-8, FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE

The date of this Application is August 11, 2025




APPLICATION OF
FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY
FOR AUTHORITY TO ISSUE AND SELL SECURITIES
PURSUANT TO SECTION 366.04, FLORIDA STATUTES,
AND CHAPTER 25-8, FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE

Florida Power & Light Company (“FPL"), pursuant to Section 366.04, Florida Statutes, and Chapter
25-8, Florida Administrative Code, hereby files this Application requesting the Florida Public Service
Commission (“Commission”): (a) authorize FPL to issue and sell and/or exchange any combination of long-
term debt and equity securities and/or to assume liabilities or obligations as guarantor, endorser or surety in
an aggregate amount not to exceed $8.6 billion during calendar year 2026; and (b) authorize FPL to issue
and sell short-term securities in an amount or amounts such that the aggregate principal amount of short-term
securities outstanding at the time of and including any such sale shall not exceed $5.6 billion during calendar
years 2026 and 2027.

In support of this Application, FPL states:
A. Applicability.

This Application is filed in accordance with Section 366.04, Florida Statutes, and Chapter 25-8,

Florida Administrative Code.

B. Contents of Application.

1. Name and Principal Business Office Address.

Florida Power & Light Company
700 Universe Boulevard

P.O. Box 14000

Juno Beach, Florida 33408

State and Date Incorporated.

FPL - incorporated under the laws of the State of Florida on December 28, 1925, and qualified to

do business in the States of Georgia, Mississippi and Texas.




3. Persons Authorized to Receive Notices and Communications.

James May Kenneth Hoffman John T. Burnett

Treasurer Vice President, Regulatory Affairs Vice President & General

Florida Power & Light Company Florida Power & Light Company Counsel

700 Universe Boulevard 134 W. Jefferson Street Florida Power & Light Company

Juno Beach, Florida 33408 Tallahassee, Florida 32301 700 Universe Boulevard

Telephone (561) 691-2657 Telephone (850) 521-3900 Juno Beach, Florida 33408
Telephone (561) 304-5253

Joel T. Baker

Senior Attorney

Florida Power & Light Company
700 Universe Boulevard

Juno Beach, Florida 33408
Telephone (561) 691-7255

4. Capital Stock and Funded Debt.

4(a)(b)(c) Information responsive to description, amount authorized and amount outstanding: These items
are contained in Exhibit C Statement of Capital Stock and Debt as of June 30, 2025.

4(d) The amount held as reacquired securities; As of June 30, 2025, none.

4(e) The amount pledged by FPL: As of June 30, 2025, FPL was the obligor on $1.663 billion aggregate
principal amount of outstanding unsecured pollution control revenue bonds, solid waste disposal revenue
bonds, and industrial development revenue bonds issued by certain political subdivisions of the States of
Florida, Mississippi and Georgia which presently pay interest at variable rates (such bonds collectively referred
to as Revenue Bonds). FPL has the option to cause the interest on the variable rate bonds to be paid at a
fixed rate. If FPL exercises this option, except as otherwise permitted by the applicable bond documents,
FPL would be required or permitted to pledge an equal aggregate principal amount of its first mortgage bonds
(or other credit enhancement in accordance with the applicable bond documents) as security for the payment
of principal and interest on such fixed rate bonds.

4(f) The amount owned by affiliated corporations: As of June 30, 2025, all of the common stock of FPL
is owned by NextEra Energy, Inc., and FPL has no preferred or preference stock outstanding.

4(g) The amount of FPL capital stock and funded debt held in any fund: As of June 30, 2025, none.

5. Proposed Transactions.

(a) FPL seeks authority to (i) issue and sell and/or exchange any combination of the long-term

debt and equity securities described below and/or to assume liabilities or obligations as guarantor, endorser

or surety in an aggregate amount not to exceed $8.6 billion during calendar year 2026 and (ii) issue and sell




short-term securities during calendar years 2026 and 2027 in an amount or amounts such that the aggregate
principal amount of short-term securities outstanding at the time of and including any such sale shall not
exceed $5.6 billion.

The long-term debt securities may include first mortgage bonds, medium-term notes, extendible
commercial notes, debentures, convertible or exchangeable debentures, notes, convertible or exchangeable
notes or other similar rights exercisable for or convertible into debt securities, or other straight debt or hybrid
debt securities, whether subordinated or unsubordinated, secured or unsecured, including renewals and
extensions thereof, with maturities ranging from one to one hundred years. FPL may issue long-term debt
securities by extending the maturity of short-term securities. FPL may enter into warrants, options, rights,
interest rate swaps, currency swaps or other derivative instruments, or other arrangements. FPL may also
enter into debt purchase contracts, obligating holders to purchase from FPL, and obligating FPL to sell, debt
securities at a future date or dates.

In addition, FPL may enter into forward refunding or forward swap contracts during calendar year
2026. In conjunction with these forward contracts, FPL may issue and sell long-term debt through December
31, 2026, which FPL may commit to deliver under these forward contracts. Moreover, FPL may enter into
installment purchase and security agreements, loan agreements, or other arrangements with political
subdivisions of the States of Florida, Georgia, Mississippi, Texas, or other states, if any, where FPL is or
becomes qualified to do business, and/or pledge debt securities and/or issue guaranties in connection with
such political subdivisions' issuance, for the ultimate benefit of FPL, of Revenue Bonds or other “private
activity bonds” with maturities ranging from one to one hundred years, bond anticipation notes or commercial
paper. Such obligations may or may not bear interest exempt from federal, state or local tax.

Contemplated to be included as long-term or short-term debt securities, as appropriate, are
borrowings from banks and other lenders, and obligations pursuant to issuances of letters of credit, obtained
under FPL's various credit facilities and other loan agreements or other arrangements, as those may be
entered into and amended from time to time. Also contemplated to be included as long-term or short-term
debt securities, as appropriate, are borrowings from banks and other lenders, and obligations pursuant to
issuances of letters of credit, obtained under credit facilities and other loan agreements or other arrangements,

as those may be entered into and amended from time to time by one or more wholly-owned, special purpose



subsidiaries of FPL, with the proceeds of such borrowings to be used solely for the benefit of. (1) FPL's
regulated utility operations; and (2) FPL's customers. In furtherance of the foregoing:

e On February 8, 2023, FPL entered into a second amended and restated syndicated revolving

credit and letter of credit agreement (referred to as the 2023 Revolving Credit Agreement) which,

as amended, provides for approximately $2.846 billion of commitments. As of June 30, 2025,

approximately $2.746 billion will expire on February 8, 2030, and $100.00 million will expire on

February 8, 2028. Borrowings and letter of credit issuances under the 2023 Revolving Credit

Agreement are available for general corporate purposes, including, without limitation, to pay any

interest or fees owing under that agreement, provide backup for FPL's self-insurance program

covering its and its subsidiaries’ operating facilities, and fund the cost of the prompt restoration,

reconstruction and/or repair of facilities that may be damaged or destroyed due to the occurrence
of any man-made or natural disaster or event or otherwise.

On April 28, 2025, FPL entered into a $500 million syndicated revolving credit agreement
(referred to as the April 2025 Revolving Credit Agreement) with an expiration date of April 28,
2028. The proceeds of borrowings and the letters of credit issued under the April 2025 Revolving
Credit Agreement are available for FPL's general corporate purposes, including, without
limitation, to pay any interest or fees owing under that agreement, provide backup for FPL's self-
insurance program covering its and its subsidiaries’ operating facilities, and fund the cost of the
prompt restoration, reconstruction and/or repair of facilities that may be damaged or destroyed
due to the occurrence of any man-made or natural disaster or event or otherwise.

Borrowings and/or letter of credit issuances available to FPL under the 2023 Revolving Credit
Agreement and the April 2025 Revolving Credit Agreement also can be used to support the
purchase of Revenue Bonds that are tendered by individual bond holders and not remarketed
prior to maturity.

On April 28, 2023, FPL entered into a second amended and restated revolving credit agreement
with a commercial bank which, as amended, provides a $200 million commitment and has a

maturity date of April 28, 2027.




¢ On May 19, 2025, FPL entered into a second amended and restated revolving credit agreement
with @ commercial bank which, as amended, provides a $100 million commitment and has a
maturity date of May 19, 2028.

e On June 22, 2022, FPL entered into an amended and restated revolving credit agreement with a
commercial bank which, as amended, provides a $150 million commitment and has a maturity
date of June 22, 2027.

e On June 1, 2022, FPL entered into an amended and restated revolving credit agreement with a
commercial bank which provides a $75 million commitment, and has a maturity date of August 30,
2025,

e On July 19, 2022, FPL entered into an amended and restated revolving credit agreement with a
commercial bank which, as amended, provides a $55 million commitment and has a maturity
date of February 24, 2027.

e On January 5, 2024, FPL entered into two revolving credit agreements with commercial banks
each providing a $100 million commitment and each with a current maturity date of July 3, 2026
(for a total of $200 million in commitments); provided, however, the maturity date of each
automatically extends for an additional six month period six months prior to the then-existing
maturity date (unless the applicable lender provides notice that it has elected not to extend).

e OnJanuary 9, 2024, FPL entered into a revolving credit agreement with a commercial bank which
provides a $100 million commitment and has a maturity date of January 9, 2026.

¢ On October 24, 2024, FPL entered into a revolving credit agreement with a commercial bank
which provides a $100 million commitment and has a maturity date of April 23, 2026.

+« On December 11, 2024, FPL entered into a revolving credit agreement with a commercial bank
which provides a $100 million commitment and has a maturity date of June 10, 2026.

e On May 31, 2025, FPL entered into six revolving credit agreements with commercial banks. Each
revolving credit agreement provides a $250 million commitment (for a total of $1.5 billion of

commitments) and has a maturity date of December 15, 2025, with an option for FPL (subject to

' FPL expects to sign an amendment by August 31, 2025 to extend the maturity date of this credit facility
to August 30, 2028.



certain terms and conditions) to convert any outstanding principal amount thereunder at maturity

into a term loan with a maturity date of December 14, 2026.

Borrowings under each of the bilateral credit facilities described above may be used for general

corporate purposes.

Additionally, debt securities may be issued by FPL or its affiliates or subsidiaries in connection with
one or more facilities secured by accounts receivable or involving the sale of accounts receivable or interests
therein to be used solely for the benefit of FPL's regulated utility operations.

Equity securities that may be issued by FPL include preferred stock, preference stock, convertible
preferred or preference stock, or warrants, options or rights to acquire such securities, or other similar rights
exercisable for or convertible into preferred or preference stock, or purchase contracts obligating holders to
purchase such securities, or other equity securities, with such par values, terms and conditions and relative
rights and preferences as deemed appropriate by FPL and as are permitted by its Restated Atticles of
Incorporation, as the same may be amended from time to time.

FPL may also enter into financings, whereby FPL would establish and make an equity investment
in one or more special purpose limited partnerships, limited liability companies, statutory trusts or other
entities. FPL, or a wholly-owned subsidiary of FPL, would act as or appoint the general partner, managing
member, sponsor or other members of each such entity. The entity would offer preferred or debt securities
to the public and use the proceeds to acquire debt securities from FPL. FPL would issue debt securities to
the entity equal to the aggregate of FPL's equity investment and the amount of preferred or debt securities
sold to the public by the entity. FPL may also guarantee, among other things, the distributions to be paid by
the affiliated entity to the preferred or debt securities holders. Payments by FPL on the debt securities sold
to the entity would be used by that entity to make payments on the preferred or debt securities as well as on

FPL's equity investment. Consequently, in the event of such a financing, to avoid double-counting, FPL would

only count the total amount of its debt securities issued to the entity, and would not count the equity securities

issued by the entity to FPL, the preferred or debt securities issued by the entity to the public, or the related
FPL guaranties with respect to such preferred or debt securities issued by the entity to the public, against the

total amount of proposed long-term debt and equity securities.




In connection with the issuance (i} by FPL of long-term or short-term debt securities or preferred or
preference stock, or (ii) by an affiliated entity of preferred or debt securities, the terms of which preferred or

debt securities or stock permit FPL or the affiliated entity (as applicable) to defer principal, interest or other

distributions for certain payment periods, FPL may agree to sell additional equity securities and/or long-

term or short-term debt securities and to use the proceeds from the sale of those other securities to make
principal, interest or other distributions on such preferred or debt securities or stock as to which such
principal, interest or other distributions have been deferred. In addition, in connection with the issuance (i)
by FPL of long-term or short-term debt securities or preferred or preference stock or (ii) by an affiliated entity
of preferred or debt securities, FPL may covenant, pledge or make other commitments in favor of holders of
such new stock or preferred or debt securities or the holders of previously-issued stock or preferred or debt
securities, providing that such stock or preferred or debt securities will not be acquired (by redemption,
purchase, exchange or otherwise), or otherwise satisfied, discharged or defeased, in certain circumstances
unless such acquisition (by redemption, purchase, exchange or otherwise), satisfaction, discharge or
defeasance is accomplished by (1) the issuance of, or (2) proceeds from the issuance of, a security or
securities satisfying the provisions set forth in such covenant, pledge or other commitment.

The exchange of FPL's securities may be by way of an exchange of a security of FPL for another
security or securities of FPL or of one of its subsidiaries or affiliates, or the exchange of a security of FPL or
of one of its subsidiaries or affiliates for the security or securities of another entity.

The manner of issuance and sale and/or exchange of securities will be dependent upon the type
of security being offered, the type of transaction in which the securities are being issued and sold and/or
exchanged and market conditions at the time of the issuance and sale and/or exchange.

The short-term securities will have maturities of not more than twelve months and may be secured
or unsecured, subordinated or unsubordinated. FPL may enter into warrants, options, rights, interest rate
swaps, currency swaps or other derivative instruments, refunding transactions or other arrangements relating
to, as well as contracts for the purchase or sale of, short-term securities. Consistent with Securities and
Exchange Commission “no-action” letters, FPL may issue and sell commercial paper without compliance with

the registration requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, subject to certain conditions.




The short-term securities are issued to provide funds to temporarily finance portions of FPL's
construction program and capital commitments and for other corporate purposes. Also, during 2026 and
2027, FPL may need short-term financing for, among other purposes, seasonal fuel requirements, for
contingency financing such as fuel adjustment under-recoveries or storm restoration costs, and for the
temporary funding of maturing or called long-term debt or equity securities.

The interest rate that FPL could pay on debt securities will vary depending on the type of debt
instruments and the terms thereof, including specifically the tenor (i.e., the term) of the debt and whether the
debt is secured or unsecured and subordinated or unsubordinated, as well as market conditions. A series of
10-year first mortgage bonds originally issued by FPL on June 3, 2024 was reopened and an additional
amount of first mortgage bonds was issued by FPL on February 21, 2025, and upon issuance those
additional first mortgage bonds carried a yield to maturity of 5.284%. The additional first mortgage bonds
issued on February 21, 2025 are fungible with and are consolidated and form a single series with, the first
mortgage bonds issued on June 3, 2024. A new series of 30-year first mortgage bonds was issued by FPL
on February 21, 2025, and upon issuance carried a yield to maturity of 5.717%. A new series of 40-year
first mortgage bonds was issued by FPL on February 21, 2025, and upon issuance carried a yield to maturity
of 5.817%. The dividend rate for preferred or preference stock is similarly affected by the terms of the offering.
It is estimated that a new issue of FPL preferred stock as of June 30, 2025, would have carried a dividend
yield of approximately 5.25% to 5.75%.

In addition, FPL may from time-to-time issue instruments of guaranty, collateralize debt and other

obligations, issue other securities, and arrange for the issuance of letters of credit and guaranties, in any such

case to be issued or arranged by FPL or by one or more of its subsidiaries for the benefit of FPL's regulated
utility operations. FPL confirms that any such issuances described above will be used in connection with the
regulated activities of FPL, and not the nonregulated activities of its affiliates.

FPL will file a consummation report with the Commission in compliance with Rule 25-8.009, Florida
Administrative Code, within 90 days after the end of any fiscal year in which FPL issues securities.

6. Purposes of Issues.

It is expected that the net proceeds to be received from the issuance and sale and/or exchange (if

there are any net proceeds from an exchange) of the additional long-term debt and equity securities (with the







project is currently under construction and is scheduled to be completed by June 2026. As of July 31, 2025,

the actual capital expended in the development of the project is approximately $170 million. A more detailed

description of this project is provided in the FPL 2025-2034 Ten-Year Site Plan on file with the Commission.®

FPL continually assesses the interest rate on new issue long-term debt or the dividend rate on new
issue preferred or preference stock of FPL and its subsidiaries which may be such that it becomes
economically attractive to acquire (by redemption, purchase, exchange or otherwise), or otherwise satisfy,
discharge or defease, a portion or all of certain of its or its subsidiaries long-term debt securities or equity
securities, providing an opportunity for FPL to reduce interest or dividend expense even after accounting for
such other considerations as the (i) redemption or other reacquisition premium, (ii) other associated
reacquisition or discharge expenses and (iii) related income tax effects. This reduction would be beneficial to
FPL's customers and, with proper regulatory treatment, would not be detrimental to FPL's common
shareholder. Other important considerations in making such a decision would include an assessment of
anticipated future interest and dividend rates and FPL's ability to raise enough new capital to finance its
construction program while concurrently pursuing any refinancing opportunities. FPL might also consider
acquiring or otherwise satisfying, discharging or defeasing a portion or all of certain of its or its subsidiaries
long-term debt securities or equity securities for reasons other than interest or dividend expense reduction.

Under future market conditions, it may be economical to enter into forward refunding or forward
swap contracts. The forward refunding contracts would be for the purpose of refunding long-term debt
(including but not limited to refunding Revenue Bonds) which may be issued on FPL’s behalf and which can
be callable. Under federal tax law, the refunding of Revenue Bonds with tax-exempt bonds issued more than
90 days prior to the redemption or retirement of the outstanding issue is restricted. However, through a
forward refunding contract, FPL could lock-in- prevailing tax-exempt fixed rates for refunding Revenue Bonds
which would be issued 90 days prior to a call date of the outstanding issue. Alternatively, FPL could enter
into a forward swap contract, to become effective on a call date of the outstanding issue, to lock-in prevailing
tax-exempt fixed rates. Any anticipated savings generated by such forward transactions would be spread
over the combined life of the outstanding bonds and the refunding bonds starting with the execution of the

forward contract.

3 See footnote 2.




In connection with this application, FPL confirms that the capital raised pursuant to this application
will be used in connection with the reguiated activities of FPL and FPL’s subsidiaries, and not the
nonregulated activities of its affiliates.

7. Facts Supporting Leqality, Necessity or Appropriateness. In addition to the reasons shown under

“Purposes of Issues”, the proposed issues are consistent with the proper performance by FPL of service as a
public utility, will enable and permit FPL to perform that service, and are necessary and appropriate for such
purpose and other corporate purposes.

8. Name and Address of Counsel Passing upon the Legality of the Proposed Issues. It is expected

that one or more of the following counsel will pass upon the legality of the proposed issues:

Hogan Lovells U.S. LLP

555 Thirteenth Street, NW
Washington, District of Columbia 20004
Attention: Richard J. Parrino, Esq.

Morgan, Lewis & Bockius LLP

101 Park Avenue

New York, New York 10178
Attention: Thomas P. Giblin, Jr., Esq.

Squire Patton Boggs (US) LLP
200 South Biscayne Boulevard
Suite 3400

Miami, Florida 33131

Attention: James Schneider, Esq.

9.  Other State or Federal Requlatory Body. If required, a Registration Statement and/or prospectus

supplement with respect to each public sale or exchange of securities hereunder subject to the Securities Act

of 1933, as amended, will be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, 100 F Street, N.E.,

Washington, D.C. 20549. In addition, certain state securities or "blue sky” laws may require the filing of

consents to service of process or other documents with applicable state securities commissions in connection
with a public or private sale of securities.

10. Control or Ownership.

There is no measure of control or ownership exercised by or over FPL by any other public

utility. FPL is a subsidiary of NextEra Energy, Inc., which is a holding company as defined in the Public Utility




Holding Company Act of 2005.

11.  Exhibits.

Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024, and Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2025.

2026 and 2027 Sources and Uses of Funds Forecast and Construction Budget for Gross
Property Additions.

Statement of Capital Stock and Debt of Florida Power & Light Company as of June 30,
2025.

*As permitted by Rule 25-8.003(1)(a)(6), Florida Administrative Code, FPL is satisfying the requirements for
Schedules A(1) through A(5) by submitting NextEra Energy, Inc.'s and FPL’s Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024, and Quarterly Repart on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period
ended June 30, 2025, in conjunction with this Application.

WHEREFORE, FPL respectfully requests that the Commission:

(a)

Publish notice of intent to consider this Application pursuant to Section 366.04(1), Florida
Statutes, as soon as possible;

Schedule this matter for agenda as early as possible;

Authorize FPL to issue and sell and/or exchange any combination of long-term debt and
equity securities and/or to assume liabilities or obligations as guarantor, endorser or surety
in an aggregate amount not to exceed $8.6 billion during calendar year 2026, for the
purposes and in the manner described herein;

Authorize FPL to issue and sell short-term securities in an amount or amounts such that

the aggregate principal amount of short-term securities outstanding at the time of and

including any such sale shall not exceed $5.6 billion during calendar years 2026 and 2027,
for the purposes and in the manner described herein; and

Grant such other relief as the Commission deems appropriate.







Exhibit A

Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December
31, 2024, and Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly
period ended June 30, 2025



























FPL Electric Rate Regulation

The FPSC sets rates at a level that is intended to allow the utility the opportunity to collect from retail customers total revenues
(revenue requirements) equal to its cost of providing service, including a reasonable rate of return on invested capital. To
accomplish this, the FPSC uses various ratemaking mechanisms, including, among other things, base rates and cost recovery
clauses.

In general, the basic costs of providing electric service, other than fuel and certain other costs, are recovered
through base rates, which are designed to recover the costs of constructing, operating and maintaining the utility system. These
basic costs include O&M expenses, depreciation and taxes, as well as a return on investment in assets used and useful in
providing electric service (rate base). At the time base rates are established, the allowed rate of return on rate base
approximates the FPSC's determination of the utility's estimated weighted-average cost of capital, which includes its costs for
outstanding debt and an allowed return on common equity. The FPSC monitors the utility's actual regulatory ROE through a
surveillance report that is filed monthly with the FPSC. The FPSC does not provide assurance that any regulatory ROE will be
achieved. Base rates are determined in rate proceedings or through negotiated settiements of those proceedings. Proceedings
can occur at the initiative of the utility or upon action by the FPSC. Existing base rates remain in effect until new base rates are
approved by the FPSC.

Base Rates Effective January 2022 through December 2025 — In December 2021, the FPSC issued a final order approving a
stipulation and settlement between FPL and several intervenors in FPL's base rate proceeding (2021 rate agreement).

Key elements of the 2021 rate agreement, which is effective from January 2022 through December 2025, include, among other
things, the following:
+  New retail base rates and charges were established resulting in the following increases in annualized retail base revenues:
o $692 million beginning January 1, 2022, and
o $560 million beginning January 1, 2023.
In addition, FPL received base rate increases associated with the addition of up to 894 MW annually of new solar generation
through the So0BRA mechanism in each of 2024 and 2025. FPL's recovery through the SoBRA mechanism was limited to an
installed cost cap of $1,250 per kW.
FPL's authorized regulatory ROE was 10.60%, with a range of 9.70% to 11.70%. However, in the event the average 30-year
U.S. Treasury rate was 2.49% or greater over a consecutive six-month period, FPL was authorized to increase the
regulatory ROE to 10.80% with a range of 9.80% to 11.80%. During August 2022, this provision was triggered and effective
September 1, 2022, FPL's authorized regulatory ROE and ROE range were increased. If FPL's earned regulatory ROE falls
below 9.80%, FPL may seek retail base rate refief. If the earned regulatory ROE rises above 11.80%, any party with
standing may seek a review of FPL's retail base rates.
Subject to certain conditions, FPL may amortize, over the term of the 2021 rate agreement, up to $1.45 billion of
depreciation reserve surplus, provided that in any year of the 2021 rate agreement FPL must amortize at least enough
reserve amount to maintain its minimum authorized regulatory ROE and also may not amortize any reserve amount that
would result in an earned regulatory ROE in excess of its maximum authorized regulatory ROE.
FPL is authorized to expand SolarTogether® by constructing an additional 1,788 MW of solar generation from 2022
through 2025, such that the total capacity of SotarTogether® would be 3,278 MW,
Future storm restoration costs would be recoverable on an interim basis beginning 60 days from the filing of a cost recovery
petition, but capped at an amount that produces a surcharge of no more than $4 for every 1,000 kWh of usage on residential
bills during the first 12 months of cost recovery. Any additional costs would be eligible for recovery in subsequent years. If
storm restoration costs exceed $800 million in any given calendar year, FPL may request an increase to the $4 surcharge.
See Note 1 — Storm Funds, Storm Reserves and Storm Cost Recovery.
If federal or state permanent corporate income tax changes become effective during the term of the 2021 rate agreement,
FPL will prospectively adjust base rates after a review by the FPSC.

In March 2024, the FPSC issued a supplemental final order regarding FPL's 2021 rate agreement. The order affirmed the
FPSC's prior approval of the 2021 rate agreement and is intended to further document, as requested by the Florida Supreme
Court, how the evidence presented led to and supports the FPSC's decision to approve FPL's 2021 rate agreement. An April
2024 appeal of the order filed with the Florida Supreme Court by certain intervenors remains pending.

FPL 2025 Base Rate Proceeding — On December 30, 2024, FPL filed a formal notification with the FPSC indicating its intent to
initiate a base rate proceeding by submitting a four-year rate plan that would begin in January 2026 replacing the 2021 rate
agreement. The notification states that, based on preliminary estimates, FPL expects to request a general base revenue
requirement increase of approximately $1.55 billion effective January 2026 and a subsequent increase of approximately $330
million effective January 2027. The plan is also expected to request authority for a Solar and Battery Base Rate Adjustment
mechanism to recover, subject to FPSC review, the revenue requirements associated with building and operating additional solar
and battery storage projects in 2028 and 2029. In addition, FPL expects to propose an allowed regulatory ROE midpoint of
11.90% and to incorporate the continued application of FPL's longstanding equity ratio approved in prior base rate cases. FPL
expects to file its formal request to initiate a base rate proceeding on or around February 28, 2025.




Cost recovery clauses are designed to permit full recovery of certain costs and provide a return on
certain assets allowed to be recovered through these clauses. Cost recovery clause costs are recovered through levelized
monthly charges per kWh or kW, depending on the customer's rate class. These cost recovery clause charges are calculated
annually based on estimated costs and estimated customer usage for the following year, plus or minus true-up adjustments to
reflect the estimated over or under recovery of costs for the current and prior periods. An adjustment to the levelized charges
may be approved during the course of a year to reflect revised estimates. FPL recovers costs from customers through the
following clauses:

Fuel — primarily fuel costs, the most significant of the cost recovery clauses in terms of operating revenues (see Note 1 —
Rate Regulation);

Storm Protection Plan — costs associated with an FPSC-approved transmission and distribution storm protection plan,
substantially all of which includes costs for hardening of overhead transmission and distribution lines, undergrounding of
certain distribution lines and vegetation management;

Capacity — primarily certain costs associated with the acquisition and retirement of several electric generation facilities (see
Note 1 — Rate Regulation) and capacity payments related to PPAs;

Energy Conservation — costs associated with implementing energy conservation programs; and

Environmental — certain costs of complying with federal, state and local environmental regulations enacted after April 1993
and costs associated with certain of FPL's solar facilities placed in service prior to 2016.

The FPSC has the authority to disallow recovery of costs that it considers excessive or imprudently incurred. These costs may
include, among others, fuel and O&M expenses, the cost of replacing power lost when generation units are unavailable, storm
restoration costs and costs associated with the construction or acquisition of new facilities.

FERC

The Federal Power Act grants the FERC exclusive ratemaking jurisdiction over wholesale sales of electricity and the
transmission of electricity and natural gas in interstate commerce. Pursuant to the Federal Power Act, electric utilities must file for
FERC acceptance and maintain tariffs and rate schedules which govern the rates, terms and conditions for the provision of
FERC-jurisdictional wholesale power and transmission services. Wholesale power sales tariffs on file at FERC may authorize
sales at cost-based rates or, where the seller lacks market power, at market-based rates. The Federal Power Act also gives the
FERC authority to certify and oversee an electric reliability organization with authority to establish and independently enforce
mandatory reliability standards applicable to all users, owners and operators of the bulk-power system. See NERC below.
Electric utilities are subject to accounting, record-keeping and reporting requirements administered by the FERC. The FERC also
places certain limitations on transactions between electric utilities and their affiliates.

NERC

The NERC has been certified by the FERC as an electric reliability organization. The NERC's mandate is to ensure the reliability
and security of the North American bulk-power system through the establishment and enforcement of reliability standards
approved by FERC. The NERC's regional entities also enforce reliability standards approved by the FERC. FPL is subject to
these reliability standards and incurs costs to ensure compliance with continually heightened requirements, and can incur
significant penalties for failing to comply with them.

FPL Environmental Requlation

FPL is subject to environmental laws and regulations as described in the NEE Environmental Matters section below. FPL expects
to seek recovery through the environmental clause for compliance costs associated with any new environmental laws and
regulations.

FPL HUMAN CAPITAL

FPL had approximately 9,300 employees at December 31, 2024, with approximately 31% of these employees represented by the
International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers (IBEW). The collective bargaining agreements have approximately three-year
terms and expire between March 2025 and April 2027.




NEER

NEER, comprised of NEE's competitive energy and rate-requlated transmission businesses, is a diversified energy business with
a strategy that emphasizes the development, construction and operation of long-term contracted assets with a focus on low-cost
energy solutions. NEER is the world's largest generator of renewable energy from the wind and sun based on 2024 MWh
produced on a net generation basis, as well as a world leader in battery storage based on 2024 MW of net generating capacity.

NEE reports NextEra Energy Resources and NEET, a rate-regulated transmission business, on a combined basis for segment
reporting purposes, and the combined segment is referred to as NEER. The NEER segment owns, develops, constructs,
manages and operates electric generation facilities in wholesale energy markets in the U.S. and Canada and also includes
assets and investments in other clean energy businesses, such as battery storage and natural gas pipelines. NEER, with
approximately 33,410 MW of total net generating capacity at December 31, 2024, is one of the largest wholesale generators of
electric power in the U.S., including approximately 32,890 MW of net generating capacity across 41 states and 520 MW of net
generating capacity in 4 Canadian provinces. At December 31, 2024, NEER operates facilities, in which it has partial or full
ownership interests, with a total generating capacity of approximately 41,500 MW. NEER primarily sells its capacity and/or
energy output through long-term power sales agreements with utilities, retail electricity providers, power cooperatives, municipal
electric providers and commercial and industrial customers. NEER produces the majority of its energy from clean and renewable
sources as described more fully below. In addition, NEER develops and constructs battery storage projects, which when
combined with its renewable projects, serve to enhance its ability to meet customers' firm capacity needs, or as standalone
facilities. The NEER segment also owns, develops, constructs and operates rate-regulated transmission facilities in North
America with a total rate base of $2.7 billion at December 31, 2024. NEER's rate-regulated transmission facilities and the
transmission lines that connect its electric generation facilities, including noncontroliing or joint venture interests, to the electric
grid are comprised of approximately 370 substations and 3,885 circuit miles of transmission lines at December 31, 2024.

NEER engages in energy-related commodity marketing and trading activities, including entering into financial and physical
contracts. These contracts primarily involve power and fuel commodities and their related products for the purpose of providing
full energy and capacity requirements services, primarily to distribution utilities in certain markets, and offering customized power
and fuel and related risk management services to wholesale customers, as well as to hedge the production from NEER's
generation assets that is not sold under long-term power supply agreements. In addition, NEER participates in natural gas,
natural gas liquids and oil production through operating and non-operating ownership interests, and in pipeline infrastructure
construction, management and operations, through noncontrolling or joint venture interests. NEER hedges the expected output
from its natural gas and oil production assets to protect against price movements. During the fourth quarter of 2024, as a result of
selling ownership interests in certain natural gas and oil shale formations and in certain natural gas pipeline facilities (see Note 1
— Disposal of Businesses/Assets), NEER reassessed and changed its reporting unit structure to no longer report gas
infrastructure as a separate reporting unit.

CLEAN ENERGY AND OTHER OPERATIONS
NEER sells products associated with its generation facilities (energy, capacity, RECs and ancillary services) in competitive

markets in regions where those facilities are located. Customer transactions may be supplied from NEER generation facilities or
from purchases in the wholesale markets, or from a combination thereof. See Markets and Competition below.
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NEER Generation Assets' Fuel/Technology Mix

During 2024, NEER generated approximately 111 million MWh utilizing the following mix of fuel sources for generation facilities in
which it has an ownership interest:

2024 Net Generation by Fuel Type
MWh

Other* 4% -

1

Solar 15%

Nuclear 17% —

Wind 64%

*Primarily natural gas

located in 23 states in the U.S. and 4 provinces in Canada;
operated a total generating capacity of approximately 26,335 MW, including capacity associated with noncontrolfling and
joint venture interests, at December 31, 2024,
ownership interests in a total net generating capacity of approximately 20,977 MW at December 31, 2024,
- essentially all MW are contracted wind assets located primarily throughout Texas and the West and Midwest
regions of the U.S. and Canada;
includes the impacts of approximately 1,365 MW of new generating capacity added in the U.S. in 2024 and an
ownership interest in assets sold to a third party totaling approximately 536 MW (see Note 1 — Disposal of
Businesses/Assets).

located in 31 states in the U.S.;

operated photovoltaic and solar thermal facilities with a total generating capacity of approximately 10,157 MW, including

capacity associated with noncontrolling and joint venture interests, at December 31, 2024,

ownership interests in solar facilities with a total net generating capacity of approximately 7,837 MW at December 31,

2024,

o essentially all MW are contracted solar facilities located primarily throughout the West and South regions of the

u.s.;
includes the impacts of approximately 2,507 MW of generating capacity added in the U.S. in 2024 and an
ownership interest in assets sold to a third party totaling approximately 527 MW (see Note 1 — Disposal of
Businesses/Assets).

At December 31, 2024, NextEra Energy Resources was the sole owner of the two Point Beach nuclear units shown in the table
below and was the largest joint owner of the Seabrook nuclear facility shown in the table below. NEER's nuclear units are
periodically removed from service to accommodate planned refueling and maintenance outages, including inspections, repairs
and certain other modifications. Scheduled nuclear refueling outages require the unit to be removed from service for variable
lengths of time.










MARKETS AND COMPETITION

Electricity markets in the U.S. and Canada are regional and diverse in character. All are extensively regulated, and competition in
these markets is shaped and constrained by regulation. The nature of the products offered varies based on the specifics of
regulation in each region. Generally, in addition to the natural constraints on pricing freedom presented by competition, NEER
may also face specific constraints in the form of price caps, or maximum allowed prices, for certain products. NEER's ability to
sell the output of its generation facilities may also be constrained by available transmission capacity, which can vary from time to
time and can have a significant impact on pricing.

The degree and nature of competition is different in wholesale markets than in retail markets. A majority of NEER's revenues are
derived from sales of energy, capacity, credits and ancillary products under long-term PPAs to customers located in wholesale
electricity markets. Wholesale power generation is a capital-intensive, commodity-driven business with numerous industry
participants. NEER primarily competes on the basis of price, but believes the green attributes of NEER's generation assets, its
track record of completing projects on schedule, its creditworthiness and its ability to offer and manage reliable customized risk
solutions to wholesale customers are competitive advantages. Wholesale power generation is a regional business that is highly
fragmented relative to many other commadity industries and diverse in terms of industry structure. As such, there is a wide
variation in terms of the capabilities, resources, nature and identity of the companies NEER competes with depending on the
market. In wholesale markets, customers' needs are met through a variety of means, including long-term bilateral contracts,
standardized bilateral products such as full requirements service and customized supply and risk management services.

In general, U.S. and Canadian electricity markets encompass three classes of services: energy and related energy credits,
capacity and ancillary services. Energy services relate to the physical delivery of power; capacity services relate to the
availability of MW capacity of a power generation asset; and ancillary services are other services that relate to power generation
assets, such as load regulation and spinning and non-spinning reserves. The exact nature of these classes of services is defined
in part by regional tariffs. Not all regions have a capacity services class, and the specific definitions of ancillary services vary
from region to region.

RTOs and ISOs exist throughout much of North America to coordinate generation and transmission across wide geographic
areas and to run markets. NEER operates in all RTO and ISO jurisdictions. At December 31, 2024, NEER also had generation
facilities with a total net generating capacity of approximately 9,196 MW that fall within reliability regions that are not under the
jurisdiction of an established RTO or IS0, including 5,806 MW within the Western Electricity Coordinating Council and 2,909 MW
within the SERC Reliability Corporation. Although each RTO and ISO may have differing objectives and structures, some
benefits of these entities include regional planning, managing transmission congestion, developing larger wholesale markets for
energy and capacity, maintaining reliability and facilitating competition among wholesale electricity providers.







that can sell power in competitive markets. NEER seeks to reduce its market risk by having a diversified portfolio by fuel type and
location, as well as by contracting for the future sale of a significant amount of the electricity output of its facilities.

NEER REGULATION

The energy markets in which NEER operates are subject to domestic and foreign regulation, as the case may be, including local,
state and federal regulation, and other specific rules.

At December 31, 2024, essentially all of NEER's generation facilities located in the U.S. have received exempt wholesale
generator status as defined under the Public Utility Holding Company Act of 2005. Exempt wholesale generators own or operate
a facility exclusively to sell electricity to wholesale customers. They are barred from selling electricity directly to retail customers.
While projects with exempt wholesale generator status are exempt from various restrictions, each project must still comply with
other federal, state and local laws, including, but not limited to, those regarding siting, construction, operation, licensing, pollution
abatement and other environmental laws.

Additionally, most of the NEER facilities located in the U.S. are subject to FERC regulations and market rules and the NERC's
mandatory reliability standards. All of NEER's facilities are subject to environmental laws and the EPA's environmental
regulations, and its nuclear facilities are also subject to the jurisdiction of the NRC. See FPL — FPL Regulation for additional
discussion of FERC, NERC, NRC and EPA regulations. Rates of NEER's rate-regulated transmission businesses are set by
regulatory bodies as noted in Clean Energy and Other Operations — Other Operations — Rate-Regulated Transmission. With the
exception of facilities located in ERCOT, the FERC has jurisdiction over various aspects of NEER's business in the continental
U.S., including the oversight and investigation of competitive wholesale energy markets, regulation of the transmission and sale
of natural gas, and oversight of environmental matters related to natural gas projects and major electricity policy initiatives. The
PUCT has jurisdiction, including the regulation of rates and services, oversight of competitive markets, and enforcement of
statutes and rules, over NEER facilities located in ERCOT. In addition, certain of NEER's sales to retail customers are subject to
consumer protection faws and other regulations related to consumer activities.

Certain entities within the NEER segment and their affiliates are also subject to federal and provincial or regional regulations in
Canada related to energy operations, energy markets and environmental standards. In Canada, activities related to owning and
operating wind and solar projects and participating in wholesale and retail energy markets are regulated at the provincial level. In
Ontario, for example, electric generation facilities must be licensed by the OEB and may also be required to complete
registrations and maintain market participant status with the IESO, in which case they must agree to be bound by and comply
with the provisions of the market rules for the Ontario electricity market as well as the mandatory reliability standards of the
NERC.

In addition, NEER is subject to environmental laws and regulations as described in the NEE Environmental Matters section
below. In order to better anticipate potential regulatory changes, NEER continues to actively monitor and participate in regional
market stakeholder processes and other forums where changes to existing rules for the interconnection of renewable energy
resources and the purchase and sale of energy commodities are under consideration.

In addition to regulation associated with operating assets, the development of energy infrastructure also involves additional and
often extensive approvals and permitting requirements at the local, state and federal levels for items such as disturbing wetlands,
obtaining no hazard determinations from the Federa! Aviation Administration, interacting with wildlife, making wholesale sales of
electricity, and other clearances. These requirements may change from time to time. For example, a federal executive order was
issued in January 2025 that calls for a pause in federal land leasing, permitting and approvals for wind development facilities
pending completion of a review of the federal rules providing for leasing, permitting and approvals for wind projects. This or
similar initiatives could limit NEER’s and FPL's ability to obtain or renew necessary approvals, rights-of-way, permits, leases or
loans for wind or other energy projects.

NEER HUMAN CAPITAL

NEER had approximately 7,400 employees at December 31, 2024. NEER has collective bargaining agreements with the IBEW,
the Utility Workers Union of America and the Security Police and Fire Professionals of America, which collectively represent
approximately 6% of NEER's employees. The collective bargaining agreements have approximately three-to-four-year terms and
expire between September 2025 and October 2028.










in clean energy projects and reduced project returns, any of which could have a material adverse effect on NEE's and
FPL's business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects.

NEE depends heavily on government policies that support clean energy and enhance the economic feasibility of developing and
operating clean energy projects in regions in which NEER and FPL operate or plan to develop and operate such facilities. The
federal government, a majority of state governments in the U.S. and portions of Canada provide incentives, such as tax
incentives, RPS or feed-in-tariffs, that support or are designed to support the sale of energy from clean energy facilities, such as
wind and solar energy facilities and energy storage facilities. The development of clean energy projects at acceptable prices has
not historically been burdened by actions taken by the U.S. government. However, as a result of budgetary constraints,
geopolitical factors, political factors or otherwise, governments from time to time may review their laws and policies that support,
or do not overly burden, the development and operation of clean energy facilities and, instead, consider actions that would make
the laws and policies less conducive to the development and operation of such projects. Any reductions or modifications to, or
the elimination of, governmental incentives or policies that support clean energy, such as PTCs or ITCs, or the imposition of
additional taxes, tariffs, duties or other costs or assessments on clean energy or the equipment necessary to generate, store or
deliver it, such as policies in place that limit certain imports from China and other Southeast Asian countries, could result in,
among other items, the lack of a satisfactory market for the development and/or financing of new clean energy projects, NEE and
FPL abandoning the development of clean energy projects, a loss of investments in the projects and reduced project returns, any
of which could have a material adverse effect on NEE's and FPL's business, financial condition, results of operations and
prospects.

NEE's and FPL's business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects could be materially adversely
affected by new or revised laws, regulations or executive orders, as well as by regulatory action or inaction.

NEE's and FPL's business could be materially adversely affected by a variety of legal activity, such as: 1) the adoption of new or
revised laws, such as international trade laws, regulations and interpretations; 2) constitutional ballot or regulatory initiatives,
such as those seeking deregulation or restructuring of the energy industry; 3) new or revised regulations, such as those affecting
the commodities trading and derivatives markets, emissions, water consumption, water discharges, wetlands, gas and oil
infrastructure operations, and environmental and other permitting requirements for energy infrastructure projects; 4) actions
taken, or not taken, by government agencies as a result of executive orders, such as failing to issue, delaying the issuance of, or
increasing the requirements necessary to obtain approvals, rights-of-way, permits, determinations, leases or loans related to
wind or other clean energy projects; and 5) changes in the way government interprets or applies laws, regulations and orders.
Changes in the nature of the regulation of NEE's and FPL's business through this type or other types of legal activity could have
a material adverse effect on NEE's and FPL's business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects. NEE and FPL

are unable to predict future legislative, regulatory or executive action or inaction, including through constitutional ballot initiatives
or changed government interpretations or applications, although any such changes may increase costs, the challenges
associated with developing and aperating clean and other energy infrastructure projects, and competitive pressures on NEE and
FPL, which could have a material adverse effect on NEE's and FPL's business, financial condition, results of operations and
prospects.

FPL has limited, but growing, competition in the Florida market for retail electricity customers and is not subject to a RPS. Any
changes in Florida law or regulation, whether through new or modified legislation, regulation or executive action or through
citizen-approved state constitutional ballot initiatives, which increase competition in the Florida retail electricity market, such as
government incentives that would further facilitate the installation of solar generation facilities on residential or other rooftops,
would permit third-party sales of electricity or would mandate the transition to renewable energy at FPL, could have a material
adverse effect on FPL's business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects. FPL and NEER are also regulated by
FERC as transmission providers and sellers of wholesale power. FERC regulation of transmission and wholesale power
transactions, including the ability of new energy infrastructure projects to sell the power they produce under power purchase
agreements, evolves over time as a resuit of rulemaking proceedings and new legislative directives from Congress. There can be
no assurance that FPL or NEER would be able to respond adequately to the aforementioned state and federal regulatory
changes, which could have a material adverse effect on NEE's and FPL's business, financial condition, results of operations and
prospects.

FPL and NEER are also subject to FERC rules related to transmission that are designed to facilitate competition in the wholesale
market on practically a nationwide basis and that evolve over time. NEE cannot predict the impact of changing FERC rules or
policies of the RTOs and ISOs, such as rules governing generator interconnection procedures and transmission planning
requirements and cost aliocation methodologies, or the effect of changes in levels of wholesale supply and demand, which are
typically driven by factors beyond NEE's control. There can be no assurance that FPL or NEER will be able to respond
adequately or sufficiently quickly to such rules and developments, which may impact the ability, timeline and cost of
interconnecting new or repowered energy projects to the transmission system and the availability of transmission system
capacity to deliver energy products to market, or to any changes that reverse or restrict the competitive restructuring of the
energy industry in those jurisdictions in which such restructuring has occurred. Any of these events could have a material
adverse effect on NEE's business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects.

The structure of the energy industry and regulation in the U.S. is currently, and may continue to be, subject to challenges and
restructuring proposals. Additional regulatory approvals may be required due to changes in law or for other reasons. NEE
expects the laws and regulation applicable to its business and the energy industry, including laws and regulations generally







alleged compliance failures could result in significant costs and other potentially adverse effects of regulatory investigations,
proceedings, settlements, decisions and claims, including, among other items, potentially significant monetary penalties. As an
example, under the Energy Policy Act of 2005, NEE and FPL, as owners and operators of bulk-power transmission systems and/
or electric generation facilities, are subject to mandatory reliability standards. Compliance with these mandatory reliability
standards may subject NEE and FPL to higher operating costs and may result in increased capital expenditures. If FPL or NEE is
found not to be in compliance with these standards, they may incur substantial monetary penalties and other sanctions. In
addition, certain of NEE's and FPL's sales to retail customers are subject to consumer protection laws and other regulations
related to consumer activities that are implemented and enforced by a number of federal, state and local government entities.
Both the costs of regulatory compliance and the costs that may be imposed as a result of any actual or alleged compliance
failures could have a material adverse effect on NEE's and FPL's business, financial condition, results of operations and
prospects.

Changes in tax laws, guidance or policies, including but not limited to changes in corporate income tax rates, as well as
judgments and estimates used in the determination of tax-related asset and liability amounts, could materially
adversely affect NEE's and FPL's business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects.

NEE's and FPL's provision for income taxes and reporting of tax-related assets and liabilities require significant judgments and
the use of estimates. Amounts of tax-related assets and liabilities involve judgments and estimates of the timing and probability
of recognition of income, deductions and tax credits, including, but not limited to, estimates for potential adverse outcomes
regarding tax positions that have been taken and the ability to utilize tax benefit carryforwards, such as net operating loss and tax
credit carryforwards. Actual income taxes could vary significantly from estimated amounts due to the future impacts of, among
other things, changes in tax laws, guidance or policies, including, but not limited to, changes in corporate income tax rates,
renewable energy tax credits and transferability of renewable energy tax credits, the issuance of guidance related to the
qualification for renewable energy tax credits and bonus credits, the financial condition and results of operations of NEE and FPL
and the resolution of audit issues raised by taxing authorities. These factors, including the ultimate resolution of income tax
matters, may result in material adjustments to tax-related assets and liabilities, which could materially adversely affect NEE's and
FPL's business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects.

NEE's and FPL's business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects may be materially adversely
affected due to adverse results of litigation.

NEE's and FPL's business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects may be materially affected by adverse results
of litigation. Unfavorable resolution of legal or administrative proceedings in which NEE or FPL is involved or other future legal or
administrative proceedings may have a material adverse effect on the business, financial condition, results of operations and
prospects of NEE and FPL.

Allegations of violations of law by FPL or NEE have the potential to result in fines, penalties, or other sanctions or
effects, as well as cause reputational damage for FPL and NEE, and could hamper FPL’'s and NEE's effectiveness in
interacting with governmental authorities.

FPL's and NEE's business and reputation could be adversely affected by allegations that FPL or NEE has violated laws, by any
investigations or proceedings that arise from such allegations, or by ultimate determinations of legal violations. For example,
media articles were first published in 2021 that alleged, among other things, Florida state and federal campaign finance law
violations by FPL. FPL and NEE cannot provide assurance that the outcome of any allegations of violations of law will not result
in the imposition of material fines, penalties, or otherwise result in other sanctions or effects on FPL or NEE, or will not have a
material adverse impact on the reputation of NEE or FPL or on the effectiveness of their interactions with governmental
regulators or other authorities.

Development and Operational Risks

NEE's and FPL's business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects could suffer if NEE and FPL do not
proceed with projects under development or are unable to complete the construction of, or capital improvements to,
electric generation, storage, transmission and distribution facilities, natural gas and oil production and transportation
facilities or other facilities on schedule or within budget.

NEE's and FPL's ability to proceed with projects under development and to complete construction of, and capital improvement
projects for, their electric generation, storage, transmission and distribution facilities, natural gas and oil production and
transportation facilities and other facilities on schedule and within budget have been, from time to time, and in the future may be,
adversely affected by escalating costs for materials and labor and regulatory compliance, inability to obtain or renew necessary
licenses, rights-of-way, permits or other approvals on acceptable terms or on schedule, disputes involving contractors, labor
organizations, land owners, governmental entities, environmental groups, Native American and aboriginal groups, lessors, joint
venture partners, suppliers and other third parties, negative publicity, transmission interconnection issues, geopolitical factors,
supply chain disruptions, inflation, rising interest rates and other factors. For example, the ability of NEE and FPL to develop
solar generation and battery storage facilities is dependent on the international supply chain for solar panels, batteries and
associated equipment, and governmental or regulatory actions have caused minor, and could in the future cause material,
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Growth in customer accounts and growth of customer usage each directly influence the demand for electricity and the need for
additional power generation and power delivery facilities, as well as the need for energy-related commodities, such as natural
gas. Customer growth and customer usage are affected by a number of factors outside the control of NEE and FPL, such as
mandated energy efficiency measures, demand side management requirements, installation of distributed generation
technologies and economic and demographic conditions, such as population changes, job and income growth, housing starts,
new business formation, expanded use of data centers, inflation and the overall level of economic activity. A lack of growth, or a
decline, in the number of customers or in customer demand for electricity or natural gas and other fuels may cause NEE and FPL
to fail to fully realize the anticipated benefits from significant investments and expenditures and could have a material adverse
effect on NEE's and FPL's growth, business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects.

NEE's and FPL's business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects can be materially adversely affected
by weather conditions and related impacts, including, but not limited to, the impact of severe weather.

Weather conditions directly influence the demand for electricity and natural gas and other fuels and affect the price of energy and
energy-related commadities. In addition, severe weather and natural disasters, such as hurricanes, floods, tornadoes, droughts,
extreme temperatures, icing events, wildfires, severe convective storms and earthquakes, can be destructive and cause power
outages, personal injury and property damage, reduce revenue, affect the availability of fuel and water, and require NEE and FPL
to incur additional costs, for example, to restore service and repair damaged facilities, to obtain replacement power, to access
available financing sources, to obtain insurance, to pay for any associated injuries and damages and to fund any associated
legal matters and compliance penalties. Furthermore, NEE's and FPL's physical plants could be placed at greater risk of damage
should changes in the global climate produce unusual variations in temperature and weather patterns, resulting in more intense,
frequent and extreme weather events, abnormal levels of precipitation and, particularly relevant to FPL, a change in sea level.
FPL operates in the east and lower west coasts of Florida and in northwest Florida, areas that historically have been prone to
severe weather events, such as hurricanes. A disruption or failure of electric generation, transmission or distribution systems or
natural gas production, transmission, storage or distribution systems in the event of a hurricane, tornado or other severe weather
event, or otherwise, could prevent NEE and FPL from operating their business in the normal course and could result in any of the
adverse consequences described above. Additionally, the actions taken to address the potential for severe weather such as
additional winterizing of critical equipment and infrastructure, modifying or alternating plant operations and expanding load
shedding options could result in significant increases in costs. Any of the foregoing could have a material adverse effect on
NEE's and FPL's business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects.

At FPL and other businesses of NEE where cost recovery is available, recovery of costs to restore service, to repair damaged
facilities or for other actions to address severe weather is or may be subject to regulatory approval, and any determination by the
regulator not to permit timely and full recovery of the costs incurred could have a material adverse effect on NEE's and FPL's
business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects.

Changes in weather can also affect the production of electricity at power generation facilities, including, but not limited to,
NEER's wind and solar facilities. For example, the level of wind resource affects the revenue produced by wind generation
facilities. Because the levels of wind and solar resources are variable and difficuit to predict, NEER's results of operations for
individual wind and solar facilities specifically, and NEE's results of operations generally, may vary significantly from period to
period, depending on the level of available resources. To the extent that resources are not available at planned levels, the
financial results from these facilities may be less than expected.

Threats of terrorism and catastrophic events that could result from geopolitical factors, terrorism, cyberattacks, or
individuals and/or groups attempting to disrupt NEE's and FPL's business, or the businesses of third parties, may
materially adversely affect NEE's and FPL's business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects.

NEE and FPL are subject to the potentially adverse operating and financial effects of geopalitical factors, terrorist acts and
threats, as well as cyberattacks and other disruptive activities of individuals or groups. There have been cyberattacks and other
physical attacks within the energy industry on energy infrastructure such as substations, gas pipelines and related assets in the
past and there may be such attacks in the future. In addition, the advancement of artificial intelligence has given rise to added
vulnerabilities and potential entry points for cyberattacks. NEE's and FPL's generation, transmission, storage and distribution
facilities, information technology systems and other infrastructure facilities and systems could be direct targets of, or otherwise
be materially adversely affected by, such activities.

Geopoalitical factors, terrorist acts, cyberattacks or other similar events affecting NEE's and FPL's systems and facilities, or those
of third parties on which NEE and FPL rely, could harm NEE's and FPL's businesses by, for example, limiting their ability to
generate, purchase, store or transmit power, natural gas or other energy-related commodities, limiting their ability to bill
customers and collect and process payments, and delaying their development and construction of new generation, distribution,
storage or transmission facilities or capital improvements to existing facilities. These events, and governmental actions in
response, could result in a material decrease in revenues, significant additional costs (for example, to repair assets, implement
additional security requirements or maintain or acquire insurance), significant fines and penalties, and reputational damage,
could materially adversely affect NEE's and FPL's operations (for example, by contributing to disruption of supplies and markets
for natural gas, oil and other fuels), and could impair NEE's and FPL's ability to raise capital (for example, by contributing to
financial instability and lower economic activity). In addition, the implementation of security guidelines and measures has resuited
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Liability for accidents at nuclear power plants is governed by the Price-Anderson Act, which limits the liability of nuclear reactor
owners to the amount of insurance available from both private sources and an industry retrospective payment ptan. In
accordance with this Act, NEE maintains the maximum amount of private liability insurance obtainable, and participates in a
secondary financial protection system, which provides liability insurance coverage for an incident at any nuclear reactor in the
U.S. Under the secondary financial protection system, NEE is subject to retrospective assessments and/or retrospective
insurance premiums, plus any applicable taxes, for an incident at any nuclear reactor in the U.S. or at certain nuclear generation
facilities in Europe, regardless of fault or proximity to the incident. Such assessments, if levied, could materially adversely affect
NEE's and FPL's business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects.

NRC orders or new regulations related to increased security measures and any future safety requirements promulgated
by the NRC could require NEE and FPL to incur substantial operating and capital expenditures at their nuclear
generation facilities and/or resuit in reduced revenues.

The NRC has broad authority to impose licensing and safety-related requirements for the operation and maintenance of nuclear
generation facilities, the addition of capacity at existing nuclear generation facilities and the construction of new nuclear
generation facilities, and these requirements are subject to change. In the event of nan-compliance, the NRC has the authority to
impose fines and/or shut down a nuclear generation facility, depending upon the NRC's assessment of the severity of the
situation, until compliance is achieved. Any of the foregoing events could require NEE and FPL to incur increased costs and
capital expenditures, and could reduce revenues.

Any serious nuclear incident occurring at a NEE or FPL plant could result in substantial remediation costs and other expenses. A
major incident at a nuclear facility anywhere in the world could cause the NRC to limit or prohibit the operation or licensing of any
domestic nuclear generation facility. An incident at a nuclear facility anywhere in the world also could cause the NRC to impose
additional conditions or other requirements on the industry, or on certain types of nuclear generation units, which could increase
costs, reduce revenues and result in additional capital expenditures for NEE and FPL.

The inability to operate any of NEE's or FPL's nuclear generation units through the end of their respective operating
licenses or planned license extensions could have a material adverse effect on NEE's and FPL's business, financial
condition, results of operations and prospects.

If any of NEE's or FPL's nuclear generation facilities are not operated for any reason through the life of their respective operating
licenses or planned license extensions, NEE or FPL may be required to increase depreciation rates, incur impairment charges
and accelerate future decommissioning expenditures, any of which could materially adversely affect their business, financial
condition, results of operations and prospects.

NEE's and FPL's nuclear units are periodically removed from service to accommodate planned refueling and
maintenance outages, and for other purposes. If planned outages last longer than anticipated or if there are unplanned
outages, NEE's and FPL's business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects could be materially
adversely affected.

NEE's and FPL's nuclear units are periodically removed from service to accommodate planned refueling and maintenance
outages, including, but not limited to, inspections, repairs and certain other modifications as well as to replace equipment. In the
event that a scheduled outage lasts longer than anticipated or in the event of an unplanned outage due to, for example,
equipment failure, such outages could materially adversely affect NEE's or FPL's business, financial condition, results of
operations and prospects.

Liquidity, Capital Requirements and Common Stock Risks

Disruptions, uncertainty or volatility in the credit and capital markets, among other factors, may negatively affect NEE's
and FPL’s ability to fund their liquidity and capital needs and to meet their growth objectives, and could also materially
adversely affect their business, financial condition, liquidity, results of operations and prospects.

NEE and FPL rely on access to capital and credit markets as significant sources of liquidity for capital requirements, refinancing
activities to support existing debt maturities and other requirements that are not satisfied by operating cash flows. Disruptions,
uncertainty or volatility in those capital and credit markets related to, among others, inflation, rising or sustained higher interest
rates and political, regulatory and geopalitical events, could increase NEE's and FPL's cost of capital and affect their ability to
fund their liquidity and capital needs, to refinance existing indebtedness and to meet their growth objectives, If NEE or FPL is
unable to access regularly the capital and credit markets on terms that are reasonable, it may have to delay raising capital, issue
shorter-term securities and incur an unfavorable cost of capital, which, in turn, could adversely affect its ability to maintain and
grow its business, could contribute to lower earnings and reduced financial flexibility, and could have a material adverse effect on
its business, financial condition, liquidity, results of operations and prospects.

Although certain NEE subsidiaries have used non-recourse or limited-recourse, project-specific or other financing in the past,

market conditions, changes to regulatory capital requirements and other factors could adversely affect the future availability of
such financing. The inability of NEE's subsidiaries, including, without limitation, NEECH and its subsidiaries, to access the capital
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Certain of NEE's assets and investments are subject to changes in market value and other risks, which may materially
adversely affect NEE's liquidity, financial condition and results of operations.

NEE holds certain assets and investments where changes in the fair value affect NEE's financial results. In some cases there
may be no observable market values for these assets and investments, requiring fair value estimates to be based on other
valuation techniques. This type of analysis requires significant judgment and the actual values realized in a sale of these assets
and investments could differ materially from those estimated. A sale of an asset or investment below previously estimated value,
or other decline in the fair value of an asset or investment, could result in losses or the write-off of such asset or investment, and
may have a material adverse effect on NEE's liquidity, financial condition and results of operations.

NEE has invested in various joint ventures and equity method investments where it does not have full control over operations,
management or decision-making. In many cases, NEE shares control rights with its partners, but may lack influence or be
dependent on their business priorities. This situation can lead to decisions that differ from NEE's preferences, potentially
impacting the profitability and value of these investments. Furthermore, if a joint venture partner becomes insolvent or bankrupt
or is otherwise unable to meet its obligations, NEE may be responsible for meeting certain obligations of the joint ventures as
stipulated in its governing documents or applicable law. NEE's reliance on the joint venture partners, who may not always share
NEE's business priorities, may have a material adverse effect on NEE's liquidity, financial condition and results of operations.

NEE may be unable to meet its ongoing and future financial obligations and to pay dividends on its common stock if its
subsidiaries are unable to pay upstream dividends or repay funds to NEE.

NEE is a holding company and, as such, has no material operations of its own. Substantially all of NEE's consolidated assets are
held by its subsidiaries. NEE's ability to meet its financial obligations, including, but not limited to, its guarantees, and to pay
dividends on its common stock is primarily dependent on its subsidiaries' net income and cash flows, which are subject to the
risks of their respective businesses, and their ability to pay upstream dividends or to repay funds to NEE.

NEE's subsidiaries are separate legal entities and have no independent obligation to provide NEE with funds for its payment
obligations. The subsidiaries have financial obligations, including, but not limited to, payment of debt service, which they must
satisfy before they can provide NEE with funds. In addition, in the event of a subsidiary's liquidation or reorganization, NEE's
right to participate in a distribution of assets is subject to the prior claims of the subsidiary's creditors.

The dividend-paying ability of some of the subsidiaries is limited by contractual restrictions which are contained in outstanding
financing agreements and which may be included in future financing agreements. The future enactment of laws or regulations
also may prohibit or restrict the ability of NEE's subsidiaries to pay upstream dividends or to repay funds.

NEE may be unable to meet its ongoing and future financial obligations and to pay dividends on its common stock if
NEE is required to perform under guarantees of obligations of its subsidiaries.

NEE guarantees many of the obligations of its consolidated subsidiaries, other than FPL, through guarantee agreements with
NEECH. These guarantees may require NEE to provide substantial funds to its subsidiaries or their creditors or counterparties at
a time when NEE is in need of liquidity to meet its own financial obligations. Funding such guarantees may materially adversely
affect NEE's ability to meet its financial obligations or to pay dividends.

XPLR may not be able to access sources of capital on commercially reasonable terms, which would have a material
adverse effect on its ability to consummate future acquisitions and on the value of NEE's limited partner interest in
XPLR OpCo.

Through an indirect wholly owned subsidiary, NEE owns a limited partner interest in XPLR OpCo. XPLR's inability to access
capital on commercially reasonable terms when acquisitions, other growth opportunities or capital needs arise could have a
material adverse effect on XPLR's ability to deliver its cash distributions to its common unitholders in the future, including NEE,
and on the value of NEE's limited partnership interest in XPLR OpCo. In addition, XPLR's issuance of additional common units or
other securities in connection with acquisitions or the conversion of outstanding securities convertible into XPLR common units
could cause significant comman unitholder dilution and reduce future cash distributions, if any, to its common unitholders,
including NEE.

Disruptions, uncertainty or volatility in the credit and capital markets may exert downward pressure on the market price
of NEE's common stock.

The market price and trading volume of NEE's common stock are subject to fluctuations as a result of, among other factors,
general credit and capital market conditions and changes in market sentiment regarding the operations, business and financing
strategies of NEE, its subsidiaries and its affiliates. As a result, disruptions, uncertainty or volatility in the credit and capital
markets may, for example, have a material adverse effect on the market price of NEE's common stock.
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Widespread public health crises and epidemics or pandemics may have material adverse impacts on NEE's and FPL's
business, financial condition, liquidity, results of operations and prospects.

NEE and FPL are subject to the impacts of widespread public health crises, epidemics and pandemics, including, but not limited
to, impacts on the global, national or local economy, capital and credit markets, NEE's and FPL's workforce, customers and
suppliers. There is no assurance that NEE's and FPL's businesses will be able to operate without material adverse impacts
depending on the nature of the public health crisis, epidemic or pandemic. The ultimate severity, duration and impact of public
health crises, epidemics and pandemics cannot be predicted. Additionally, there is no assurance that vaccines, or other
treatments, are or will be widely available or effective, or that the public will be willing to participate, in an effort to contain the
spread of disease. Actions taken in response to such crises by federal, state and local government or regulatory agencies may
have a material adverse impact on NEE's and FPL's business, financial condition, liquidity, results of operations and prospects.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None
Item 1C. Cybersecurity

Risk Management and Strategy

Cybersecurity risk management is included in NEE's, including FPL's, overall risk management program. NEE, including FPL,
operates a cybersecurity program which, among other objectives, seeks to identify potential unauthorized occurrences on or
conducted through the electronic information resources owned or used by NEE or FPL (information systems) that may result in
adverse effects on the confidentiality, integrity or availability of its information systems or any information residing on those
systems (cybersecurity threats) as well as on its operations. The cybersecurity program includes controls to reduce the risk and
potential impact of a cybersecurity incident and to align its processes, controls and implemented technologies with industry
standard frameworks and regulations. In addition, outside experts assess NEE's, including FPL's, cybersecurity program
capabilities, technology environment and security controls to regularly evaluate effectiveness.

NEE, including FPL, operates a cybersecurity operations center and has cyber threat intelligence capability to identify, monitor,
detect and respond to cybersecurity threats which is led by a cybersecurity incident response team. NEE, including FPL, uses
these resources, and leverages third-party resources, to identify cybersecurity threats and monitor for anomalies that may result
in cybersecurity incidents on its systems, and monitors for impacts to its vendors or suppliers. Assessment of incidents includes,
but is not limited to, analysis of the urgency and operational or business impact of an incident and the status and effectiveness of
incident defenses. NEE, including FPL, invests in personnel and technologies with the objective of limiting the frequency and
impact of cybersecurity incidents. Following documented cybersecurity incident response procedures, the cybersecurity incident
response team escalates information about cybersecurity incidents depending on circumstances to oversight committees and
personnel charged with managing specific aspects of cybersecurity risk, including, among others, the Cybersecurity and
Resiliency Committee, the Cybersecurity Governance Executive Committee and NEE's Board of Directors.

NEE, including FPL, conducts periodic desktop exercises and an annual cybersecurity drill with the participation from time to time
of local, state and U.S. federal agencies to test its capability of dealing with a simulated cyberattack. NEE, including FPL, also
participates in industry forums and various trade groups, as well as in NERC activities, to learn and apply these incident
preparedness learnings to its cybersecurity policies and procedures.

NEE, including FPL, uses third parties to periodically assess the extent to which its cybersecurity risk management protocols
align with the U.S. Department of Energy's Cybersecurity Capability Maturity Model standard. Certain functions within NEE,
including FPL, are required to comply with certain regulatory standards that are designed to protect against cybersecurity
incidents, including the NERC Critical Infrastructure Protection standards, as well as the NRC cybersecurity protection standards.
Further, NEE, including FPL, has a cybersecurity training program and a mock phishing program to educate and train employees
on potential cybersecurity risks and on privacy and data protection. Given geopolitical events, NEE, including FPL, cantinues to
take steps to defend against cybersecurity threats to its critical infrastructure, including communications with personnel to ensure
heightened awareness of increased cybersecurity threats worldwide.

The cybersecurity capabilities of third-party vendors providing services to NEE or FPL or accessing NEE's or FPL's systems or
data are evaluated as part of the new vendor establishment process. NEE, including FPL, retains the right to audit vendors for
cybersecurity of products and services. Where applicable in NEE's or FPL's contracts with third-party vendors accessing its
systems or data, standard data security terms and conditions are utilized and minimum amounts of insurance coverage based on
the risk of exposure are required.

NEE, including FPL, operates U.S. critical infrastructure. There have been cyberattacks and other physical attacks within the
energy industry on energy infrastructure such as substations, gas pipelines and related assets and there may be such attacks in
the future. In addition, the advancement of artificial intelligence has given rise to new security risks. Although there have been no
cybersecurity incidents or threats with a material impact on NEE's nor FPL's business strategy, results of operations, or financial
condition, NEE's or FPL's information technology systems could fail or be breached, and such systems could be inoperable,
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Corporate and Other's results in 2024 increased primarily due to favorable non-qualifying hedge activity.

NEE and its subsidiaries require funds to support and grow their businesses. These funds are primarily provided by cash flows
from operations, borrowings or issuances of short- and long-term debt and, from time to time, issuances of equity securities,
proceeds from differential membership investors, and sales of tax credits and ownership interests in assets/businesses. See
Liquidity and Capital Resources.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Net income attributable to NEE for 2024 was $6.95 billion compared to $7.31 billion in 2023. In 2024, net income attributable to
NEE decreased primarily due to lower results at NEER and FPL, partly offset by higher results at Corporate and Other. The
comparison of the results of operations for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 are included in Management's
Discussion in NEE's and FPL's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2023.

NEE's effective income tax rate for 2024 and 2023 was approximately 6% and 14%, respectively. The rates for both years reflect
the impact of renewable energy tax credits. See Note 5.

FPL: Results of Operations

FPL obtains its operating revenues primarily from the sale of electricity to retail customers at rates established by the FPSC
through base rates and cost recovery clause mechanisms. FPL's net income for 2024 and 2023 was $4,543 million and $4,552
million, respectively, representing a decrease of $9 million. The decrease was primarily driven by the absence of the gain on sale
of FPL's ownership interest in the FCG business in 2023 and a lower earned regulatory ROE in 2024, partly offset by higher
earnings from investments in plant in service and other property. Such investments grew FPL's average rate base by
approximately $6.1 billion in 2024 and reflect, among other things, solar generation additions and ongoing transmission and
distribution additions.

In December 2024, the FPSC approved FPL's request to begin a surcharge to recover eligible storm costs and replenish the
storm reserve totaling approximately $1.2 billion for twelve months beginning in January 2025, related to Hurricanes Debby,
Helene and Milton which impacted FPL's service area in 2024. During 2024, FPL completed a twelve-month interim storm
restoration surcharge that began in April 2023 for eligible storm restoration costs and the replenishment of the storm reserve of
approximately $1.3 billion, primarily related to Hurricanes lan and Nicole which impacted FPL's service area in 2022. See Note 1
— Storm Funds, Storm Reserves and Storm Cost Recovery.

The use of reserve amortization is permitted by the 2021 rate agreement. See ltem 1. Business — FPL — FPL Regulation — FPL
Electric Rate Regulation — Base Rates — Base Rates Effective January 2022 through December 2025 for additional information
on the 2021 rate agreement. In order to earn a targeted regulatory ROE, subject to limitations associated with the 2021 rate
agreement, reserve amortization is calculated using a trailing thirteen-month average of retail rate base and capital structure in
conjunction with the trailing twelve months regulatory retail base net operating income, which primarily includes the retail base
portion of base and other revenues, net of O&M, depreciation and amortization, interest and tax expenses. In general, the net
impact of these income statement line items must be adjusted, in part, by reserve amortization to earn the targeted regulatory
ROE. In certain periods, reserve amortization is reversed so as not to exceed the targeted regulatory ROE. The drivers of FPL's
net income not reflected in the reserve amortization calculation typically include wholesale and transmission service revenues
and expenses, cost recovery clause revenues and expenses, AFUDC — equity and revenue and costs not recoverable from retail
customers. In 2024 and 2023, FPL recorded reserve amortization of approximately $328 million and $227 million, respectively.
See Depreciation and Amortization Expense below. FPL's earned regulatory ROE for 2024 and 2023 was approximately 11.40%
and 11.80%, respectively.

In March 2024, the FPSC issued a supplemental final order regarding FPL's 2021 rate agreement. An April 2024 appeal of the
order filed with the Florida Supreme Court by certain intervenors remains pending. See Note 1 — Rate Regulation.

During 2024, operating revenues decreased $1,346 million primarily related to lower storm cost recovery revenues and lower fuel
cost recovery revenues, partly offset by an increase in retail base revenues.

Retail Base

FPL’s retail base revenues for 2024 and 2023 reflect the 2021 rate agreement. Retail base revenues increased approximately
$272 million during the year ended December 31, 2024 primarily related to an increase of 1.9% in the average number of
customer accounts and new retail base rates through its SoBRA mechanism under the 2021 rate agreement. The increases were
partly offset by a decrease of approximately 0.5% in the average usage per retail customer primarily driven by unfavorable
weather when compared to the prior year. See Note 1 — Rate Regulation.

In December 2024, FPL filed a formal notification with the FPSC indicating its intent to initiate a base rate proceeding. See

ltem 1. Business — FPL — FPL Regulation — FPL Electric Rate Regulation — Base Rates for additional information on the details of
FPL's formal notification.
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Cost Recovery Clauses

Revenues from fuel and other cost recovery clauses and pass-through costs, such as franchise fees, revenue taxes and storm-
related surcharges, are largely a pass-through of costs. Such revenues also include a return on investment allowed to be
recovered through the cost recovery clauses on certain assets, primarily related to certain solar, environmental projects, storm
protection plan investments and the unamortized balance of the regulatory asset associated with FPL's acquisition of certain
generation facilities. See ltem 1. Business — FPL — FPL Regulation — FPL Electric Rate Regulation — Cost Recovery Clauses.
Under-recovery or over-recovery of cost recovery clause and other pass-through costs (deferred clause and franchise expenses
and revenues) can significantly affect NEE's and FPL's operating cash flows. The change from a net under-recovery of cost
recovery clauses at December 31, 2023 to a net over-recovery of cost recovery clauses at December 31, 2024 impacting FPL's
operating cash flows was approximately $1,016 million, primarily related to lower fuel prices.

The decrease in operating revenues in 2024 reflects lower storm cost recovery revenues of approximately $1,090 million
primarily associated with the completion of surcharges for Hurricanes lan and Nicole, as discussed above. The decrease in
operating revenues in 2024 was also impacted by a decrease in fuel cost recovery revenues of approximately $526 million
primarily as a result of lower fuel and energy prices. In 2024 and 2023, cost recovery clauses contributed approximately $417
million and $369 million, respectively, to FPL's net income.

Other Items Impacting FPL's Consolidated Statements of Income

Fuel, Purchase Power and Interchange Expense
Fuel, purchased power and interchange expense decreased $573 million in 2024 primarily related to lower fuel and energy
prices.

Depreciation and Amortization Expense
The major components of FPL's depreciation and amortization expense are as follows:

Years Ended December 31,

2024 2023
(millions)
Other depreciation and amortization recovered under base rates (excluding reserve amortization) and
other 2,667 2,468
Total $ 2827 § 3,789

Depreciation expense decreased $962 million during 2024 primarily reflecting lower amortization of deferred storm costs,
primarily associated with Hurricanes lan and Nicole as discussed above, of approximately $1,089 million and lower reserve
amortization, partly offset by increased depreciation related to higher plant in service balances. Reserve amortization, or reversal
of such amortization, reflects adjustments to accrued asset removal costs provided under the 2021 rate agreement in order to
achieve the targeted regulatory ROE. Reserve amortization is recorded as either an increase or decrease to accrued asset
removal costs which is reflected in noncurrent regulatory assets on NEE's and FPL's consalidated balance sheets. At December
31, 2024, approximately $895 million of reserve amortization remains available under the 2021 rate agreement.

Gains on Disposal of Businesses/Assets — net

In 2023, gains on disposal of businesses/assets — net primarily relate to the sale of ownership interests in the FCG business.
See Note 1 — Disposal of Businesses/Assets.
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a 2023 impairment charge of $1.2 billion ($0.9 billion after tax) related to the investment in XPLR (see Note 4 — Nonrecurring Fair
Value Measurements).

Income Taxes

NEER's effective income tax rate for 2024 and 2023 was approximately (165)% and 7%, respectively, and is primarily based on
the composition of pretax income in 2024 and 2023 as well as the impact of renewable energy tax credits. PTCs from wind and
solar projects and ITCs from solar, battery storage and certain wind projects are included in NEER’s earnings. PTCs are
recognized as wind and solar energy is generated and sold based on a per kWh rate prescribed in applicable federal and state
statutes. During the year ended December 31, 2024, renewable energy tax credits increased by approximately $477 million
reflecting growth in NEER's business. See Note 1 — Income Taxes for a discussion of renewable energy tax credits, Note 5 and
Note 16.

Corporate and Other: Results of Operations

Corporate and Other is primarily comprised of the operating results of other business activities, as well as corporate interest
income and expenses. Corporate and Other allocates a portion of NEECH's corporate interest expense to NextEra Energy
Resources. Interest expense is allocated based on a deemed capital structure of 70% debt and differential membership interests
sold by NextEra Energy Resources’ subsidiaries.

Corporate and Other's results increased $904 million during 2024 primarily due to favorable after-tax impacts of approximately
$934 million, as compared to the prior year, related to non-qualifying hedge activity as a result of changes in the fair value of
interest rate derivative instruments used to manage interest rate and foreign currency exchange rate risk associated primarily
with outstanding and expected future debt issuances and borrowings (see Note 3).

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

NEE and its subsidiaries require funds to support and grow their businesses. These funds are used for, among other things,
working capital (see Note 1 — Storm Funds, Storm Reserves and Storm Cost Recovery), capital expenditures (see Note 15 -
Commitments), investments in or acquisitions of assets and businesses (see Note 6), payment of maturing debt and related
derivative obligations (see Note 13 and Note 3) and, from time to time, redemption or repurchase of outstanding debt or equity
securities. It is anticipated that these requirements will be satisfied through a combination of cash flows from operations, short-
and long-term borrowings, the issuance of short- and long-term debt (see Note 13) and, from time to time, equity securities,
proceeds from differential membership investors, sales of renewable energy tax credits (see Note 1 — Income Taxes) and sales
of ownership interests in assets/businesses (see Note 1 — Disposal of Businesses/Assets), consistent with NEE's and FPL's
objective of maintaining, on a long-term basis, a capital structure that will support a strong investment grade credit rating. NEE,
FPL and NEECH rely on access to credit and capital markets as significant sources of liquidity for capital requirements and other
operations that are not satisfied by operating cash flows. The inability of NEE, FPL and NEECH to maintain their current credit
ratings could affect their ability to raise short- and long-term capital, their cost of capital and the execution of their respective
financing strategies, and could require the posting of additional collateral under certain agreements.

In October 2015, NEE authorized a program to purchase, from time to time, up to $150 million of common units representing
limited partner interests in XPLR. Under the program, purchases may be made in amounts, at prices and at such times as NEE
or its subsidiaries deem appropriate, all subject to market conditions and other considerations. The purchases may be made in
the open market or in privately negotiated transactions. Any purchases will be made in such quantities, at such prices, in such
manner and on such terms and conditions as determined by NEE or its subsidiaries in their discretion, based on factors such as
market and business conditions, applicable legal requirements and other factors. The common unit purchase program does not
require NEE to acquire any specific number of common units and may be modified or terminated by NEE at any time. The
purpose of the program is not to cause XPLR's common units to be delisted from the New York Stock Exchange or to cause the
common units to be deregistered with the SEC. As of December 31, 2024, the dollar value of units that may yet be purchased by
NEE under this program was $114 million. At December 31, 2024, NEE had an approximately 52.6% noncontrolling interest in
XPLR, primarily through its limited partner interest in XPLR OpCo.
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In some instances, subsidiaries of NEE elect to issue guarantees instead of posting other forms of collateral required under
certain financing arrangements, as well as for other project-level cash management activities. At December 31, 2024, these
guarantees totaled approximately $1.8 billion and support, among other things, cash management activities, including those
related to debt service and operations and maintenance service agreements, as well as other specific project financing
requirements.

Subsidiaries of NEE also issue guarantees to support customer supply and proprietary power and gas trading activities, including
the buying and selling of wholesale energy commodities. At December 31, 2024, the estimated mark-to-market exposure (the
total amount that these subsidiaries of NEE could be required to fund based on energy commodity market prices at
December 31, 2024) plus contract settiement net payables, net of collateral posted for obligations under these guarantees
totaled approximately $1.6 billion.

At December 31, 2024, subsidiaries of NEE also had approximately $5.6 billion of standby letters of credit and approximately
$1.6 billion of surety bonds to support certain of the commercial activities discussed above. FPL's and NEECH's credit facilities
are available to support substantially all of the standby letters of credit.

In addition, as part of contract negotiations in the normal course of business, certain subsidiaries of NEE have agreed and in the
future may agree to make payments to compensate or indemnify other parties, including those associated with asset divestitures,
for possible unfavorable financial consequences resulting from specified events. The specified events may include, but are not
limited to, an adverse judgment in a lawsuit, or the imposition of additional taxes due to a change in tax law or interpretations of
the tax law. NEE is unable to estimate the maximum potential amount of future payments by its subsidiaries under some of these
contracts because events that would obligate them to make payments have not occurred or, if any such event has occurred, they
have not been notified of its occurrence.

NEECH, a 100% owned subsidiary of NEE, provides funding for, and holds ownership interests in, NEE's operating subsidiaries
other than FPL. NEE has fully and unconditionally guaranteed certain payment obligations of NEECH, including most of its debt
and all of its debentures registered pursuant to the Securities Act of 1933 and commercial paper issuances, as well as most of its
payment guarantees and indemnifications, and NEECH has guaranteed certain debt and other obligations of subsidiaries within
the NEER segment. Certain guarantee arrangements described above contain requirements for NEECH and FPL to maintain a
specified credit rating. For a discussion of credit rating downgrade triggers, see Credit Ratings below.

NEE fully and unconditionally guarantees NEECH debentures pursuant to a guarantee agreement, dated as of June 1, 1999
(1999 guarantee) and NEECH junior subordinated debentures pursuant to an indenture, dated as of September 1, 2006 (2006
guarantee). The 1999 guarantee is an unsecured obligation of NEE and ranks equally and ratably with all other unsecured and
unsubordinated indebtedness of NEE. The 2006 guarantee is unsecured and subordinate and junior in right of payment to NEE
senior indebtedness (as defined therein). No payment on those junior subordinated debentures may be made under the 2006
guarantee until all NEE senior indebtedness has been paid in full in certain circumstances. NEE's and NEECH's ability to meet
their financial obligations are primarily dependent on their subsidiaries’ net income, cash flows and their ability to pay upstream
dividends or to repay funds to NEE and NEECH. The dividend-paying ability of some of the subsidiaries is limited by contractual
restrictions which are contained in outstanding financing agreements.
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In September 2006, NEE and NEECH executed a Replacement Capital Covenant (as amended, September 2006 RCC) in
connection with NEECH's offering of $350 million principal amount of Series B Enhanced Junior Subordinated Debentures due
2066 (Series B junior subordinated debentures). The September 2006 RCC is for the benefit of persons that buy, hold or sell a
specified series of long-term indebtedness (covered debt) of NEECH (other than the Series B junior subordinated debentures) or,
in certain cases, of NEE. NEECH's 3.50% Debentures, Series due April 1, 2029 have been designated as the covered debt
under the September 2006 RCC. The September 2006 RCC provides that NEECH may redeem, and NEE or NEECH may
purchase, any Series B junior subordinated debentures on or before October 1, 2036, only to the extent that the redemption or
purchase price does not exceed a specified amount of proceeds from the sale of qualifying securities, subject to certain
limitations described in the September 2006 RCC. Qualifying securities are securities that have equity-like characteristics that
are the same as, or more equity-like than, the Series B junior subordinated debentures at the time of redemption or purchase,
which are sold within 365 days prior to the date of the redemption or repurchase of the Series B junior subordinated debentures.

In June 2007, NEE and NEECH executed a Replacement Capital Covenant (as amended, June 2007 RCC) in connection with
NEECH's offering of $400 million principal amount of its Series C Junior Subordinated Debentures due 2067 (Series C junior
subordinated debentures). The June 2007 RCC is for the benefit of persons that buy, hold or sell a specified series of covered
debt of NEECH (other than the Series C junior subordinated debentures) or, in certain cases, of NEE. NEECH's 3.50%
Debentures, Series due April 1, 2029 have been designated as the covered debt under the June 2007 RCC. The June 2007
RCC provides that NEECH may redeem or purchase, or satisfy, discharge or defease (collectively, defease), and NEE and any
majority-owned subsidiary of NEE or NEECH may purchase, any Series C junior subordinated debentures on ar before June 15,
2037, only to the extent that the principal amount defeased or the applicable redemption or purchase price does not exceed a
specified amount raised from the issuance, during the 365 days prior to the date of that redemption, purchase or defeasance, of
qualifying securities that have equity-like characteristics that are the same as, or more equity-like than, the applicable
characteristics of the Series C junior subordinated debentures at the time of redemption, purchase or defeasance, subject to
certain limitations described in the June 2007 RCC.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

Critical accounting estimates are those that NEE believes are both most important to the portrayal of its financial condition and
results of operations, and require complex, subjective judgments, often as a result of the need to make assumptions about the
effect of matters that are inherently uncertain. Judgments and uncertainties affecting the critical accounting estimates may result
in materially different amounts being reported under different conditions or using different assumptions. NEE's significant
accounting policies, including those requiring critical accounting estimates, are described in Note 1 to the consolidated financial
statements, which were prepared under GAAP. Further details regarding NEE's critical accounting estimates are as follows:

Accounting for Derivatives and Hedging Activities

NEE uses derivative instruments (primarily swaps, options, futures and forwards) to manage the physical and financial risks
inherent in the purchase and sale of fuel and electricity, as well as interest rate and foreign currency exchange rate risk
associated primarily with outstanding and expected future debt issuances and borrowings. In addition, NEE, through NEER, uses
derivatives to optimize the value of its power generation and natural gas and oil production assets and engages in power and
fuel marketing and trading activities to take advantage of expected future favorable price movements.

Nature of Accounting Estimates

Accounting pronouncements require the use of fair value accounting if certain conditions are met, which may require significant
judgment to measure the fair value of assets and liabilities. This applies not only to traditional financial derivative instruments, but
to any contract having the accounting characteristics of a derivative. As a result, significant judgment must be used in applying
derivatives accounting guidance to contracts. In the event changes in interpretation occur, it is possible that contracts that
currently are excluded from derivatives accounting rules would have to be recorded on the balance sheet at fair value, with
changes in the fair value recorded in the statement of income.

Assumptions and Accounting Approach

Derivative instruments, when required to be marked to market, are recorded on the balance sheet at fair value using a
combination of market and income approaches. Fair values for some of the longer-term contracts where liquid markets are not
available are derived through the use of industry-standard valuation techniques, such as internally developed models which
estimate the fair value of a contract by calculating the present value of the difference between the contract price and the forward
prices. Forward prices represent the price at which a buyer or seller could contract today to purchase or sell a commodity at a
future date. The near-term forward market for electricity is generally liquid and therefore the prices in the early years of the
forward curves reflect observable market quotes. However, in the later years, the market is much less liquid and forward price
curves must be developed using factors including the forward prices for the commodities used as fuel to generate electricity, the
expected system heat rate (which measures the efficiency of power plants in converting fuel to electricity) in the region where the
purchase or sale takes place, and a fundamental forecast of expected spot prices based on modeled supply and demand in the
region. NEE estimates the fair value of interest rate and foreign currency derivatives using an income approach based on a
discounted cash flows valuation technique utilizing the net amount of estimated future cash inflows and outflows related to the
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derivative agreements. The assumptions in these models are critical since any changes therein could have a significant impact
on the fair value of the derivative.

At FPL, substantially all changes in the fair value of energy derivative transactions are deferred as a regulatory asset or liability
until the contracts are settled, and, upon settlement, any gains or losses are passed through the fuel clause. See Note 3.

In NEE's non-rate regulated operations, predominantly NextEra Energy Resources, essentially all changes in the derivatives' fair
value for power purchases and sales, fuel sales and trading activities are recognized on a net basis in operating revenues and
the equity method investees’ related activity is recognized in equity in earnings (losses) of equity method investees in NEE's
consolidated statements of income.

For interest rate and foreign currency derivative instruments, all changes in the derivatives' fair value are recognized in interest
expense and the equity method investees' related activity is recognized in equity in earnings (losses) of equity method investees
in NEE's consolidated statements of income. NEE estimates the fair value of these derivatives using an income approach based
on a discounted cash flows valuation technique utilizing observable inputs.

Certain derivative transactions at NEER are entered into as economic hedges but the transactions do not meet the requirements
for hedge accounting, hedge accounting treatment is not elected or hedge accounting has been discontinued. Changes in the fair
value of those transactions are marked to market and reported in the consolidated statements of income, resulting in earnings
volatility. These changes in fair value are reflected in the non-qualifying hedge category in computing adjusted earnings and
could be significant to NEER's results because the economic offset to the positions are not marked to market. As a
consequence, NEE's net income reflects only the movement in one part of economically-linked transactions. For example, a gain
(loss) in the non-qualifying hedge category for certain energy derivatives is offset by decreases (increases) in the fair value of
related physical asset positions in the portfolio or contracts, which are not marked to market under GAAP. For this reason, NEE's
management views results expressed excluding the unrealized mark-to-market impact of the non-qualifying hedges as a
meaningful measure of current period performance. For additional information regarding derivative instruments, see Note 3,
Overview and Energy Marketing and Trading and Market Risk Sensitivity.

oun in

NEE sponsors a qualified noncontributory defined benefit pension plan for substantially all employees of NEE and its
subsidiaries. Management believes that, based on actuarial assumptions and the well-funded status of the pension plan, NEE
will not be required to make any cash contributions to the qualified pension plan in the near future. The qualified pension plan
has a fully funded trust dedicated to providing benefits under the plan. NEE allocates net periodic income associated with the
pension plan to its subsidiaries annually using specific criteria.

Nature of Accounting Estimates

For the pension plan, the benefit obligation is the actuarial present value, as of the December 31 measurement date, of all
benefits attributed by the pension benefit formula to employee service rendered to that date. The amount of benefit to be paid
depends on a number of future events incorporated into the pension benefit formula, including an estimate of the average
remaining life of employees/survivors as well as the average years of service rendered. The projected benefit obligation is
measured based on assumptions concerning future interest rates and future employee compensation levels. NEE derives
pension income from actuarial calculations based on the plan's provisions and various management assumptions including
discount rate, rate of increase in compensation levels and expected long-term rate of return on plan assets.

Assumptions and Accounting Approach

Accounting guidance requires recognition of the funded status of the pension plan in the balance sheet, with changes in the
funded status recognized in other comprehensive income within shareholders’ equity in the year in which the changes occur.
Since NEE is the plan sponsor, and its subsidiaries do not have separate rights to the plan assets or direct obligations to their
employees, this accounting guidance is reflected at NEE and not allocated to the subsidiaries. The portion of previously
unrecognized actuarial gains and losses and prior service costs or credits that are estimated to be allocable to FPL as net
periodic (income) cost in future periods and that otherwise would be recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income are
classified as regulatory assets and liabilities at NEE in accordance with regulatory treatment.







Assumptions and Accounting Approach

An impairment loss is required to be recognized if the carrying value of the asset exceeds the undiscounted future net cash flows
associated with that asset. The impairment loss to be recognized is the amount by which the carrying value of the long-lived
asset exceeds the asset's fair value. In most instances, the fair value is determined by discounting estimated future cash flows
using an appropriate interest rate.

Carrying Value of Equity Method Investments

NEE tests its equity method investments for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the fair value
of the investment is less than the carrying value.

Nature of Accounting Estimates

Indicators of impairment may include, but are not limited to, a series of operating losses of an investee, the absence of an ability
to recover the carrying amount of the investment, the inability of the investee to sustain an earnings capacity and a current fair
value of an investment that may be less than its carrying value. If indicators of impairment exist, an estimate of the investment's
fair value will be calculated. Approaches for estimating fair value include, among others, an income approach using a probability-
weighted discounted cash flows model, a market approach using an earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and
amortization (EBITDA) multiple model, and a market observable transaction. The probability assigned to each scenario as well
as the cash flows and EBITDA multiple identified are critical in determining fair value.

Assumptions and Accounting Approach

An impairment loss is required to be recognized if the impairment is deemed to be other than temporary. Assessment of whether
an investment is other than temporarily impaired involves, among cother factors, consideration of the length of time that the fair
value is below the carrying value, current expected performance relative to the expected performance when the investment was
initially made, performance relative to peers, industry performance relative to the economy, credit rating, regulatory actions and
legal and permitting challenges. If management is unable to reasonably assert that an impairment is temporary or believes that
there will not be full recovery of the carrying value of its investment, then the impairment is considered to be other than
temporary. Investments that are other than temporarily impaired are written down to their estimated fair value and cannot
subsequently be written back up for increases in estimated fair value. Impairment losses are recorded in equity in earnings
(losses) of equity method investees in NEE’s consolidated statements of income. See Note 4 — Nonrecurring Fair Value
Measurements.

Decommissioning and Dismantlement

NEE accounts for asset retirement obligations and conditional asset retirement obligations (collectively, AROs) under accounting
guidance that requires a liability for the fair value of an ARO to be recognized in the period in which it is incurred if it can be
reasonably estimated, with the offsetting associated asset retirement costs capitalized as part of the carrying amount of the long-
lived assets. NEE's AROs relate primarily to decommissioning obligations of FPL's and NEER's nuclear units and to obligations
for the dismantlement of certain of NEER's wind and solar facilities.

Nature of Accounting Estimates

The calculation of the future cost of retiring long-lived assets, including nuclear decommissioning and plant dismantlement costs,
involves estimating the amount and timing of future expenditures and making judgments concerning whether or not such costs
are considered a legal obligation. Estimating the amount and timing of future expenditures includes, among other things, making
projections of when assets will be retired and ultimately decommissioned and how costs will escalate with inflation. In addition,
NEE also makes interest rate and rate of return projections on its investments in determining recommended funding
requirements for nuclear decommissioning costs. Periodically, NEE is required to update these estimates and projections which
can affect the annual expense amounts recognized, the liabilities recorded and the annual funding requirements for nuclear
decommissioning costs. For example, an increase of 0.25% in the assumed escalation rates for nuclear decommissioning costs
would increase NEE's AROs at December 31, 2024 by approximately $208 million.

Assumptions_and Accounting Approach

FPL - For ratemaking purposes, FPL accrues and funds for nuclear plant decommissioning costs over the expected service life
of each unit based on studies that are approved by the FPSC. The most recent studies, filed in 2020, reflect, among other things,
the expiration dates of the operating licenses for FPL's nuclear units at the time of the studies. FPL’s portion of the future cost of
decommissioning its four nuclear units, including spent fuel storage above what is expected to be refunded by the DOE under a
spent fuel settlement agreement, is estimated to be approximately $9.6 billion, or $2.5 billion expressed in 2024 dollars. The
ultimate costs of decommissioning reflect the applications submitted to the NRC for the extension of St. Lucie Units Nos. 1 and 2
licenses for an additional 20 years, as well as the license renewals for Turkey Point Units No. 3 and 4 approved in 2024.
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Credit risk is also managed through the use of master netting agreements. NEE's credit department monitors current and forward
credit exposure to counterparties and their affiliates, both on an individual and an aggregate basis. For all derivative and
contractual transactions, NEE's energy marketing and trading operations, which include FPL's energy marketing and trading
division, are exposed to losses in the event of nonperformance by counterparties to these transactions. Some relevant
considerations when assessing NEE’s energy marketing and trading operations’ credit risk exposure include the following:

«  Operations are primarily concentrated in the energy industry.

- Trade receivables and other financial instruments are predominately with energy, utility and financial services related
companies, as well as municipalities, cooperatives and other trading companies in the U.S.

- Qverall credit risk is managed through established credit policies and is overseen by the EMC.

+  Prospective and existing customers are reviewed for creditworthiness based upon established standards, with customers
not meeting minimum standards providing various credit enhancements or secured payment terms, such as letters of credit
or the posting of margin cash collateral.

- Master netting agreements are used to offset cash and noncash gains and losses arising from derivative instruments with
the same counterparty. NEE’s policy is to have master netting agreements in place with significant counterparties.

Based on NEE's policies and risk exposures related to credit, NEE and FPL do not anticipate a material adverse effect on their
financial statements as a result of counterparty nonperformance. At December 31, 2024, NEE's credit risk exposure associated
with its energy marketing and trading operations, taking into account collateral and contractual netting rights, totaled
approximately $2.6 billion ($64 million for FPL), of which approximately 88% (99% for FPL) was with companies that have
investment grade credit ratings. See Note 3.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

See Management's Discussion — Energy Marketing and Trading and Market Risk Sensitivity.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the shareholders and the Board of Directors of
NextEra Energy, Inc. and Florida Power & Light Company

Opinion on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of NextEra Energy, Inc. and subsidiaries (NEE) and the related
separate consolidated balance sheets of Florida Power & Light Company and subsidiaries (FPL) as of December 31, 2024 and
2023, and NEE's and FPL's related consolidated statements of income and cash flows, NEE's consolidated statements of
comprehensive income and equity, and FPL’s consolidated statements of common shareholder's equity, for each of the three
years in the period ended December 31, 2024, and the related notes (collectively referred to as the "financial statements”). In our
opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of NEE and FPL as of
December 31, 2024 and 2023, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2024, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States)
(PCAOB), NEE’s and FPL's internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2024, based on criteria established in
Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission and our report dated February 14, 2025, expressed unqualified opinions on NEE's and FPL's internal control over
financial reporting.

Basis for Opinion

These financial statements are the responsibility of NEE's and FPL's management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on
NEE’s and FPL's financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are
required to be independent with respect to NEE and FPL in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable
rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to
error or fraud. Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our audits also included
evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

Critical Audit Matters

The critical audit matters communicated below are matters arising from the current-period audit of the financial statements of
NEE and FPL that were communicated or required to be communicated to the audit committee and that (1) relate to accounts or
disclosures that are material to the financial statements and (2) involved our especially challenging, subjective, or complex
judgments. The communication of critical audit matters does not alter in any way our opinion on the financial statements, taken
as a whole, and we are not, by communicating the critical audit matters below, providing separate opinions on the critical audit
matters or on the accounts or disclosures to which they relate.

NEE - Operating Revenue — Unrealized Losses — Refer to Note 3 to the financial statements
Critical Audit Matter Description

NEE enters into complex energy derivatives and transacts in certain markets that are thinly traded, which may result in subjective
estimates of fair value that include unobservable inputs. Changes in the derivatives' fair value for power purchases and sales,
fuel sales and trading activities are primarily recognized on a net basis in operating revenues. For the year ended December 31,
2024, unrealized losses associated with Level 3 transactions of $25 million are included in operating revenues in the
consolidated statement of income of NEE.

Given management uses complex proprietary models and unobservable inputs to estimate the fair value of Level 3 derivative
assets and liabilities, performing audit procedures to evaluate the appropriateness of these models and inputs required a high
degree of auditor judgment and an increased extent of effort, including the need to involve our firm specialists who possess
significant quantitative and modeling expertise.
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How the Critical Audit Matter Was Addressed in the Audit

Our audit procedures related to operating revenue — unrealized losses included the following, among others:

+  We tested the effectiveness of controls relating to commodity valuation models, their related Level 3 unobservable
inputs, and market data validation.

+  We selected a sample of transactions, obtained an understanding of the business rationale of transactions, and read
the underlying contractual agreements.

«  We used personnel in our firm who specialize in energy transacting to independently value Level 3 transactions. For
certain fair value models, we used our firm specialists to directly test the underlying assumptions of the unobservable
inputs used by management.

- We evaluated NEE's disclosures related to the proprietary models and unobservable inputs to estimate the fair value of
Level 3 derivative assets and liabilities, including the balances recorded and significant assumptions.

FPL — Impact of Rate Regulation on the Financial Statements — Refer to Note 1 to the financial statements
Critical Audit Matter Description

FPL is subject to rate regulation by the Florida Public Service Commission (the “FPSC"), which has jurisdiction with respect to
the rates of electric utility companies. Management has determined it meets the requirements under accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America to prepare its financial statements applying the specialized rules to account
for the effects of cost-based rate regulation. Accounting for the economics of rate regulation impacts multiple financial statement
line items and disclosures, such as property, plant, and equipment; regulatory assets and liabilities; operating revenues; fuel
expense; operation and maintenance expense; and depreciation expense.

Rates are determined and approved in regulatory proceedings based on an analysis of FPL's costs to provide utility service and
a return on, and recovery of, FPL's investment in the assets required to deliver utility service. Accounting guidance for FPL's
regulated operations provides that rate-regulated entities report assets and liabilities consistent with the recovery of those
incurred costs in rates, if it is probable that such rates will be charged and collected. The FPSC has the authority to disallow
recovery of costs that it considers excessive or imprudently incurred. Future FPSC decisions could impact the accounting for
regulated operations, including decisions about the amount of recoverable costs and any refunds that may be required. As a
result of this cost-based regulation, FPL follows the accounting guidance that allows regulators to create assets and impose
liabilities, based on the probability of future cash flows, that would not be recorded by non-rate regulated entities. Regulatory
assets and fiabilities represent probable future revenues that will be recovered from or refunded to customers through the
ratemaking process.

We identified the impact of rate regulation as a critical audit matter due to the requirement to have auditors with deep knowledge
of and significant experience with accounting for rate regulation and the rate setting process due to its inherent complexities.

How the Critical Audit Matter Was Addressed in the Audit
Qur audit procedures related to the impact of rate regulation included the following, among others:

+  We tested the effectiveness of management's controls over the evaluation of the likelihood of (1) the recovery in future
rates of costs incurred as property, plant, and equipment and deferred as regulatory assets, and (2) a refund or a future
reduction in rates that should be reported as regulatory liabilities. We also tested the effectiveness of management’s
controls over the initial recognition of amounts as property, plant, and equipment and regulatory assets or liabilities,
including storm restoration costs; the depreciation and amortization of such amounts in accordance with FPSC orders;
and the monitoring and evaluation of regulatory developments that may affect the likelihood of recovering costs
recognized as property, plant and equipment and regulatory assets in future rates or of a refund or future reduction in
rates that should be recognized as a regulatory liability.

+  We assessed the likelihood of (1) recovery of recorded regulatory assets and (2) obligations requiring future reductions
in rates by obtaining, reading, and evaluating relevant regulatory orders issued by the FPSC to FPL, and considering
regulatory precedents established by the FPSC. We also evaluated such regulatory orders and other publicly available
filings made by FPL and compared them to management's recorded regulatory asset and liability balances for
completeness.

«  We evaluated FPL's disclosures related to the impacts of rate regulation, including the balances recorded and
regulatory developments.

DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Boca Raton, Florida
February 14, 2025

We have served as NEE's and FPL's auditor since 1950.
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NEXTERA ENERGY, INC. AND FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

« In addition, FPL received base rate increases associated with the addition of up to 894 megawatts (MW) annually of new
solar generation (through a Solar Base Rate Adjustment (SoBRA) mechanism) in each of 2024 and 2025. FPL's recovery
through the SoBRA mechanism was limited to an installed cost cap of $1,250 per kilowatt.

+  FPL's authorized regulatory return on common equity (ROE) was 10.60%, with a range of 9.70% to 11.70%. However, in the
event the average 30-year U.S. Treasury rate was 2.49% or greater over a consecutive six-month period, FPL was
authorized to increase the regulatory ROE to 10.80% with a range of 9.80% to 11.80%. During August 2022, this provision
was triggered and effective September 1, 2022, FPL's authorized regulatory ROE and ROE range were increased. If FPL's
earned regulatory ROE falls below 9.80%, FPL may seek retail base rate relief. If the earned regulatory ROE rises above
11.80%, any party with standing may seek a review of FPL's retail base rates.

«  Subject to certain conditions, FPL may amortize, over the term of the 2021 rate agreement, up to $1.45 billion of
depreciation reserve surplus, provided that in any year of the 2021 rate agreement FPL must amortize at least enough
reserve amount to maintain its minimum authorized regulatory ROE and also may not amortize any reserve amount that
would result in an earned regulatory ROE in excess of its maximum authorized reguiatory ROE.

- FPL is authorized to expand SolarTogether®, a voluntary community solar program that gives FPL electric customers an
opportunity to participate directly in the expansion of solar energy where participants pay a fixed monthly subscription
charge and receive credits on their related monthly customer bill, by constructing an additional 1,788 MW of solar generation
from 2022 through 2025, such that the total capacity of SolarTogether® would be 3,278 MW.

«  Future storm restoration costs would be recoverable on an interim basis beginning 60 days from the filing of a cost recovery
petition, but capped at an amount that produces a surcharge of no more than $4 for every 1,000 kilowatt-hour (kWh) of
usage on residential bills during the first 12 months of cost recovery. Any additional costs would be eligible for recovery in
subsequent years. If storm restoration costs exceed $800 million in any given calendar year, FPL may request an increase
to the $4 surcharge. See Storm Funds, Storm Reserves and Storm Cost Recovery below.

« If federal or state permanent corporate income tax changes become effective during the term of the 2021 rate agreement,
FPL will prospectively adjust base rates after a review by the FPSC.

In March 2024, the FPSC issued a supplemental final order regarding FPL's 2021 rate agreement. The order affirmed the
FPSC's prior approval of the 2021 rate agreement and is intended to further document, as requested by the Florida Supreme
Court, how the evidence presented led to and supports the FPSC's decision to approve FPL's 2021 rate agreement. In April
2024, Florida Rising, Inc., Environmental Confederation of Southwest Florida, Inc. and League of United Latin American Citizens
of Florida (collectively, the appellants) submitted a notice of appeal to the Florida Supreme Court regarding the FPSC's
supplemental final order. The Florida Supreme Court issued an order granting FPL's motion to expedite the schedule. Oral
arguments were held in October 2024, and the appeal remains pending.

FPL 2025 Base Rate Proceeding — On December 30, 2024, FPL filed a formal notification with the FPSC indicating its intent to
initiate a base rate proceeding by submitting a four-year rate plan that would begin in January 2026 replacing the 2021 rate
agreement. The notification states that, based on preliminary estimates, FPL expects to request a general base revenue
requirement increase of approximately $1.55 billion effective January 2026 and a subsequent increase of approximately
$930 million effective January 2027. The plan is also expected to request authority for a Solar and Battery Base Rate Adjustment
mechanism to recover, subject to FPSC review, the revenue requirements associated with building and operating additional solar
and battery storage projects in 2028 and 2029. In addition, FPL expects to propose an allowed regulatory ROE midpoint of
11.90% and to incorporate the continued application of FPL's longstanding equity ratio approved in prior base rate cases. FPL
expects to file its formal request to initiate a base rate proceeding on or around February 28, 2025.

Electric Plant, Depreciation and Amortization — The cost of additions to units of property of FPL and NEER is added to electric
plant in service and other property. In accordance with regulatory accounting, the cost of FPL's and NEER's rate-regulated
transmission businesses' units of utility property retired, less estimated net salvage value, is charged to accumulated
depreciation. Maintenance and repairs of property as well as replacements and renewals of items determined to be less than
units of utility property are charged to other operations and maintenance (O&M) expenses. The American Recovery and
Reinvestment Act of 2009, as amended, provided for an option to elect a cash grant (convertible investment tax credits (ITCs))
for certain renewable energy property (renewable property). Convertible ITCs are recorded as a reduction in property, plant and
equipment on NEE's and FPL's consolidated balance sheets and are amortized as a reduction to depreciation and amortization
expense over the estimated life of the related property. At December 31, 2024 and 2023, convertible ITCs, net of amortization,
were approximately $607 million ($100 million at FPL) and $633 million ($106 million at FPL).

Depreciation of FPL's electric property is provided on a straight-line basis, primarily over its average remaining useful life. FPL
includes in depreciation expense a provision for electric generation plant dismantlement, interim asset removal costs, accretion
related to asset retirement obligations (see Decommissioning of Nuclear Plants, Dismantlement of Plants and Other Accrued
Asset Removal Costs below) and storm recovery amortization. For substantially all of FPL's property, depreciation studies are
performed periodically and filed with the FPSC which result in updated depreciation rates. Reserve amortization is recorded as
either an increase or decrease to accrued asset removal costs which is reflected in noncurrent regulatory assets on NEE's and
FPL's consolidated balance sheets. FPL files a twelve-month forecast with the FPSC each year which contains a regulatory ROE
intended to be earned based on the best information FPL has at that time assuming normal weather. This forecast establishes a
targeted regulatory ROE. In order to earn the targeted regulatory ROE in each reporting period subject to the conditions of the
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effective rate agreement, reserve amortization is calculated using a trailing thirteen-month average of retail rate base and capital
structure in conjunction with the trailing twelve months regulatory retail base net operating income, which primarily includes the
retail base portion of base and other revenues, net of O&M, depreciation and amortization, interest and tax expenses. In general,
the net impact of these income statement line items is adjusted, in part, by reserve amortization or its reversal to earn the
targeted regulatory ROE. See Rate Regulation — Base Rates Effective January 2022 through December 2025 above.

NEER's electric plant in service and other property less salvage value, if any, are depreciated primarily using the straight-line
method over their estimated useful lives. NEER reviews the estimated useful lives of its fixed assets on an ongoing basis.
NEER's natural gas and oil production assets are accounted for under the successful efforts method. Depletion expenses for the
acquisition of reserve rights and development costs are recognized using the unit of production method. Depreciation of NEER's
rate-regulated transmission assets are provided on a straight-line basis, primarily over their average remaining useful life. NEER
includes in depreciation expense a provision for dismantlement, interim asset removal costs and accretion related to asset
retirement obligations. For substantially all of NEER's rate-regulated transmission assets, depreciation studies are performed
periodically and filed with FERC which result in updated depreciation rates.

Nuclear Fuel — FPL and NEER have several contracts for the supply of uranium and the conversion, enrichment and fabrication
of nuclear fuel. See Note 15 — Contracts. FPL's and NEER's nuclear fuel costs are charged to fuel expense on a unit of
production method.

Construction Activity — Aliowance for funds used during construction (AFUDC) is a noncash item which represents the allowed
cost of capital, including an ROE, used to finance construction projects. FPL records the portion of AFUDC attributable to
borrowed funds as a reduction of interest expense and the remainder as other income. FPSC rules limit the recording of AFUDC
to projects that have an estimated cost in excess of 0.4% of a utility's plant in service balance and require more than one year to
complete. FPSC rules allow construction projects below the applicable threshold as a component of rate base.

FPL's construction work in progress includes construction materials, progress payments on major equipment contracts,
engineering costs, AFUDC and other costs directly associated with the construction of various projects. Upon completion of the
projects, these costs are transferred to electric utility plant in service and other property. Capitalized costs associated with
construction activities are charged to O&M expenses when recoverability is no longer probable.

NEER capitalizes project development costs once it is probable that such costs will be realized through the ultimate construction
of the related asset or sale of development rights. At December 31, 2024 and 2023, NEER's capitalized development costs
totaled approximately $1.6 billion and $1.5 billion, respectively, which are included in noncurrent other assets on NEE's
consolidated balance sheets. These costs include land rights and other third-party costs directly associated with the development
of a new project. Upon commencement of construction, these costs either are transferred to construction work in progress or
remain in other assets, depending upon the nature of the cost. Capitalized development costs are charged to O&M expenses
when it is probable that these costs will not be realized.

NEER's construction work in progress includes construction materials, progress payments on major equipment contracts, third-
party engineering costs, capitalized interest and other costs directly associated with the construction and development of various
projects. Interest expense allocated from NextEra Energy Capital Haldings, Inc. (NEECH) to NextEra Energy Resources is based
on a deemed capital structure of 70% debt and differential membership interests sold by NextEra Energy Resources’
subsidiaries. Upon commencement of project operation, costs associated with construction work in progress are transferred to
electric plant in service and other property.

Asset Retirement Obligations — NEE and FPL each account for asset retirement obligations and conditional asset retirement
obligations (collectively, AROs) under accounting guidance that requires a liability for the fair value of an ARO to be recognized in
the period in which it is incurred if it can be reasonably estimated, with the offsetting associated asset retirement costs
capitalized as part of the carrying amount of the long-lived assets. NEE's AROs relate primarily to decommissioning obligations
of FPL's and NEER's nuclear units and to obligations for the dismantlement of certain of NEER's wind and solar facilities. See
Decommissioning of Nuclear Plants, Dismantlement of Plants and Other Accrued Asset Removal Costs below and Note 11,

For NEE's rate-regulated operations, including FPL, the asset retirement cost is allocated to a regulatory liability or regulatory
asset using a systematic and rational method over the asset's estimated useful life. Changes in the ARO resulting from the
passage of time are recognized as an increase in the carrying amount of the ARO and a decrease in the regulatory liability or
regulatory asset. Changes resulting from revisions to the timing or amount of the original estimate of cash flows are recognized
as an increase or a decrease in the ARO and asset retirement cost, or regulatory liability when asset retirement cost is depleted.

For NEE's non-rate regulated operations, the asset retirement cost is allocated to expense using a systematic and rational
method over the asset's estimated useful life. Changes in the ARO resuiting from the passage of time are recognized as an
increase in the carrying amount of the liability and as accretion expense, which is included in depreciation and amortization
expense in NEE's consolidated statements of income. Changes resulting from revisions to the timing or amount of the original
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required to be sold prior to recovery of the amortized cost basis, which are recognized in other — net in NEE's consolidated
statements of income. Market adjustments for equity securities are recorded in change in unrealized gains (losses) on equity
securities held in NEER's nuclear decommissioning funds — net in NEE's consolidated statements of income. Fund earnings,
consisting of dividends, interest and realized gains and losses are recognized in income and are reinvested in the funds. The tax
effects of amounts not yet recognized for tax purposes are included in deferred income taxes.

Major Maintenance Costs — FPL expenses costs associated with planned maintenance for its non-nuclear electric generation
plants as incurred. FPL recognizes costs associated with planned major nuclear maintenance in accordance with regulatory
treatment. FPL defers nuclear maintenance costs for each nuclear unit's planned outage to a regulatory asset as the costs are
incurred. FPL amortizes the costs to O&M expense using the straight-line method over the period from the end of the current
outage to the next planned outage where the respective work scope is performed.

NEER uses the deferral method to account for certain planned major maintenance costs. NEER's major maintenance costs for
its nuclear generation units, combustion turbines and battery storage are capitalized (included in noncurrent other assets on
NEE's consolidated balance sheets) and amortized to O&M expense using the straight-line method over the period from the end
of the current outage to the next planned outage where the respective work scope is performed.

Cash Equivalents — Cash equivalents consist of short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of generally three
months or less.

Restricted Cash — At December 31, 2024 and 2023, NEE had approximately $159 million ($101 million for FPL) and $730 million
($15 million for FPL), respectively, of restricted cash, which, at December 31, 2024, was offset by $244 million of cash received
on exchange-traded derivative positions resulting in a balance of $(85) million. Restricted cash accounts are included in current
other assets on NEE's and FPL's consolidated balance sheets and primarily relate to debt service payments and margin cash
collateral requirements (funding) at NEER and bond proceeds held for construction at FPL. In addition, where offsetting positions
exist, restricted cash related to margin cash collateral of $279 million is netted against derivative assets at December 31, 2024
and $194 million is netted against derivative assets and $815 million is netted against derivative liabilities at December 31, 2023.
See Note 3.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts and Credit Losses — NEE, including FPL, follows the current expected credit loss model to
account for credit losses for financial assets measured at amortized cost, which includes customer accounts receivable. FPL
maintains an accumulated provision for uncollectible customer accounts receivable that is estimated using a percentage derived
from historical revenue and write-off trends, adjusted for current events and forecasts. NEER regularly reviews collectibility of its
receivables and establishes a provision for losses estimated as a percentage of accounts receivable based on the historical bad
debt write-off trends, adjusted for current events and forecasts. When necessary, NEER uses the specific identification method
for all other receivables. NEE's credit department monitors current and forward credit exposure to counterparties and their
affiliates using established standards and credit quality indicators such as credit ratings, certain financial ratios and delinquency
trends. NEE requires credit enhancements or secured payment terms from customers who do not meet the minimum criteria.

For the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022, NEE recorded approximately $52 million, $77 million and $113 million,
respectively, of bad debt expense, including credit losses, which are included in O&M expenses in NEE's consolidated
statements of income.

Inventory - FPL values materials, supplies and fuel inventory using a weighted-average cost method. NEER's materials, supplies
and fuel inventories, which include emissions allowances and renewable energy credits, are carried at the lower of weighted-
average cost and net realizable value, unless evidence indicates that the weighted-average cost will be recovered with a normal
profit upon sale in the ordinary course of business.

Energy Trading — NEE provides full energy and capacity requirements services primarily to distribution utilities, which include
load-following services and various ancillary services, in certain markets and engages in power and fuel marketing and trading
activities to optimize the value of electricity and fuel contracts, generation facilities and natural gas and oil production assets, as
well as to take advantage of projected favorable commodity price movements. Trading contracts that meet the definition of a
derivative are accounted for at fair value and realized gains and losses from all trading contracts, including those where physical
delivery is required, are recorded net for all periods presented. See Note 3.

Storm Funds, Storm Reserves and Storm Cost Recovery — The storm funds provide coverage toward FPL's storm damage
costs. Marketable securities held in the storm funds are carried at fair value. See Note 4. Fund earnings, consisting of dividends,
interest and realized gains and losses, net of taxes, are reinvested in the funds. Fund earnings, as well as any changes in
unrealized gains and losses, are not recognized in income and are reflected as a corresponding adjustment to the storm reserve,
The tax effects of amounts not yet recognized for tax purposes are included in deferred income taxes. The storm funds are
included in special use funds and the storm reserves in noncurrent regulatory liabilities or, in the case of a deficit, in regulatory
assets on NEE's and FPL's consolidated balance sheets.
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December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively, and is expected to be approximately $55 million, $54 million, $50 million, $46
million and $45 million for 2025, 2026, 2027, 2028 and 2029, respectively.

Goodwill and other intangible assets not subject to amortization are assessed for impairment at least annually by applying a fair
value-based analysis. Other intangible assets subject to amortization are periodically reviewed when impairment indicators are
present to assess recoverability from future operations using undiscounted future cash flows.

Pension Plan — NEE records the service cost component of net periodic benefit income to O&M expense and the non-service
cost component to other net periodic benefit income in NEE's consolidated statements of income. NEE allocates net periodic
pension income to its subsidiaries based on the pensionable earnings of the subsidiaries' employees. Accounting guidance
requires recognition of the funded status of the pension plan in the balance sheet, with changes in the funded status recognized
in other comprehensive income within shareholders' equity in the year in which the changes occur. Since NEE is the plan
sponsor, and its subsidiaries do not have separate rights to the plan assets or direct obligations to their employees, this
accounting guidance is reflected at NEE and not allocated to the subsidiaries. The portion of previously unrecognized actuarial
gains and losses and prior service costs or credits that are estimated to be allocable to FPL as net periodic (income) cost in
future periods and that otherwise would be recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (AOCI) are classified as
regulatory assets and liabilities at NEE in accordance with regulatory treatment. See Note 12 — Employee Pension Plan and
Other Benefits Plans.

Stock-Based Compensation — NEE accounts for stock-based payment transactions based on grant-date fair value.
Compensation costs for awards with graded vesting are recognized on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period for
the entire award. Forfeitures of stock-based awards are recognized as they occur. See Note 14 — Stock-Based Compensation.

Retirement of Long-Term Debt — For NEE's rate-regulated subsidiaries, including FPL, gains and losses that resuit from
differences in reacquisition cost and the net book value of long-term debt which is retired are deferred as a regulatory asset or
liability and amortized to interest expense ratably over the remaining life of the original issue, which is consistent with their
treatment in the ratemaking process. NEE's non-rate regulated subsidiaries recognize such differences in interest expense at the
time of retirement.

Structured Payables — Under NEE's structured payables program, subsidiaries of NEE issue negotiable drafts, backed by
NEECH guarantees, to settle invoices with suppliers with payment terms (on average approximately 90 days) that extend the
original invoice due date (typically 30 days) and include a service fee. At their discretion, the suppliers may assign the negotiable
drafts and the rights under the NEECH guarantees to financial institutions. NEE and its subsidiaries are not party to any
contractual agreements between their suppliers and the applicable financial institutions.

At December 31, 2024 and 2023, NEE's outstanding obligations under its structured payables program were approximately $4.0
billion and $4.7 billion, respectively, substantially all of which is included in accounts payable on NEE's consolidated balance
sheets.

A roliforward of NEE's structured payables is as follows:
December 31,
2024
{millions)

Invoices added to the program 6,363

Obligations outstanding at the end of the year $ 3,988

Income Taxes — Deferred income taxes are recognized on all significant temporary differences between the financial statement
and tax bases of assets and liabilities, and are presented as noncurrent on NEE's and FPL's consolidated balance sheets. In
connection with the tax sharing agreement between NEE and certain of its subsidiaries, the income tax provision at each
applicable subsidiary reflects the use of the "separate return method,” except that tax benefits that could not be used on a
separate return basis, but are used on the consolidated tax return, are recorded by the applicable subsidiary that generated the
tax benefits. Any remaining consolidated income tax benefits or expenses are recorded at the corporate level. Included in other
regulatory assets and other regulatory liabilities on NEE's and FPL's consolidated balance sheets is the revenue equivalent of
the difference in deferred income taxes computed under accounting rules, as compared to regulatory accounting rules. The net
regulatory liability totaled $2,916 million ($2,880 million for FPL) and $3,195 million ($3,145 million for FPL) at December 31,
2024 and 2023, respectively, and is being amortized in accordance with the regulatory treatment over the estimated lives of the
assets or liabilities for which the deferred tax amount was initially recognized.

Production tax credits (PTCs) are recognized as wind and solar energy is generated and sold based on a per kWh rate
prescribed in applicable federal and state statutes and are recorded as a reduction of current income taxes payable, unless
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limited by tax law in which instance they are recorded as deferred tax assets. NEER recognizes ITCs as a reduction to income
tax expense when the related energy property is placed into service. FPL recognizes ITCs as a reduction to income tax expense
over the depreciable life of the related energy property. At December 31, 2024 and 2023, FPL’'s accumulated deferred ITCs were
approximately $966 million and $997 million, respectively, and are included in noncurrent regulatory liabilities on NEE's and
FPL's consolidated balance sheets. For taxable years beginning after 2022, renewable energy tax credits generated during the
taxable year can be transferred to an unrelated purchaser for cash and are accounted for under Accounting Standards
Codification 740 — Income Taxes. Proceeds resulting from the sales of renewable energy tax credits for the years ended
December 31, 2024 and 2023 of approximately $1,304 million and $370 million, respectively, are reported in the cash paid
(received) for income taxes — net within the supplemental disclosures of cash flow information on NEE's consolidated statements
of cash flows.

A valuation allowance is recorded to reduce the carrying amounts of deferred tax assets when it is more likely than not that such
assets will not be realized. NEE recognizes interest income (expense) related to unrecognized tax benefits (liabilities) in interest
income and interest expense, respectively, net of the amount deferred at FPL. At FPL, the offset to accrued interest receivable
(payable) on income taxes is classified as a regulatory liability (requlatory asset) which will be amortized to income (expense)
over a five-year period upon settlement in accordance with regulatory treatment. All tax positions taken by NEE in its income tax
returns that are recognized in the financial statements must satisfy a more-likely-than-not threshotd. NEE and its subsidiaries file
income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction and various states, the most significant of which is Florida, and certain foreign
jurisdictions. Federal tax liabilities, with the exception of certain refund claims, are effectively settled for all years prior to 2019.
State and foreign tax liabilities, which have varied statutes of limitations regarding additional assessments, are generally
effectively settled for years prior to 2019. At December 31, 2024, NEE had unrecognized tax benefits of approximately $130
million that, if recognized, could impact the annual effective income tax rate. The amounts of unrecognized tax benefits and
related interest accruals may change within the next 12 months; however, NEE and FPL do not expect these changes to have a
significant impact on NEE’s or FPL’s financial statements. See Note 5.

Noncontrolling Interests — Noncontrolling interests represent the portions of net assets in consolidated entities that are not owned
by NEE and are reported as a component of equity on NEE's consolidated balance sheets. At December 31, 2024,
noncontrolling interests on NEE's consolidated balance sheets primarily reflects the interests related to differential membership
interests discussed below, as well as other noncontrolling interests in certain wind and solar generation and transmission
facilities sold to non-affiliated parties and XPLR Infrastructure Partners, LP (XPLR) (formerly NextEra Energy Partners, LP).

Certain subsidiaries of NextEra Energy Resources have sold Class B noncontrolling membership interests in entities that have
ownership interests in wind generation, solar generation and battery storage facilities, with generating/storage capacity in
operation or under construction totaling approximately 11,258 MW, 4,084 MW and 1,919 MW, respectively, at December 31,
2024, to third-party investors (differential membership interests). The third-party investors are allocated earnings, tax attributes
and cash flows in accordance with the respective limited liability company agreements. Those economics are allocated primarily
to the third-party investors until they receive a targeted return (the flip date) and thereafter to NEE. NEE has the right to call the
third-party interests at specified amounts if and when the flip date occurs. NEE has determined the allocation of economics
between the controlling party and third-party investor should not follow the respective ownership percentages for each wind
generation, solar generation and battery storage project but rather the hypotheticat liquidation of book value (HLBV) method
based on the governing provisions in each respective limited liability company agreement. Under the HLBV method, the amounts
of income and loss attributable to the noncontrolling interest reflects changes in the amount the owners would hypothetically
receive at each balance sheet date under the respective liquidation provisions, assuming the net assets of these entities were
liquidated at the recorded amounts, after taking into account any capital transactions, such as contributions and distributions,
between the entities and the owners. At the point in time that the third-party investor, in hypothetical liquidation, would achieve its
targeted return, NEE attributes the additional hypothetical proceeds to the differential membership interests based on the call
price. A loss attributable to noncontrolling interests on NEE’s consolidated statements of income represents earnings attributable
to NEE.

At December 31, 2024 and 2023, approximately $9,062 million and $8,857 million, respectively, of noncontrolling interests on
NEE's consolidated balance sheets relates to differential membership interests. For the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023
and 2022, NEE recorded earnings of approximately $1,329 million, $1,135 million and $987 miliion, respectively, associated with
differential membership interests, which is reflected as net loss attributable to noncontrolling interests on NEE's consolidated
statements of income.

Redeemable Noncontrolling Interests — Certain subsidiaries of NextEra Energy Resources sold Class B noncontrolling
membership interests in entities that have ownership interests in wind generation, as well as solar and solar plus battery storage
facilities to third-party investors. As specified in the respective limited liability company agreements, if, subject to certain
contingencies, certain events occur, including, among others, those that would delay completion or cancel any of the underlying
projects, an investor has the option to require NEER to return all or part of its investment. As these potential redemptions were
outside of NEER's control, these balances were classified as redeemable noncontrolling interests on NEE's consolidated balance
sheets as of December 31, 2024 and 2023. During 2024, the contingencies associated with the December 31, 2023 balance
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were resolved and reclassified to noncontrolling interests. The contingencies associated with the December 31, 2024 balance
are expected to be resolved in 2025.

Variable Interest Entities (VIEs) — An entity is considered to be a VIE when its total equity investment at risk is not sufficient to
permit the entity to finance its activities without additional subordinated financial support, or its equity investors, as a group, lack
the characteristics of having a controlling financial interest. A reporting company is required to consolidate a VIE as its primary
beneficiary when it has both the power to direct the activities of the VIE that most significantly impact the VIE's economic
performance, and the obligation to absorb losses or the right to receive benefits from the VIE that could potentially be significant
to the VIE. NEE and FPL evaluate whether an entity is a VIE whenever reconsideration events as defined by the accounting
guidance occur. See Note 9.

Leases — NEE and FPL determine if an arrangement is a lease at inception. NEE and FPL recognize a right-of-use (ROU) asset
and a lease liability for operating and finance leases by recognizing and measuring leases at the commencement date based on
the present value of lease payments over the lease term. For sales-type leases, the book value of the leased asset is removed
from the balance sheet and a net investment in sales-type lease is recognized based on fixed payments under the contract and
the residual value of the asset being leased. NEE and FPL have elected not to apply the recognition requirements to short-term
leases and not to separate nonlease components from associated lease components for all classes of underlying assets except
for purchased power agreements. ROU assets are included in noncurrent other assets, lease liabilities are included in current
and noncurrent other liabilities and net investments in sales-type leases are included in current and noncurrent other assets on
NEE's and FPL's consolidated balance sheets. Operating lease expense is included in O&M or fuel, purchased power and
interchange expenses, interest and amortization expenses associated with finance leases are included in interest expense and
depreciation and amortization expense, respectively, and rental income associated with operating leases and interest income
associated with sales-type leases are included in operating revenues in NEE's and FPL's consolidated statements of income.
See Note 10.

Disposal of Businesses/Assets — In 2023, FPL sold its ownership interests in its Florida City Gas business for cash proceeds of
approximately $924 million. In connection with the sale, a gain of approximately $406 million ($306 million after tax at NEE and
$300 million after tax at FPL) was recorded in NEE's and FPL's consolidated statements of income for the year ended
December 31, 2023 and is included in gains on disposal of businesses/assets — net.

In September 2024, subsidiaries of NextEra Energy Resources sold 100% ownership interests in certain natural gas and oil
shale formations and, as part of a joint venture (pipeline joint venture), sold an ownership interest, representing an approximately
15% economic interest, in three natural gas pipeline facilities located in the southern U.S. for total cash proceeds of
approximately $101 million (subject to post-closing adjustments). A NextEra Energy Resources subsidiary has operated and
continues to operate two of the pipeline facilities included in the sale. In connection with the sale, a gain of approximately
$120 miliion (877 million after tax) was recorded in NEE's consolidated statements of income for the year ended December 31,
2024 and is included in gains on disposal of businesses/assets — net. Total assets of approximately $2,211 million, primarily
property, plant and equipment and investment in equity method investees, and total liabilities of approximately $1,833 million,
primarily long-term debt, were removed from NEE's balance sheet and an equity method investment of approximately
$396 million was recorded as a result of the transaction. NEE's remaining interest, an approximately 85% economic interest, in
the pipeline joint venture is a noncontrolling interest based on the governance structure of the joint venture. The fair value of
NEE’s retained interest was calculated based on significant estimates and assumptions, including Level 3 (unobservable) inputs.
Estimates and assumptions include the projected timing and amount of future cash flows, discount rates reflecting risk inherent in
future cash flows and future market prices.

In September 2024, subsidiaries of NextEra Energy Resources sold an ownership interest, representing an approximately 65%
economic interest, as part of a joint venture (renewable assets joint venture), consisting of a portfolio of five wind generation
facilities and three solar generation facilities located in geographically diverse locations throughout the U.S. with a total
generating capacity of 1,634 MW, for cash proceeds of approximately $900 million. A NextEra Energy Resources subsidiary
continues to operate the facilities included in the sale. In connection with the sale, a gain of approximately $103 million
($76 million after tax) was recorded in NEE's consolidated statements of income for the year ended December 31, 2024 and is
included in gains on disposal of businesses/assets — net. Total assets of approximately $2,520 million, primarily property, plant
and equipment, and total noncontrolling interests of approximately $844 million were removed from NEE's balance sheet and an
equity method investment of approximately $831 million was recorded as a result of the transaction. NEE's remaining interest, an
approximately 35% economic interest, in the renewable assets joint venture is a noncontrolling interest based on the governance
structure of the joint venture. Upon the projects in the renewable assets joint venture obtaining financing in the fourth quarter of
2024, NEE received a distribution of approximately $386 million. The fair value of NEE's retained interest was calculated based
on significant estimates and assumptions, including Level 3 (unobservable) inputs. Estimates and assumptions include the
projected timing and amount of future cash flows, discount rates reflecting risk inherent in future cash flows and future market
prices.

In 2023, subsidiaries of NextEra Energy Resources sold to an XPLR subsidiary their 100% ownership interests in five wind
generation facilities and three solar generation facilities located in geographically diverse locations throughout the U.S. with a
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total generating capacity of 688 MW for cash proceeds of approximately $566 million, plus working capital of $32 million. A
NextEra Energy Resources subsidiary continues to operate the facilities included in the sale.

In 2022, subsidiaries of NextEra Energy Resources sold (i) a 49% controlling ownership interest in three wind generation
facilities and one solar plus battery facility located in geographically diverse locations throughout the U.S. with a total generating
capacity of 1,437 MW and 65 MW of battery storage capacity, two of which facilities were under construction, and (ii) their 100%
ownership interest in three wind generation facilities located in the Midwest region of the U.S. with a total generating capacity of
347 MW to an XPLR subsidiary for cash proceeds of approximately $805 million, plus working capital and other adjustments of
$8 million. NEER continued to consolidate one of the projects under construction for accounting purposes through March 2023
and the second project under construction through July 2023. A NextEra Energy Resources subsidiary continues to operate the
facilities included in the sale. In connection with the sale, a gain of approximately $301 million ($230 million after tax) was
recorded in NEE's consolidated statements of income for the year ended December 31, 2022 and is included in the gains on
disposal of businesses/assets — net. In connection with the two facilities that were under construction, approximately $251 million
of cash received was recorded as contract liabilities on NEE's consolidated balance sheet. The contract liabilities related to sale
proceeds from XPLR of approximately $150 million and differential membership interests of approximately $101 million. In 2023,
the two facilities achieved commercial operations and approximately $251 million of contract liabilities were reversed and the
sale of those facilities was recognized for accounting purposes. In addition, NextEra Energy Resources was responsible to pay
for all construction costs related to the portfolio. At December 31, 2023, approximately $68 million was included in accounts
payable on NEE's consolidated balance sheet and represented amounts owed by NextEra Energy Resources to XPLR to
reimburse XPLR for construction costs.

In 2022, subsidiaries of NextEra Energy Resources sold to an XPLR subsidiary a 67% controlling ownership interest in a battery
storage facility in California with storage capacity of 230 MW, for cash proceeds of approximately $191 million, plus working
capital and other adjustments of $2 million. A NextEra Energy Resources subsidiary continues to operate the facility included in
the sale. In connection with the sale, a gain of approximately $87 miliion ($66 million after tax) was recorded in NEE's
consolidated statements of income for the year ended December 31, 2022 and is included in gains on disposal of businesses/
assets — net.

In 2021, subsidiaries of NextEra Energy Resources sold their 100% ownership interest, comprised of a 50% controlling
ownership interest to an XPLR subsidiary and a 50% noncontroliing ownership interest to a third party, in a portfolio of seven
wind generation facilities and six solar generation facilities in geographically diverse locations throughout the U.S. representing a
total generating capacity of 2,520 MW and 115 MW of battery storage capacity, three of which facilities were under construction.
Total cash proceeds for these two separate transactions totaled approximately $1.7 billion. NEER continued to consolidate the
three projects under construction for accounting purposes through the first quarter of 2022. A NextEra Energy Resources
subsidiary continues to operate the facilities included in the sales. In connection with the three facilities that were under
construction, approximately $668 million of cash received was recorded as contract liabilities on NEE’s consoclidated balance.
Upon the three facilities achieving commercial operations and the resolution of contingencies, the contract liabilities were
reversed and the sale of those facilities was recognized for accounting purposes. In addition, a gain of approximately
$117 million was recorded in NEE's consolidated statements of income for the year ended December 31, 2022 which is included
in gains on disposal of businesses/assets — net.

2. Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Revenue is recognized when control of the promised goods or services is transferred to customers at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods and services. The promised goods or
services in the majority of NEE's contracts with customers is, at FPL, for the delivery of electricity based on tariff rates approved
by the FPSC and, at NEER, for the delivery of energy commodities and the availability of electric capacity and electric
transmission.

FPL and NEER generate substantially all of NEE's operating revenues, which primarily include revenues from contracts with
customers, as well as derivative (see Note 3) and lease transactions at NEER. For the vast majority of contracts with customers,
NEE believes that the obligation to deliver energy, capacity or transmission is satisfied over time as the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes benefits as NEE performs. In 2024, 2023 and 2022, NEE's revenue from contracts with customers was
approximately $23.5 billion ($16.9 billion at FPL), $24.8 billion ($18.2 billion at FPL) and $23.0 billion ($17.2 billion at FPL),
respectively. NEE's and FPL's receivables are primarily associated with revenues earned from contracts with customers, as well
as derivative and lease transactions at NEER, and consist of both billed and unbilled amounts, which are recorded in customer
receivables and other receivables on NEE's and FPL's consolidated balance sheets. Receivables represent unconditional rights
to consideration and reflect the differences in timing of revenue recognition and cash collections. For substantially all of NEE's
and FPL's receivables, regardless of the type of revenue transaction from which the receivable originated, customer and
counterpanty credit risk is managed in the same manner and the terms and conditions of payment are similar.
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FPL — FPL's revenues are derived primarily from tariff-based sales that result from providing electricity to retail customers in
Florida with no defined contractual term. Electricity sales to retail customers account for approximately 90% of FPL's 2024
operating revenues, the majority of which are to residential customers. FPL's retail customers receive a bill monthly based on the
amount of monthly kWh usage with payment due monthly. For these types of sales, FPL recognizes revenue as electricity is
delivered and billed to customers, as well as an estimate for electricity delivered and not yet billed. The billed and unbilled
amounts represent the value of electricity delivered to the customer. At December 31, 2024 and 2023, FPL's unbilled revenues
amounted to approximately $573 million and $633 million, respectively, and are included in customer receivables on NEE's and
FPL's consolidated balance sheets. Certain contracts with customers contain a fixed price with maturity dates through 2054. As
of December 31, 2024, FPL expects to record approximately $590 million of revenues related to the fixed price components of
such contracts over the remaining terms of the related contracts. Certain of these contracts also contain a variable price
component for energy usage which FPL recognizes as revenue as the energy is delivered based on rates stipulated in the
respective contracts.

NEER — NEER's revenue from contracts with customers is derived primarily from the sale of energy commaodities, electric
capacity and electric transmission. For these types of sales, NEER recognizes revenue as energy commodities are delivered and
as electric capacity and electric transmission are made available, consistent with the amounts billed to customers based on rates
stipulated in the respective contracts as well as an accrual for amounts earned but not yet billed. The amounts billed and accrued
represent the value of energy or transmission delivered and/or the capacity of energy or transmission available to the customer.
Revenues yet to be earned under these contracts, which have maturity dates ranging from 2025 to 2055, will vary based on the
volume of energy or transmission delivered and/or available. NEER's customers typically receive bills monthly with payment due
within 30 days. Certain contracts with customers contain a fixed price which primarily relate to electric capacity sales through
2038 and certain power purchase agreements with maturity dates through 2036. At December 31, 2024, NEER expects to record
approximately $800 million of revenues related to the fixed price components of such contracts over the remaining terms of the
related contracts as the capacity is provided. The power purchase agreements also contain a variable price component for
energy usage which NEER recognizes as revenue as the energy is delivered based on rates stipulated in the respective
contracts.

3. Derivative Instruments

NEE and FPL use derivative instruments (primarily swaps, options, futures and forwards) to manage the physical and financial
risks inherent in the purchase and sale of fuel and electricity, as well as interest rate and foreign currency exchange rate risk
assaciated primarily with outstanding and expected future debt issuances and borrowings, and to optimize the value of NEER's
power generation and natural gas and oif production assets. NEE and FPL do not utilize hedge accounting for their cash flow and
fair value hedges.

With respect to commodities related to NEE's competitive energy business, NEER employs risk management procedures to
conduct its activities related to optimizing the value of its power generation and natural gas and oil production assets, providing
full energy and capacity requirements services primarily to distribution utilities, and engaging in power and fuel marketing and
trading activities to take advantage of expected future favorable price movements and changes in the expected volatility of prices
in the energy markets. These risk management activities involve the use of derivative instruments executed within prescribed
limits to manage the risk associated with fluctuating commodity prices. Transactions in derivative instruments are executed on
recognized exchanges or via the over-the-counter markets, depending on the most favorable credit terms and market execution
factors. For NEER's power generation and natural gas and oil production assets, derivative instruments are used to hedge all or
a portion of the expected output of these assets. These hedges are designed to reduce the effect of adverse changes in the
wholesale forward commodity markets associated with NEER's power generation and natural gas and oil production assets. With
regard to full energy and capacity requirements services, NEER is required to vary the quantity of energy and related services
based on the load demands of the customers served. For this type of transaction, derivative instruments are used to hedge the
anticipated electricity quantities required to serve these customers and reduce the effect of unfavorable changes in the forward
energy markets. Additionally, NEER takes positions in energy markets based on differences between actual forward market
levels and management's view of fundamental market conditions, including supply/demand imbalances, changes in traditional
flows of energy, changes in short- and long-term weather patterns and anticipated regulatory and legislative outcomes. NEER
uses derivative instruments to realize value from these market dislocations, subject to strict risk management limits around
market, operational and credit exposure.

Derivative instruments, when required to be marked to market, are recorded on NEE's and FPL's consolidated balance sheets as
either an asset or liability measured at fair value. At FPL, substantially all changes in the derivatives' fair value are deferred as a
regulatory asset or liability until the contracts are settled, and, upon settlement, any gains or losses are passed through the fuel
and purchased power cost recovery clause (fuel clause). For NEE's non-rate regulated operations, predominantly NEER,
essentially all changes in the derivatives' fair value for power purchases and sales, fuel sales and trading activities are
recognized on a net basis in operating revenues and the equity method investees' related activity is recognized in equity in
earnings (losses) of equity method investees in NEE's consolidated statements of income. Settlement gains and losses are
included within the line items in the consolidated statements of income to which they relate. Transactions for which physical
delivery is deemed not to have occurred are presented on a net basis in the consolidated statements of income. For commodity
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derivatives, NEE believes that, where offsetting positions exist at the same location for the same time, the transactions are
considered to have been netted and therefore physical delivery has been deemed not to have occurred for financial reporting
purposes. Settlements related to derivative instruments are substantially all recognized in net cash provided by operating
activities in NEE's and FPL's consolidated statements of cash flows.

For interest rate and foreign currency derivative instruments, all changes in the derivatives' fair value, as well as the transaction
gain or loss on foreign denominated debt, are recognized in interest expense and the equity method investees' related activity is
recognized in equity in earnings (losses) of equity method investees in NEE's consolidated statements of income. At
December 31, 2024, NEE's AQCI included immaterial amounts related to discontinued interest rate cash flow hedges with
expiration dates through October 2033 and foreign currency cash flow hedges with expiration dates through September 2030.

Fair Value Measurements of Derivative Instruments — The fair value of assets and liabilities are determined using either
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets (Level 1) or other pricing inputs that are observable (Level 2) whenever that
information is available and using unobservable inputs (Level 3) to estimate fair value only when relevant observable inputs are
not available. NEE and FPL use different valuation techniques to measure the fair value of assets and liabilities, relying primarily
on the market approach of using prices and other market information for identical and/or similar assets and liabilities for those
assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis. NEE's and FPL's assessment of the significance of any
particular input to the fair value measurement requires judgment and may affect placement within the fair value hierarchy levels.
Non-performance risk, including the consideration of a credit valuation adjustment, is also considered in the determination of fair
value for all assets and liabilities measured at fair value.

NEE and FPL measure the fair value of commodity contracts using a combination of market and income approaches utilizing
prices observed on commodities exchanges and in the non-exchange traded markets, or through the use of industry-standard
valuation techniques, such as option modeling or discounted cash flows techniques, incorporating both observable and
unobservable valuation inputs. The resulting measurements are the best estimate of fair value as represented by the transfer of
the asset or liability through an orderly transaction in the marketplace at the measurement date.

Exchange-traded derivative assets and liabilities are valued using observable settlement prices from the exchanges and are
classified as Level 1 or Level 2, depending on whether positions are in active or inactive markets.

NEE, through its subsidiaries, including FPL, also enters into non-exchange traded commodity derivatives. The majority of the
valuation inputs are observable using exchange-quoted prices.

NEE, through NEER, also enters into full requirements contracts, which, in most cases, meet the definition of derivatives and are
measured at fair value. These contracts typically have one or more inputs that are not observable and are significant to the
valuation of the contract. In addition, certain non-exchange traded derivative options at NEE have one or more significant inputs
that are not observable, and are valued using industry-standard option models.

In all cases where NEE and FPL use significant unobservable inputs for the valuation of a commodity contract, consideration is
given to the assumptions that market participants would use in valuing the asset or liability. The primary input to the valuation
models for commodity contracts is the forward commaodity curve for the respective instruments. Other inputs include, but are not
limited to, assumptions about market liquidity, volatility, correlation and contract duration as more fully described below in
Significant Unobservable Inputs Used in Recurring Fair Value Measurements. In instances where the reference markets are
deemed to be inactive or do not have transactions for a similar contract, the derivative assets and liabilities may be valued using
significant other observable inputs and potentially significant unobservable inputs. In such instances, the valuation for these
contracts is established using techniques including extrapolation from or interpolation between actively traded contracts, or
estimated basis adjustments from liquid trading points. NEE and FPL regularly evaluate and validate the inputs used to
determine fair value by a number of methods, consisting of various market price verification procedures, including the use of
pricing services and broker quotes to support the market price of the various commodities. Where there are assumptions and
models used to generate inputs for valuing derivative assets and liabilities, the review and verification of the assumptions and
models are undertaken by individuals in an independent control function.

NEE uses interest rate contracts and foreign currency contracts to mitigate and adjust interest rate and foreign currency
exchange exposure related primarily to certain outstanding and expected future debt issuances and borrowings when deemed
appropriate based on market conditions or when required by financing agreements. NEE estimates the fair value of these
derivatives using an income approach based on a discounted cash flows valuation technique utilizing the net amount of
estimated future cash inflows and outflows related to the agreements.
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Credit-Risk-Related Contingent Features — Certain derivative instruments contain credit-risk-related contingent features
including, among other things, the requirement to maintain an investment grade credit rating from specified credit rating agencies
and certain financial ratios, as well as credit-related cross-default and material adverse change triggers. At December 31, 2024
and 2023, the aggregate fair value of NEE's derivative instruments with credit-risk-related contingent features that were in a
liability position was approximately $3.8 billion ($11 million for FPL) and $4.7 billion ($14 million for FPL), respectively.

If the credit-risk-related contingent features underlying these derivative agreements were triggered, certain subsidiaries of NEE,
including FPL, could be required to post collateral or settle contracts according to contractual terms which generally allow netting
of contracts in offsetting positions. Certain derivative contracts contain multiple types of credit-related triggers. To the extent
these contracts contain a credit ratings downgrade trigger, the maximum exposure is included in the following credit ratings
collateral posting requirements. If FPL's and NEECH's credit ratings were downgraded to BBB/Baa2 (a three level downgrade for
FPL and a one level downgrade for NEECH from the current lowest applicable rating), applicable NEE subsidiaries would be
required to post collateral such that the total posted collateral would be approximately $500 million (none at FPL) and $510
million (none at FPL) at December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. If FPL's and NEECH's credit ratings were downgraded to
below investment grade, applicable NEE subsidiaries would be required to post additional collateral such that the total posted
collateral would be approximately $2.4 billion ($25 million at FPL) and $2.4 billion ($15 million at FPL) at December 31, 2024 and
2023, respectively. Some derivative contracts do not contain credit ratings downgrade triggers, but do contain provisions that
require certain financial measures be maintained and/or have credit-related cross-default triggers. In the event these provisions
were triggered, applicable NEE subsidiaries could be required to post additional collateral of up to approximately $1.4 billion ($70
million at FPL) and $1.7 billion ($50 million at FPL) at December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

Collateral related to derivatives, including amounts posted for margin, current exposures and future performance with exchanges
and independent system operators, may be posted in the form of cash or credit support in the normal course of business. At
December 31, 2024 and 2023, applicable NEE subsidiaries have posted approximately $19 million (none at FPL) and $691
million (none at FPL), respectively, in cash and $1,334 million (none at FPL) and $1,595 million (none at FPL), respectively, in the
form of letters of credit and surety bonds each of which could be applied toward the collateral requirements described above.
FPL and NEECH have capacity under their credit facilities generally in excess of the collateral requirements described above that
would be available to support, among other things, derivative activities. Under the terms of the credit facilities, maintenance of a
specific credit rating is not a condition to drawing on these credit facilities, although there are other conditions to drawing on
these credit facilities.

Additionally, some contracts contain certain adequate assurance provisions whereby a counterparty may demand additional
collateral based on subjective events and/or conditions. Due to the subjective nature of these provisions, NEE and FPL are
unable to determine an exact value for these items and they are not included in any of the quantitative disclosures above.

4. Non-Derivative Fair Value Measurements

Non-derivative fair value measurements consist of NEE's and FPL's cash equivalents and restricted cash equivalents, special
use funds and other investments. The fair value of these financial assets is determined by using the valuation techniques and
inputs as described in Note 3 — Fair Value Measurements of Derivative Instruments as well as below.

Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash Equivalents — NEE and FPL hold investments primarily in money market funds. The fair
value of these funds is estimated using a market approach based on current observable market prices.

Special Use Funds and Other Investments — NEE and FPL hold primarily debt and equity securities directly, as well as indirectly
through commingled funds. Substantially all directly held equity securities are valued at their quoted market prices. For directly
held debt securities, multiple prices and price types are obtained from pricing vendors whenever possible, which enables cross-
provider validations. A primary price source is identified based on asset type, class or issue of each security. Commingled funds,
which are similar to mutual funds, are maintained by banks or investment companies and hold certain investments in accordance
with a stated set of objectives. The fair value of commingled funds is primarily derived from the quoted prices in active markets of
the underlying securities. Because the fund shares are offered to a limited group of investors, they are not considered to be
traded in an active market.

Fair Value Measurement Alternative — NEE holds investments in equity securities without readily determinable fair values, which
are initially recorded at cost, of approximately $665 million and $538 million at December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively, and
are included in noncurrent other assets on NEE's consolidated balance sheets. Adjustments to carrying values are recorded as a
result of observable price changes in transactions for identical or similar investments of the same issuer.

Recurring Non-Derivative Fair Value Measurements — NEE's and FPL's financial assets and other fair value measurements
made on a recurring basis by fair value hierarchy level are as follows:
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6. Acquisitions

RNG Acquisition — On March 21, 2023, a wholly owned subsidiary of NextEra Energy Resources acquired a portfolic of
renewable energy projects from the owners of Energy Power Partners Fund I, L.P. and North American Sustainable Energy
Fund, L.P., as well as the related service provider (RNG acquisition). The portfolio primarily consisted of 31 biogas projects, one
of which is an operating renewable natural gas facility and the others of which are primarily operating landfill gas-to-electric
facilities. The purchase price included approximately $1.1 billion in cash consideration and the assumption of approximately
$34 million of debt, excluding post-closing adjustments.

Under the acquisition method, the purchase price was allocated to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their fair
value. NEE acquired identifiable assets of approximately $1.3 billion, primarily relating to property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets associated with biogas rights agreements and above-market purchased power agreements, and assumed
liabilities of approximately $0.3 billion and noncontrolling interests of approximately $0.1 billion. The excess of the purchase price
over the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed resulted in approximately $0.3 billion of goodwill which has been
recognized on NEE's consolidated balance sheets, of which approximately $0.2 billion is expected to be deductible for tax
purposes. Goodwill associated with the RNG acquisition is reflected within NEER and, for impairment testing, is included in the
clean energy assets reporting unit. The goodwill arising from the transaction represents expected benefits of synergies and
expansion opportunities for NEE's clean energy businesses.

7. Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment consists of the following at December 31:

NEE FPL
2024 2023 2024 2023
(millions)
Nuclear fuel 1,676 1,564 1,140 1,125
Property, plant and equipment, gross 175,011 159,265 95,950 89,237
Property, plant and equipment — net $ 138852 $§ 125776 $ 76166 $ 70,608

FPL — At December 31, 2024, FPL's gross investment in electric plant in service and other property for the electric generation,
transmission, distribution and general facilities of FPL represented approximately 43%, 14%, 36% and 7%, respectively; the
respective amounts at December 31, 2023 were 43%, 14%, 36% and 7%. Substantially all of FPL's properties are subject to the
lien of FPL's mortgage, which secures most debt securities issued by FPL. The weighted annual composite depreciation and
amortization rate for FPL's electric plant in service, including capitalized software, but excluding the effects of decommissioning,
dismantlement and the depreciation adjustments discussed in the following sentences, was approximately 3.5%, 3.4% and 3.6%
for 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively. In accordance with the 2021 rate agreement (see Note 1 — Rate Regulation — Base Rates
Effective January 2022 through December 2025), FPL recorded reserve amortization in 2024 and 2023 of approximately
$328 million and $227 million, respectively. In 2022, FPL recorded a one-time reserve amortization adjustment of approximately
$114 million, as required under the 2021 rate agreement, 50% of which was used to reduce the capital recovery regulatory asset
balance and the other 50% to increase the storm reserve regulatory liability (see Note 1 — Storm Funds, Storm Reserves and
Storm Cost Recovery). During 2024, 2023 and 2022, FPL recorded AFUDC of approximately $245 million, $190 million and
$136 million, respectively, including the equity component of AFUDC of approximately $189 million, $155 million and
$105 million, respectively.

NEER — At December 31, 2024, wind, solar, nuclear and rate-regulated transmission facilities represented approximately 45%,
23%, 6% and 5%, respectively, of NEER's depreciable electric plant in service and other property; the respective amounts at
December 31, 2023 were 47%, 18%, 6% and 6%. The estimated useful lives of NEER's plants are primarily 30 to 35 years for
wind facilities, 30 to 35 years for solar facilities, 23 to 47 years for nuclear facilities and 40 years for rate-regulated transmission
facilities. NEER's natural gas and oil production assets represented approximately 15% and 16% of NEER's depreciable electric
plant in service and other property at December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. A number of NEER's generation and regulated
transmission facilities are encumbered by liens securing various financings. The net book value of NEER's assets serving as
collateral was approximately $30.1 billion at December 31, 2024. Interest capitalized on construction projects amounted to
approximately $439 million, $310 million and $172 million during 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

94






NEXTERA ENERGY, INC. AND FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

52.6% noncontrolling interest in XPLR, primarily through its limited partner interest in XPLR OpCo, and accounts for its
ownership interest in XPLR as an equity method investment. NextEra Energy Resources operates essentially all of the energy
projects owned by XPLR and provides services to XPLR under various related party operations and maintenance, administrative
and management services agreements (service agreements). NextEra Energy Resources is also party to a cash sweep and
credit support (CSCS) agreement with a subsidiary of XPLR. At December 31, 2024 and 2023, the cash sweep amounts (due to
XPLR and its subsidiaries) held in accounts belonging to NextEra Energy Resources or its subsidiaries were approximately
$127 million and $1,511 million, respectively, and are included in accounts payable. Fee income related to the CSCS agreement
and the service agreements totaled approximately $18 million, $59 million and $174 million for the years ended December 31,
2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively, and is included in operating revenues in NEE's consolidated statements of income. Amounts
due from XPLR of approximately $159 million and $84 million are included in other receivables and $128 million and $114 million
are included in noncurrent other assets at December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. NEECH or NextEra Energy Resources
guaranteed or provided indemnifications, letters of credit or surety bonds totaling approximately $1.3 billion at December 31,
2024 primarily related to obligations on bebhalf of XPLR's subsidiaries with maturity dates ranging from 2025 to 2059, including
certain project performance obligations and obligations under financing and interconnection agreements. Payment guarantees
and related contracts with respect to unconsolidated entities for which NEE or one of its subsidiaries are the guarantor are
recorded on NEE's consolidated balance sheets at fair value. At December 31, 2024, approximately $58 million related to the fair
value of the credit support provided under the CSCS agreement is recorded as noncurrent other liabilities on NEE's consolidated
balance sheet.

During 2024, 2023 and 2022, certain services, primarily engineering, construction, transportation, storage and maintenance
services, were provided to subsidiaries of NEE by related parties that NEE accounts for under the equity method of accounting.
Charges for these services amounted to approximately $749 million, $656 million and $579 million for the years ended
December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

9. Variable Interest Entities (VIEs)

NEER - At December 31, 2024, NEE consolidates a number of VIEs within the NEER segment. Subsidiaries within the NEER
segment are considered the primary beneficiary of these VIEs since they control the most significant activities of these VIEs,
including operations and maintenance, and they have the obligation to absorb expected losses of these VIEs.

Eight indirect subsidiaries of NextEra Energy Resources have an ownership interest ranging from approximately 50% to 67% in
entities which own and operate solar generation facilities with generating capacity of approximately 765 MW. Each of the
subsidiaries is considered a VIE since the non-managing members have no substantive rights over the managing members, and
is consolidated by NextEra Energy Resources. These entities sell their electric output to third parties under power sales contracts
with expiration dates ranging from 2035 through 2052. These entities have third-party debt which is secured by liens against the
assets of the entities. The debt holders have no recourse to the general credit of NextEra Energy Resources for the repayment of
debt. The assets and liabilities of these VIEs were approximately $1,708 million and $520 million, respectively, at December 31,
2024. There were eight of these consolidated VIEs at December 31, 2023 and the assets and liabilities of those VIEs at such
date totaled approximately $1,796 million and $1,085 million, respectively. At December 31, 2024 and 2023, the assets and
liabilities of these VIEs consisted primarily of property, plant and equipment and long-term debt.

NextEra Energy Resources consolidates a VIE which has a 10% direct ownership interest in wind and solar generation facilities
which have the capability of producing approximately 400 MW and 599 MW, respectively. These entities sell their electric output
under power sales contracts to third parties with expiration dates ranging from 2025 through 2040. These entities are also
considered a VIE because the holders of differential membership interests in these entities do not have substantive rights over
the significant activities of these entities. The assets and liabilities of the VIE were approximately $1,346 million and $76 million,
respectively, at December 31, 2024, and $1,434 million and $79 million, respectively, at December 31, 2023. At December 31,
2024 and 2023, the assets of this VIE consisted primarily of property, plant and equipment.

NextEra Energy Resources consolidates 30 VIEs that primarily relate to certain subsidiaries which have sold differential
membership interests in entities which own and operate wind generation, solar generation and battery storage facilities with
generating/storage capacity of approximately 10,446 MW, 3,485 MW and 1,719 MW, respectively, and own wind generation and
battery storage facilities that, upon completion of construction, which is anticipated in 2025, are expected to have generating/
storage capacity of approximately 412 MW and 200 MW, respectively. These entities sell, or will sell, their electric output either
under power sales contracts to third parties with expiration dates ranging from 2025 through 2054 or in the spot market. These
entities are considered VIEs because the holders of differential membership interests do not have substantive rights over the
significant activities of these entities. NextEra Energy Resources has financing obligations with respect to these entities,
including third-party debt which is secured by liens against the generation facilities and the other assets of these entities or by
pledges of NextEra Energy Resources' ownership interest in these entities. The debt holders have no recourse to the general
credit of NextEra Energy Resources for the repayment of debt. The assets and liabilities of these VIEs totaled approximately
$23,902 million and $1,546 million, respectively, at December 31, 2024. There were 33 of these consolidated VIEs at
December 31, 2023 and the assets and liabilities of those VIEs at such date totaled approximately $24,250 million and $3,148
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credit. At December 31, 2024, letters of credit outstanding under these credit facilities totaled approximately $3.6 billion ($4.0
million for FPL). There were no borrowings outstanding under these facilities at December 31, 2024.

NEE has guaranteed certain payment obligations of NEECH, including most of those under NEECH's debt, including all of its
debentures and commercial paper issuances, as well as most of its payment guarantees and indemnifications. NEECH has
guaranteed certain debt and other obligations of subsidiaries within the NEER segment.

In August 2022, NEECH completed a remarketing of $1.5 billion aggregate principal amount of its Series J Debentures due
September 1, 2024 that were issued in September 2019 as components of equity units issued concurrently by NEE (September
2019 equity units). The debentures were fully and unconditionally guaranteed by NEE. In connection with the remarketing of the
debentures, the interest rate on the debentures was reset to 4.255% per year, and interest is payable on March 1 and September
1 of each year, commencing September 1, 2022. In connection with the settlement of the contracts to purchase NEE common
stock that were issued as components of the September 2019 equity units, on September 1, 2022, NEE issued approximately
21.6 million shares of common stock in exchange for $1.5 billion.

In March 2023, NEECH completed a remarketing of $2.5 billion aggregate principal amount of its Series K Debentures due
March 1, 2025 that were issued in February 2020 as components of equity units issued concurrently by NEE (February 2020
equity units). The debentures are fully and unconditionally guaranteed by NEE. In connection with the remarketing of the
debentures, the interest rate on the debentures was reset to 6.051% per year, and interest is payable on March 1 and
September 1 of each year, commencing September 1, 2023. In connection with the settlement of the contracts to purchase NEE
common stock that were issued as components of the February 2020 equity units, on March 1, 2023, NEE issued approximately
33.4 million shares of common stock in exchange for $2.5 billion.

In August 2023, NEECH completed a remarketing of $2.0 billion aggregate principal amount of its Series L Debentures due
September 1, 2025 that were issued in September 2020 as components of equity units issued concurrently by NEE (September
2020 equity units). The debentures are fully and unconditionally guaranteed by NEE. In connection with the remarketing of the
debentures, the interest rate on the debentures was reset to 5.749% per year, and interest is payable on March 1 and
September 1 of each year, commencing September 1, 2023. In connection with the settlement of the contracts to purchase NEE
common stock that were issued as components of the September 2020 equity units, on September 1, 2023, NEE issued
approximately 27.3 million shares of common stock in exchange for $2.0 billion.

In March 2024, NEECH issued $1.0 billion principal amount of its exchangeable senior notes due 2027 (the notes). A holder may
exchange all or a portion of its notes at any time prior to the maturity date in accordance with the related indenture. Upon
exchange, NEECH will pay cash up to the aggregate principal amount of the notes being exchanged and has the right, at its sole
discretion, to pay or deliver cash, shares of NEE common stock or a combination of both, in respect of the remainder, if any, of
NEECH's exchange obligation in excess of the aggregate principal amount of the notes being exchanged. At December 31,
2024, the exchange rate, which is subject to certain adjustments as set forth in the indenture, is 14.6927 shares of NEE common
stock per $1,000 in principal amount of notes, which is equivalent to an exchange price of approximately $68.06 per share of
NEE common stock.

NEECH used $52 million of the net proceeds from the sale of the notes to enter into capped call transactions. Under the capped
call transactions, NEECH purchased capped call options with an initial strike price of $68.06 and an initial cap price of $83.34 in
each case per share of NEE common stock and subject to adjustment in certain circumstances. The capped call transactions
may be settled with cash or, at NEE's election, with shares of NEE common stock. Any capped call settlement value is expected
to offset the value to be delivered upon exchange of the notes as a result of share price improvement up to the cap price.

In September 2022, NEE sold $2.0 billion of equity units (initially consisting of Corporate Units). Each equity unit has a stated
amount of $50 and consists of a contract to purchase NEE commaon stock (stock purchase contract) and, initially, a 5% undivided
beneficial ownership interest in a Series M Debenture due September 1, 2027, issued in the principal amount of $1,000 by
NEECH. Each stock purchase contract requires the holder to purchase by no later than September 1, 2025 (the final settlement
date) for a price of $50 in cash, a number of shares of NEE common stock (subject to antidilution adjustments) based on a price
per share range described in the following sentence. If purchased on the final settlement date, as of December 31, 2024, the
number of shares issued per equity unit would (subject to antidilution adjustments) range from 0.5670 shares if the applicable
market value of a share of NEE common stock is less than or equal to $88.88 (the reference price) to 0.4534 shares if the
applicable market value of a share is equal to or greater than $111.10 (the threshold appreciation price), with the applicable
market value to be determined using the average closing prices of NEE common stock over a 20-day trading period ending
August 27, 2025. Total annual distributions on the equity units are at the rate of 6.926%, consisting of interest on the debentures
(4.60% per year) and payments under the stock purchase contracts (2.326% per year). The interest rate on the debentures is
expected to be reset on or after March 1, 2025. A holder of an equity unit may satisfy its purchase obligation with proceeds raised
from remarketing the NEECH debentures that are part of its equity unit. The undivided beneficial ownership interest in the
NEECH debenture that is a component of each Corporate Unit is pledged to NEE to secure the holder's obligation to purchase
NEE common stock under the related stock purchase contract. If a successful remarketing does not occur on or before the third
business day prior to the final settlement date, and a holder has not notified NEE of its intention to settle the stock purchase

103



NEXTERA ENERGY, INC. AND FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

contract with cash, the debentures that are components of the Corporate Units will be used to satisfy in full the holders’
obligations to purchase NEE common stock under the related stock purchase contracts on the final settiement date. The
debentures are fully and unconditionally guaranteed by NEE.

In June 2024, NEE sold $2.0 billion of equity units (initially consisting of Corporate Units). Each equity unit has a stated amount
of $50 and consists of a contract to purchase NEE common stock (stock purchase contract) and, initially, a 5% undivided
beneficial ownership interest in a Series N Debenture due June 1, 2029, issued in the principal amount of $1,000 by NEECH.
Each stock purchase contract requires the holder to purchase by no later than June 1, 2027 (the final settlement date) for a price
of $50 in cash, a number of shares of NEE common stock (subject to antidilution adjustments), based on a price per share range
described in the following sentence. If purchased on the final settlement date, as of December 31, 2024, the number of shares
issued per equity unit would (subject to antidilution adjustments) range from 0.6915 shares if the applicable market value of a
share of NEE common stock is less than or equal to $72.31 (the reference price) to 0.56532 shares if the applicable market value
of a share is equal to or greater than $90.38 (the threshold appreciation price), with the applicable market value to be determined
using the average closing prices of NEE common stock over a 20-day trading period ending on May 26, 2027. Total annual
distributions on the equity units are at the rate of 7.299%, consisting of interest on the debentures (5.15% per year) and
payments under the stock purchase contracts (2.149% per year). The interest rate on the debentures is expected to be reset on
or after December 1, 2026. A holder of an equity unit may satisfy its purchase obligation with proceeds raised from remarketing
the NEECH debentures that are part of its equity unit. The undivided beneficial ownership interest in the NEECH debenture that
is a component of each Corporate Unit is pledged to NEE to secure the holder's obligation to purchase NEE common stock
under the related stock purchase contract. If a successful remarketing does not occur on or before the third business day prior to
the final settlement date, and a holder has not notified NEE of its intention to settle the stock purchase contract with cash, the
debentures that are components of the Corporate Units will be used to satisfy in full the holders' obligations to purchase NEE
common stock under the related stock purchase contracts on the final settlement date. The debentures are fully and
unconditionally guaranteed by NEE.

In October 2024, NEE sold $1.5 billion of equity units (initially consisting of Corporate Units). Each equity unit has a stated
amount of $50 and consists of a contract to purchase NEE common stock (stock purchase contract) and, initially, a 5% undivided
beneficial ownership interest in a Series O Debenture due November 1, 2029, issued in the principal amount of $1,000 by
NEECH. Each stock purchase contract requires the holder to purchase by no later than November 1, 2027 (the final settlement
date) for a price of $50 in cash, a number of shares of NEE common stock (subject to antidilution adjustments), based on a price
per share range described in the following sentence. If purchased on the final settlement date, as of December 31, 2024, the
number of shares issued per equity unit would (subject to antidilution adjustments) range from 0.6034 shares if the applicable
market value of a share of NEE common stock is less than or equal to $82.87 (the reference price) to 0.4827 shares if the
applicable market value of a share is equal to or greater than $103.58 (the threshold appreciation price), with the applicable
market value to be determined using the average closing prices of NEE common stock over a 20-day trading period ending on
October 27, 2027. Total annual distributions on the equity units are at the rate of 7.234%, consisting of interest on the debentures
(4.635% per year) and payments under the stock purchase contracts (2.599% per year). The interest rate on the debentures is
expected to be reset on or after May 1, 2027. A holder of an equity unit may satisfy its purchase obligation with proceeds raised
from remarketing the NEECH debentures that are part of its equity unit. The undivided beneficial ownership interest in the
NEECH debenture that is a component of each Corporate Unit is pledged to NEE to secure the holder's obligation to purchase
NEE common stock under the related stock purchase contract. If a successful remarketing does not occur on or before the third
business day prior to the final settlement date, and a holder has not notified NEE of its intention to settle the stock purchase
contract with cash, the debentures that are components of the Corporate Units will be used to satisfy in full the holders'
obligations to purchase NEE common stock under the related stock purchase contracts on the final settlement date. The
debentures are fully and unconditionally guaranteed by NEE.

Prior to the issuance of NEE's common stock, the stock purchase contracts, if dilutive, will be reflected in NEE's diluted earnings
per share calculations using the treasury stock method. Under this method, the number of shares of NEE common stock used in
calculating diluted earnings per share is deemed to be increased by the excess, if any, of the number of shares that would be
issued upon settlement of the stock purchase contracts over the number of shares that could be purchased by NEE in the
market, at the average market price during the period, using the proceeds receivable upon settlement.

On February 4, 2025, NEECH sold a total of $4.5 billion principal amount of its fixed-rate debentures, with interest rates ranging
from 4.85% to 5.90% and maturity dates ranging from 2028 to 2055, and $500 million of its floating-rate debentures due in 2028.

On February 6, 2025, NEECH sold $1.5 billion principal amount of its Series S Junior Subordinated Debentures due August 15,
2055 and $1.0 billion principal amount of its Series T Junior Subordinated Debentures due August 15, 2055, bearing interest at a
rate of 6.375% to August 15, 2030 and 6.50% to August 15, 2035, respectively, and thereafter will bear interest based on an
underlying index plus a specified margin, reset every five years, provided that the interest rate will not be lower than the
respective initial interest rate.
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NEXTERA ENERGY, INC. AND FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Legal Proceedings — FPL is the defendant in a purported class action lawsuit filed in the Miami-Dade County Circuit Court in
February 2018 that seeks from FPL unspecified damages for alleged breach of contract and gross negligence based on service
interruptions that occurred as a result of Hurricane Irma in 2017. A class previously had been certified that encompassed all
persons and business owners who reside in and are otherwise citizens of the state of Florida that contracted with FPL for
electrical services, were charged storm charges, experienced a power outage after Hurricane Irma and suffered consequential
damages because of FPL's alleged breach of contract or gross negligence. Florida's Third District Court of Appeal (3rd DCA)
reconsidered and revoked its previous order approving certification of the class and remanded and stayed the case unless and
until the plaintiffs take action at the FPSC regarding FPL's actions during Hurricane Irma. In December 2024, the Florida
Supreme Court denied the plaintiffs' request to review the 3rd DCA's order.

NEE, FPL, and certain current and former executives, are the named defendants in a purported shareholder securities class
action lawsuit filed in the U.S. District Court for the Southern District of Florida in June 2023 and amended in December 2023
that seeks from the defendants unspecified damages allegedly resulting from alleged false or misleading statements regarding
NEE's alleged campaign finance and other political activities. The alleged class of plaintiffs are all persons or entities who
purchased or otherwise acquired NEE securities between December 2, 2021 and January 30, 2023. In September 2024, the
class action lawsuit was dismissed with prejudice by the U.S. District Court for the Southern District of Florida. In October 2024,
the lead plaintiffs filed a notice of appeal with the U.S. Court of Appeals for the 11th Circuit. NEE is vigorously defending against
the claims in this proceeding.

NEE, along with certain current and former executives and directors are the named defendants in purported shareholder
derivative actions filed in the 15th Judicial Circuit in Paim Beach County, Florida in July 2023 and March 2024, in the U.S. District
Court for the Southern District of Florida in QOctober 2023 and November 2023 (which were consolidated in January 2024) and in
the U.S. District Court for the Southern District of Florida in July 2024 seeking unspecified damages allegedly resulting from,
among other things, breaches of fiduciary duties and, in the consolidated cases and the July 2024 case, violations of the federal
securities laws, all purporting to relate to alleged campaign finance law violations and associated matters. The defendants are
vigorously defending against the claims in these proceedings. NEE and the plaintiffs in the derivative actions have agreed to a
specified stay. NEE also has received demand letters and books and records requests from counsel representing other
purported shareholders and containing similar allegations. These demands seek, among other things, a Board of Directors
investigation of, and/or documentation regarding, these allegations. NEE and certain of the shareholders demanding an
investigation have agreed to a specified stay of all material activities related to the demand.

In September 2023, a participant in the NEE Employee Retirement Savings Plan (Plan), purportedly on behalf of the Plan and all
persons who were participants in or beneficiaries of the Plan, at any time between September 25, 2016 and September 25, 2023
(Plan participants), filed a putative ERISA class action lawsuit in the U.S. District Court for the Southern District of Florida against
NEE. The complaint alleges that NEE violated its fiduciary duties under the Plan by permitting a third-party administrative
recordkeeper to charge allegedly excessive fees for the services provided and allegedly by allowing a large volume of plan
assets to be invested in NEE common stock. The plaintiff seeks declaratory, equitable and monetary relief on behalf of the Plan
and Plan participants. NEE and the plaintiff have agreed to a specified stay of the action to permit the plaintiff to exhaust the
administrative remedies available under the Plan.

In November 2024, NEE was named as defendant in an antitrust lawsuit (Avangrid, Inc. et al. v. NextEra Energy, Inc.) filed in the
U.S. District Court for the District of Massachusetts. This lawsuit seeks damages of $350 million, which are tripled in the event of
a finding of monopolization under the Sherman Act, from the defendants for alleged violations of federal and state antitrust laws,
as well as Massachusetts state laws. In January 2025, NEE filed a motion to dismiss and a motion to transfer venue. NEE does
not believe that it should have any liability with respect to the claims in this matter.

16. Segment Information

Effective January 1, 2024, NEE and FPL adopted an accounting standards update that provides guidance on segment reporting
and requires additional disclosures related to significant segment expenses and increases the frequency of segment reporting to
interim periods (updated segment standard). NEE and FPL adopted the updated segment standard using the full retrospective
approach, which changed the presentation of the segment information below.

The tables below present information for NEE's two reportable segments, FPL, a rate-regulated utility business, and NEER,
which is comprised of competitive energy and rate-regulated transmission businesses. Corporate and Other represents other
business activities, includes eliminating entries, and may include the net effect of rounding. FPL has a single reportable segment.
See Note 2 for information regarding NEE's and FPL's operating revenues.

NEE's and FPL's chief operating decision maker (CODM) is NEE's chief executive officer. The CODM makes key operating

decisions and evaluates the reportable segment's operating results, including net income attributable to NEE, for financial
planning, analysis of performance and resource allocation.
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Exhibit 31(a)

Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification

I, John W. Ketchum, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this Form 10-K for the annual period ended December 31, 2024 of NextEra Energy, Inc. (the registrant);

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material
fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made,
not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in
all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the
periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting {(as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting
to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report
our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period
covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual
report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control
over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely lo adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize
and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role
in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 14, 2025

JOHN W. KETCHUM

John W, Ketchum
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
of NextEra Energy, inc.




Exhibit 31(b)

Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification

I, Brian W. Bolster, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Form 10-K for the annual period ended December 31, 2024 of NextEra Energy, Inc. (the registrant);

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material
fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made,

not misle

ading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in
all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the
periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's aother certifying officer and | are respansible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and

procedur

es (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(¢e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as

defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting
to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for exiernal purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report
our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period
covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual
report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control
over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over

financial

reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons

performing the equivalent functions):

(a)

(b)

Date: February

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize
and report financial information; and

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role
in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

14, 2025

BRIAN W. BOLSTER
Brian W. Bolster
Executive Vice President, Finance and
Chief Financial Officer
of NextEra Energy, Inc.




Exhibit 31(c)

Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification

I, Armando Pimentel, Jr., certify that:

1.

5.

Date:

| have reviewed this Form 10-K for the annual period ended December 31, 2024 of Florida Power & Light Company (the
registrant);

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material
fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made,
not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in
all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the
periods presented in this report;

The registrant's other certifying officer and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and pracedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting
to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report
our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period
covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual
report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control
over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasanably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize
and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role
in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

February 14, 2025

ARMANDO PIMENTEL, JR.

Armando Pimentel, Jr.
President and Chief Executive Officer
of Florida Power & Light Company




Exhibit 31(d)

Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification

I, Brian W. Bolster, certify that:

1.
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\
\
Date:

| have reviewed this Form 10-K for the annual period ended December 31, 2024 of Florida Power & Light Company (the
registrant);

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material
fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made,
not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in
all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the
periods presented in this report;

The registrant's other certifying officer and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting
to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report
our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period
covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual
report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control
over financial reporting; and

The registrant's other certifying officer and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize
and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role
in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

February 14, 2025

BRIAN W. BOLSTER
Brian W. Bolster
Executive Vice President, Finance
and Chief Financial Officer
of Florida Power & Light Company



















FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This report includes forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Any
statements that express, or involve discussions as to, expectations, beliefs, plans, objectives, assumptions, strategies, future
events or performance (often, but not always, through the use of words or phrases such as: may result, are expected to, will
continue, is anticipated, believe, will, could, should, would, estimated, may, plan, potential, future, projection, goals, target,
outlook, predict and intend or words of similar meaning) are not statements of historical facts and may be forward looking.
Forward-looking statements involve estimates, assumptions and uncertainties. Accordingly, any such statements are qualified in
their entirety by reference to, and are accompanied by, the following important factors (in addition to any assumptions and other
factors referred to specifically in connection with such forward-looking statements) that could have a significant impact on NEE's
and/or FPL's operations and financial results, and could cause NEE's and/or FPL's actual results to differ materially from those
contained or implied in forward-looking statements made by or on behalf of NEE and/or FPL in this combined Form 10-Q, in
presentations, on their respective websites, in response to questions or otherwise.

Regulatory, Legislative and Legal Risks

«  NEE's and FPL's business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects may be materially adversely affected
by the extensive regulation of their business.

« NEE's and FPL's business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects could be materially adversely
affected if they are unable to recover in a timely manner any significant amount of costs, a return on certain assets or a
reasonable return on invested capital through base rates, cost recovery clauses, other regulatory mechanisms or
otherwise.

«  Regulatory decisions that are important to NEE and FPL may be materially adversely affected by political, regulatory,
operational and economic factors.

<  Any reductions or modifications to, or the elimination of, governmental incentives or policies that support clean energy,
including, but not limited to, tax laws, policies and incentives, renewable portfolio standards and feed-in-tariffs, or the
imposition of additional taxes, tariffs, duties or other costs or assessments on clean energy or the equipment necessary
to generate, store or deliver it, could result in, among other items, the lack of a satisfactory market for the development
and/or financing of new clean energy projects, NEE and FPL abandoning the development of clean energy projects, a
loss of investments in clean energy projects and reduced project returns, any of which could have a material adverse
effect on NEE's and FPL's business, financia! condition, results of operations and prospects.

+ NEE's and FPL's business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects could be materially adversely
affected by new or revised laws, regulations or executive orders, as well as by regulatory action or inaction.

+ NEE and FPL are subject to numerous environmental laws, regulations and other standards that may result in capital
expenditures, increased operating costs and various liabilities, and may require NEE and FPL to limit or eliminate
certain operations.

+ NEE's and FPL's business could be negatively affected by federal or state laws or regulations mandating new or
additional limits on the production of greenhouse gas emissions.

- Extensive federal, state and local government regulation of the operations and businesses of NEE and FPL exposes
NEE and FPL to significant and increasing compliance costs and may also expose them to substantial monetary
penalties and other sanctions for compliance failures.

«  Changes in tax laws, guidance or policies, including but not limited to changes in corporate income tax rates, as well as
judgments and estimates used in the determination of tax-related asset and liability amounts, could materially adversely
affect NEE's and FPL's business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects.

<« NEE's and FPL's business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects may be materially adversely affected
due to adverse results of litigation.

+  Aliegations of violations of law by FPL or NEE have the potential to result in fines, penalties, or other sanctions or
effects, as well as cause reputational damage for FPL and NEE, and could hamper FPL's and NEE's effectiveness in
interacting with governmental authorities.

Development and Operational Risks

- NEE's and FPL's business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects could suffer if NEE and FPL do not
proceed with projects under development or are unable to complete the construction of, or capital improvements to,
electric generation, storage, transmission and distribution facilities, natural gas and oil production and transportation
facilities or other facilities on schedule or within budget.

« NEE and FPL face risks related to project siting, financing, construction, permitting, governmental approvals and the
negotiation of project development agreements that may impede their development and operating activities.

»  The operation and maintenance of NEE's and FPL's electric generation, storage, transmission and distribution facilities,
natural gas and oil production and transportation facilities and other facilities are subject to many operational risks, the
consequences of which could have a material adverse effect on NEE's and FPL's business, financial condition, results
of operations and prospects.




NEE's and FPL's business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects may be negatively affected by a lack
of growth, slower growth or a decline in the number of customers or in customer usage.

NEE's and FPL's business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects can be materially adversely affected
by weather conditions and related impacts, including, but not limited to, the impact of severe weather.

Threats of terrorism and catastrophic events that could result from geopolitical factors, terrorism, cyberattacks, or
individuals and/or groups attempting to disrupt NEE's and FPL's business, or the businesses of third parties, may
materially adversely affect NEE's and FPL's business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects.

The ability of NEE and FPL to obtain insurance and the terms of any available insurance coverage could be materially
adversely affected by international, national, state or local events and company-specific events, as well as the financial
condition of insurers. NEE's and FPL's insurance coverage does not provide protection against all significant losses.

NEE invests in natural gas and oil production assets which are exposed to fluctuating market prices of natural gas,
natural gas liquids, oil and other energy commodities. A prolonged period of low natural gas and oil prices, disrupted
production or unsuccessful drilling efforts could impact NEER's natural gas and oil production operations and cause
NEER to delay or cancel certain natural gas and oil production projects and could result in certain assets becoming
impaired, which could materially adversely affect NEE's business, financial condition, results of operations and
prospects.

If cost recovery arrangements for increased supply costs necessary to provide NEER's full energy and capacity
requirements services are not favorable, operating costs could increase and materially adversely affect NEE's business,
financial condition, results of operations and prospects.

Due to the potential for significant volatility in market prices for fuel, electricity and environmental and other energy-
related commodities, NEE's inability or failure to manage properly or hedge effectively the commodity risks within its
portfolio could materially adversely affect NEE's business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects.

Reductions in the liquidity of energy markets may restrict NEE's ability to manage its operational risks, which, in turn,
could negatively affect NEE's business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects.

NEE's and FPL's hedging and trading procedures and associated risk management tools may not protect against
significant losses.

If price movements significantly or persistently deviate from historical behavior, NEE's and FPL's risk management tools
associated with their hedging and trading procedures may not protect against significant losses.

If power transmission or natural gas, nuclear fuel or other commodity transportation operations are unavailable or
disrupted, the ability for subsidiaries of NEE, including FPL, to sell and deliver power or natural gas may be limited.

NEE and FPL are subject to credit and performance risk from customers, hedging counterparties and vendors.

NEE and FPL could recognize financial losses or a reduction in operating cash flows if a counterparty fails to perform or
make payments in accordance with the terms of derivative contracts or if NEE or FPL is required to post margin cash
collateral under derivative contracts.

NEE and FPL are highly dependent on sensitive and complex information technology systems, and any failure or
breach of those systems could have a material adverse effect on their business, financial condition, results of
operations and prospects.

NEE's and FPL's retail businesses are subject to the risk that sensitive customer data may be compromised, which
could result in a material adverse impact to their reputation and/or have a material adverse effect on the business,
financial condition, results of operations and prospects of NEE and FPL.

NEE and FPL could recognize financial losses as a result of volatility in the market values of derivative instruments and
limited liquidity in OTC markets.

NEE and FPL may be materially adversely affected by negative publicity.

NEE's and FPL's business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects may be adversely affected if FPL is
unable to maintain, negotiate or renegotiate franchise agreements on acceptable terms with municipalities and counties
in Florida.

NEE's and FPL's business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects could be materially adversely
affected by work strikes or stoppages and increasing personnel costs.

NEE's ability to successfully identify, complete and integrate acquisitions is subject to significant risks, including, but not
limited to, the effect of increased competition for acquisitions resulting from the consolidation of the energy industry.

Nuclear Generation Risks

The operation and maintenance of NEE's and FPL's nuclear generation facilities involve environmental, health and
financial risks that could result in fines or the closure of the facilities and in increased costs and capital expenditures.

In the event of an incident at any nuclear generation facility in the U.S. or at certain nuclear generation facilities in
Europe, NEE and FPL could be assessed significant retrospective assessments and/or retrospective insurance
premiums as a result of their participation in a secondary financial protection system and nuclear insurance mutual
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companies.

NRC orders or new regulations related to increased security measures and any future safety requirements promulgated
by the NRC could require NEE and FPL to incur substantial operating and capital expenditures at their nuclear
generation facilities and/or result in reduced revenues.

The inability to operate any of NEE's or FPL's nuclear generation units through the end of their respective operating
licenses or planned license extensions could have a material adverse effect on NEE's and FPL's business, financial
condition, results of operations and prospects.

NEE's and FPL's nuclear units are periodically removed from service to accommodate planned refueling and
maintenance outages, and for other purposes. If planned outages last longer than anticipated or if there are unplanned
outages, NEE's and FPL's business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects could be materially
adversely affected.

Liquidity, Capital Requirements and Common Stock Risks

Disruptions, uncertainty or volatility in the credit and capital markets, among other factors, may negatively affect NEE's
and FPL's ability to fund their liquidity and capital needs and to meet their growth objectives, and could also materially
adversely affect their business, financial condition, liquidity, results of operations and prospects.

Defaults or noncompliance related to project-specific, limited-recourse financing agreements of NEE's consolidated and
unconsolidated subsidiaries could materially adversely affect NEE's business, financial condition, liquidity, results of
operations and prospects, as well as the availability or terms of future financings for NEE or its subsidiaries.

NEE's, NEECH's and FPL's inability to maintain their current credit ratings may materially adversely affect NEE's and
FPL's liquidity and results of operations, limit the ability of NEE and FPL to grow their business, and increase interest
costs.

NEE's and FPL's liquidity may be impaired if their credit providers are unable to fund their credit commitments to the
companies or to maintain their current credit ratings.

Poor market performance and other economic factors could affect NEE's defined benefit pension plan's funded status,
which may materially adversely affect NEE's and FPL's business, financial condition, liquidity, results of operations and
prospects.

Poor market performance and other economic factors could adversely affect the asset values of NEE's and FPL's
nuclear decommissioning funds, which may materially adversely affect NEE's and FPL's business, financial condition,
liquidity, results of operations and prospects.

Certain of NEE's assets and investments are subject to changes in market value and other risks, which may materially
adversely affect NEE's liquidity, financial condition and results of operations.

NEE may be unable to meet its ongoing and future financial obligations and to pay dividends on its common stock if its
subsidiaries are unable to pay upstream dividends or repay funds to NEE.

NEE may be unable to meet its ongoing and future financial obligations and to pay dividends on its common stock if
NEE is required to perform under guarantees of obligations of its subsidiaries.

XPLR may not be able to access sources of capital on commercially reasonable terms, which would have a material
adverse effect on its ability to consummate future acquisitions and on the value of NEE's limited partner interest in
XPLR OpCo.

Disruptions, uncertainty or volatility in the credit and capital markets may exert downward pressure on the market price
of NEE's common stock.

Widespread public health crises and epidemics or pandemics may have material adverse impacts on NEE's and FPL's
business, financial condition, liquidity, results of operations and prospects.

These factors should be read together with the risk factors included in Part |, item 1A. Risk Factors in the 2024 Form 10-K, and
investors should refer to that section of the 2024 Form 10-K. Any forward-looking statement speaks only as of the date on which
such statement is made, and NEE and FPL undertake no abligation to update any forward-looking statement to reflect events or
circumstances, including, but not limited to, unanticipated events, after the date on which such statement is made, unless
otherwise required by law. New factors emerge from time to time and it is not possible for management to predict all of such
factors, nor can it assess the impact of each such factor on the business or the extent to which any factor, or combination of
factors, may cause actual results to differ materially from those contained or implied in any forward-looking statement.

Website Access to SEC Filings. NEE and FPL make their SEC filings, including the annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly
reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, and any amendments to those reports, available free of charge on NEE's
internet website, www.nexteraenergy.com, as soon as reasonably practicable after those documents are electronically filed with
or furnished to the SEC. The information and materials available on NEE's website (or any of its subsidiaries' or affiliates’
websites) are not incorporated by reference into this combined Form 10-Q.








































NEXTERA ENERGY, INC. AND FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(unaudited)

Fair Value Measurements of Derivative Instruments — The fair value of assets and liabilities are determined using either
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets (Level 1) or other pricing inputs that are observable (Level 2) whenever that
information is available and using unobservable inputs (Level 3) to estimate fair value only when relevant observable inputs are
not available. NEE and FPL use different valuation techniques to measure the fair value of assets and liabilities, relying primarily
on the market approach of using prices and other market information for identical and/or similar assets and liabilities for those
assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis. NEE's and FPL's assessment of the significance of any
particular input to the fair value measurement requires judgment and may affect placement within the fair value hierarchy levels.
Non-performance risk, including the consideration of a credit valuation adjustment, is also considered in the determination of fair
value for all assets and liabilities measured at fair value.

NEE and FPL measure the fair value of commodity contracts using a combination of market and income approaches utilizing
prices observed on commodities exchanges and in the non-exchange traded markets, or through the use of industry-standard
valuation techniques, such as option modeling or discounted cash flows techniques, incorporating both observable and
unobservable valuation inputs. The resulting measurements are the best estimate of fair value as represented by the transfer of
the asset or liability through an orderly transaction in the marketplace at the measurement date.

Exchange-traded derivative assets and liabilities are valued using observable settlement prices from the exchanges and are
classified as Level 1 or Level 2, depending on whether positions are in active or inactive markets.

NEE, through its subsidiaries, including FPL, also enters into non-exchange traded commodity derivatives. The majority of the
valuation inputs are observable using exchange-quoted prices.

NEE, through NEER, also enters into full requirements contracts, which, in most cases, meet the definition of derivatives and are
measured at fair value. These contracts typically have one or more inputs that are not observable and are significant to the
valuation of the contract. In addition, certain non-exchange traded derivative options at NEE have one or more significant inputs
that are not observable, and are valued using industry-standard option models.

In all cases where NEE and FPL use significant unobservable inputs for the valuation of a commodity contract, consideration is
given to the assumptions that market participants would use in valuing the asset or liability. The primary input to the valuation
models for commaodity contracts is the forward commodity curve for the respective instruments. Other inputs include, but are not
limited to, assumptions about market liquidity, volatility, correlation and contract duration as more fully described below in
Significant Unobservable Inputs Used in Recurring Fair Value Measurements. In instances where the reference markets are
deemed to be inactive or do not have transactions for a similar contract, the derivative assets and liabilities may be valued using
significant other observable inputs and potentially significant unobservable inputs. In such instances, the valuation for these
contracts is established using techniques including extrapolation from or interpolation between actively traded contracts, or
estimated basis adjustments from liquid trading points. NEE and FPL regularly evaluate and validate the inputs used to
determine fair value by a number of methods, consisting of various market price verification procedures, including the use of
pricing services and broker quotes to support the market price of the various commaodities. Where there are assumptions and
models used to generate inputs for valuing derivative assets and liabilities, the review and verification of the assumptions and
models are undertaken by individuals in an independent control function.

NEE uses interest rate contracts and foreign currency contracts to mitigate and adjust interest rate and foreign currency
exchange exposure related primarily to certain outstanding and expected future debt issuances and borrowings when deemed
appropriate based on market conditions or when required by financing agreements. NEE estimates the fair value of these
derivatives using an income approach based on a discounted cash flows valuation technique utilizing the net amount of
estimated future cash inflows and outflows related to the agreements.
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NEXTERA ENERGY, INC. AND FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(unaudited)

were triggered, applicable NEE subsidiaries could be required to post additional collateral of up to approximately $2.0 billion
($105 million at FPL) at June 30, 2025 and $1.4 billion ($70 million at FPL) at December 31, 2024.

Collateral related to derivatives, including amounts posted for margin, current exposures and future performance with exchanges
and independent system operators, may be posted in the form of cash or credit support in the normal course of business. At
June 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024, applicable NEE subsidiaries have posted approximately $179 million (none at FPL) and
$19 million (none at FPL), respectively, in cash, and $1,307 million (none at FPL) and $1,334 million (none at FPL), respectively,
in the form of letters of credit and surety bonds, each of which could be applied toward the collateral requirements described
above. FPL and NEECH have capacity under their credit facilities generally in excess of the collateral requirements described
above that would be available to support, among other things, derivative activities. Under the terms of the credit facilities,
maintenance of a specific credit rating is not a condition to drawing on these credit facilities, although there are other conditions
to drawing on these credit facilities.

Additionally, some contracts contain certain adequate assurance provisions whereby a counterparty may demand additional
collateral based on subjective events and/or conditions. Due to the subjective nature of these provisions, NEE and FPL are
unable to determine an exact value for these items and they are not included in any of the quantitative disclosures above.

3. Non-Derivative Fair Value Measurements

Non-derivative fair value measurements consist of NEE's and FPL’'s cash equivalents and restricted cash equivalents, special
use funds and other investments. The fair value of these financial assets is determined by using the valuation techniques and
inputs as described in Note 2 — Fair Value Measurements of Derivative Instruments as well as below.

Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash Equivalents = NEE and FPL hold investments primarily in money market funds. The fair
value of these funds is estimated using a market approach based on current observable market prices.

Special Use Funds and Other investments — NEE and FPL hold primarily debt and equity securities directly, as well as indirectly
through commingled funds. Substantially all directly held equity securities are valued at their quoted market prices. For directly
held debt securities, multiple prices and price types are obtained from pricing vendors whenever possible, which enables cross-
provider validations. A primary price source is identified based on asset type, class or issue of each security. Commingled funds,
which are similar to mutual funds, are maintained by banks or investment companies and hold certain investments in accordance
with a stated set of objectives. The fair value of commingled funds is primarily derived from the quoted prices in active markets of
the underlying securities. Because the fund shares are offered to a limited group of investors, they are not considered to be
traded in an active market.

Fair Value Measurement Alternative — NEE holds investments in equity securities without readily determinable fair values, which
are initially recorded at cost, of approximately $642 million and $665 million at June 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024,
respectively, and are included in noncurrent other assets on NEE's condensed consolidated balance sheets. Adjustments to
carrying values are recorded as a result of observable price changes in transactions for identical or similar investments of the
same issuer.
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NEXTERA ENERGY, INC. AND FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(unaudited)

On July 4, 2025, the One Big Beautiful Bill Act (OBBBA) was signed into law which, among other things, modified tax legislation
affecting clean energy tax credits, bonus depreciation rules, and tax treatment of research and development expenses and
interest deductions. Specifically, the OBBBA provides for 100% bonus depreciation with no phase-out for unregulated property
acquired after January 19, 2025, 100% expensing with no phase-out of domestic research and development expenses incurred
in taxable years beginning after 2024, and the use of earnings before income taxes, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA),
rather than earnings before income taxes (EBIT), with no phase-out for purposes of calculating the interest limitation for taxable
years beginning after 2024. The OBBBA did not change the federal corporate income tax rate and did not require
remeasurement of deferred tax assets or liabilities. NEE determined that the OBBBA had no impact to NEE's condensed
consolidated financial statements for the three and six months ended June 30, 2025.

5. Related Party Transactions

Through XPLR OpCo, XPLR owns, or has a partial ownership interest in, a portfolio of contracted renewable energy assets
consisting of wind, solar and battery storage projects as well as a contracted natural gas pipeline. NEE has an approximately
52.5% noncontrolling interest in XPLR, primarily through its limited partner interest in XPLR OpCo, and accounts for its
ownership interest in XPLR as an equity method investment. NextEra Energy Resources operates essentially all of the energy
projects owned by XPLR and provides services to XPLR under various related party operations and maintenance, development
and construction, administrative and management services agreements (service agreements). Under these service agreements,
NextEra Energy Resources incurred costs of approximately $214 million and $68 million during the three months ended June 30,
2025 and 2024, respectively, and $577 million and $120 million during the six months ended June 30, 2025 and 2024,
respectively, primarily in connection with wind repowering, which will be reimbursed by XPLR. NextEra Energy Resources is also
party to a CSCS agreement with a subsidiary of XPLR. At June 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024, the cash sweep amounts (due
to XPLR and its subsidiaries) held in accounts belonging to NextEra Energy Resources or its subsidiaries were approximately
$16 million and $127 million, respectively, and are included in accounts payable. Amounts due from XPLR of approximately
$598 million and $159 million are included in other receivables and $131 million and $128 million are included in noncurrent
other assets at June 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024, respectively. NEECH or NextEra Energy Resources guaranteed or
provided indemnifications, letters of credit or surety bonds totaling approximately $1.7 billion at June 30, 2025 primarily related to
obligations on behalf of XPLR's subsidiaries with maturity dates ranging from 2025 to 2063, including certain project performance
obligations and obligations under financing and interconnection agreements. Payment guarantees and related contracts with
respect to unconsolidated entities for which NEE or one of its subsidiaries are the guarantor are recorded on NEE's condensed
consolidated balance sheets at fair value. At June 30, 2025, approximately $58 million related to the fair value of the credit
support provided under the CSCS agreement is recorded as noncurrent other liabilities on NEE's condensed consolidated
balance sheet.

During 2025 and 2024, certain services, primarily engineering, construction, transportation, storage and maintenance services,
were provided to subsidiaries of NEE by related parties that NEE accounts for under the equity method of accounting. Charges
for these services amounted to approximately $234 million and $181 million for the three months ended June 30, 2025 and 2024,
respectively, and $454 million and $333 million for the six months ended June 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively.

6. Variable Interest Entities

NEER - At June 30, 2025, NEE consolidates a number of VIEs within the NEER segment. Subsidiaries within the NEER
segment are considered the primary beneficiary of these VIEs since they control the most significant activities of these VIEs,
including operations and maintenance, and they have the obligation to absorb expected losses of these VIEs.

Six indirect subsidiaries of NextEra Energy Resources have an ownership interest ranging from approximately 50% to 67% in
entities which own and operate solar generation facilities with generating capacity of approximately 488 MW. Each of the
subsidiaries is considered a VIE since the non-managing members have no substantive rights over the managing members, and
is consolidated by NextEra Energy Resources. These entities sell their electric output to third parties under power sales contracts
with expiration dates ranging from 2031 through 2052. These entities have third-party debt which is secured by liens against the
assets of the entities. The debt holders have no recourse to the general credit of NextEra Energy Resources for the repayment of
debt. The assets and liabilities of these VIEs were approximately $973 million and $436 million, respectively, at June 30, 2025.
There were eight of these consolidated VIEs at December 31, 2024 and the assets and liabilities of those VIEs at such date
totaled approximately $1,708 million and $520 million, respectively. At June 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024, the assets and
liabilities of these VIEs consisted primarily of property, plant and equipment and long-term debt.

NextEra Energy Resources consolidates a VIE which has a 10% direct ownership interest in wind and solar generation facilities
which have the capability of producing approximately 400 MW and 599 MW, respectively. These entities sell their electric output
under power sales contracts to third parties with expiration dates ranging from 2025 through 2040. These entities are also
considered a VIE because the holders of differential membership interests in these entities do not have substantive rights over
the significant activities of these entities. The assets and liabilities of the VIE were approximately $1,334 million and $78 million,
respectively, at June 30, 2025, and $1,346 million and $76 million, respectively, at December 31, 2024. At June 30, 2025 and
December 31, 2024, the assets of this VIE consisted primarily of property, plant and equipment.
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NEE segregates into two categories unrealized mark-to-market gains and losses and timing impacts related to derivative
transactions. The first category, referred to as non-qualifying hedges, represents certain energy derivative, interest rate derivative
and foreign currency transactions entered into as economic hedges, which do not meet the requirements for hedge accounting,
or for which hedge accounting treatment is not elected or has been discontinued. Changes in the fair value of those transactions
are marked to market and reported in the condensed consoclidated statements of income, resulting in earnings volatility because
the economic offset to certain of the positions are generally not marked to market. As a consequence, NEE's net income reflects
only the movement in one part of economically-linked transactions. For example, a gain (loss) in the non-qualifying hedge
category for certain energy derivatives is offset by decreases (increases) in the fair value of related physical asset positions in
the portfolio or contracts, which are not marked to market under GAAP. For this reason, NEE's management views results
expressed excluding the impact of the non-qualifying hedges as a meaningful measure of current period performance. The
second category, referred to as trading activities, which is included in adjusted earnings, represents the net unrealized effect of
actively traded positions entered into to take advantage of expected market price movements and all other commadity hedging
activities. At FPL, substantially all changes in the fair value of energy derivative transactions are deferred as a regulatory asset or
liability until the contracts are settled, and, upon settlement, any gains or losses are passed through the fuel clause. See Note 2.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Summary

Net income attributable to NEE increased by $406 million for the three months ended June 30, 2025 reflecting higher results at
FPL and NEER, partly offset by lower results at Corporate and Other. Net income attributable to NEE decreased by $1,028
million for the six months ended June 30, 2025 reflecting lower results at NEER and Corporate and Other, partly offset by higher
results at FPL.

FPL's increase in net income for the three and six months ended June 30, 2025 was primarily driven by continued investments in
plant in service and other property.

NEER's results increased for the three months ended June 30, 2025 primarily reflecting higher earnings from new investments
and customer supply as well as favorable changes in the fair value of equity securities in NEER's nuclear decommissioning
funds, partly offset by higher interest expense. NEER's results decreased for the six months ended June 30, 2025 primarily
reflecting an impairment charge related to the investment in XPLR as well as higher interest expense, partly offset by higher
earnings from new investments.

Corporate and Other's results decreased for the three months ended June 30, 2025 primarily due to higher average interest rates
and higher average debt balances. Corporate and Other's results decreased for the six months ended June 30, 2025 primarily
due to unfavorable non-qualifying hedge activity compared to 2024 as well as higher average interest rates and higher average
debt balances.

NEE's effective income tax rates for the three months ended June 30, 2025 and 2024 were approximately (19)% and (5)%,
respectively. NEE's effective income tax rates for the six months ended June 30, 2025 and 2024 were approximately (59)% and
5%, respectively. See Note 4 for a discussion of NEE's and FPL's effective income tax rates.

A number of legislative and administrative activities have occurred in 2025 that affect NEE and FPL including the enactment of
the OBBBA, the issuance of a number of federal executive orders and presidential actions, the imposition of tariffs on a variety of
imports, and the issuance of guidance by various federal agencies. A number of regulatory actions were issued or remain
pending, such as Treasury Department guidance regarding clean energy tax credits, trade investigations that may lead to
additional tariffs, ordered reviews of, and process changes for, federal permitting and approvals for wind and solar projects and
FERC approval of proposals by regional transmission operators regarding the process for interconnecting new generation
projects to certain regional transmission grids.

On July 4, 2025, the OBBBA was signed into law. The legislation modifies several pre-existing provisions, including the phase-
out of clean energy tax credits, of the Inflation Reduction Act and other laws that are pertinent to NEE including:
- Wind and solar facilities are required to meet two primary requirements to be eligible for technology neutral PTCs and
ITCs:
o First, wind and solar facilities must be placed in service by December 31, 2027. However, the December 31,
2027 placed in service requirement does not have to be satisfied for wind and solar facilities that begin
construction before July 4, 2026.
o Second, wind and solar facilities must satisfy the prohibited foreign entity material assistance requirements.
However, facilities that begin construction by December 31, 2025 would be exempt from these requirements.
»  Nuclear and battery storage facilities are required to meet two primary requirements to be eligible for clean energy tax
credits:
= First, in order to receive the full clean energy tax credits, nuclear and battery storage facilities must begin
construction by December 31, 2033 (no eligibility for facilities that begin construction after 2035).



o Second, nuclear and battery storage facilities must satisfy the prohibited foreign entity material assistance
requirements. However, facilities that begin construction by December 31, 2025 would be exempt from these
requirements.

NEE and the wind and solar industries have relied on the settled understanding of the term "begin construction" as informed by
longstanding Treasury Department guidance regarding what constitutes the "beginning of construction" for purposes of claiming
clean energy tax credits. NEE believes that the text of the OBBBA and applicable law are consistent with that, such that the
financial commitments NEE has made over time prior to the enactment of the OBBBA based on guidance in effect at the time
should allow for the wind and solar facilities that NEE plans to place in service through 2029 to qualify for clean energy tax
credits.

On July 7, 2025, a federal executive order was issued directing the Secretary of the Treasury to issue new and revised guidance
that could potentially seek to limit the interpretation of "begin construction” requirements for wind and solar facilities. NEE will
assess any guidance under the executive order when it is issued.

NEE continues to assess the implications of the OBBBA, as well as the foregoing and other federal executive orders,
investigations and other pending or anticipated regulatory actions on its business and has taken and expects to continue to take
actions that are intended to reduce the impacts of these developments on its project development, capital improvement and
maintenance activities. There has been no material impact on NEE's or FPL's operations or financial performance as a result of
these developments to date in 2025, but NEE will continue to assess these and further developments for potential impacts in
future periods. In expressing its opinions and beliefs on the matters above, NEE cannot guarantee the outcomes expressed
herein.

FPL: Results of Operations

Investments in plant in service and other property grew FPL's average rate base by approximately $5.3 billion for both the three
and six months ended June 30, 2025 when compared to the same periods in the prior year, reflecting, among other things, solar
generation additions and ongoing transmission and distribution additions.

The use of reserve amortization is permitted by FPL's 2021 rate agreement. In order to earn a targeted regulatory ROE, subject
to limitations associated with the 2021 rate agreement, reserve amortization is calculated using a trailing thirteen-month average
of retail rate base and capital structure in conjunction with the trailing twelve months regulatory retail base net operating income,
which primarily includes the retail base portion of base and other revenues, net of O&M, depreciation and amortization, interest
and tax expenses. In general, the net impact of these income statement line items must be adjusted, in part, by reserve
amortization to earn the targeted regulatory ROE. In certain pericds, reserve amortization is reversed so as not to exceed the
targeted regulatory ROE. The drivers of FPL's net income not reflected in the reserve amortization calculation typically include
wholesale and transmission service revenues and expenses, cost recovery clause revenues and expenses, AFUDC - equity and
revenue and costs not recoverable from retail customers. During the three and six months ended June 30, 2025, FPL recorded
reserve amortization of $19 million and $641 million, respectively. During the three and six months ended June 30, 2024, FPL
recorded reserve amortization of $66 million and $637 million, respectively. See Depreciation and Amortization Expense below.
FPL earned an approximately 11.60% and 11.80% regulatory ROE on its retail rate base, based on a trailing thirteen-month
average retail rate base as of June 30, 2025 and June 30, 2024, respectively.

In January 2025, FPL began recovering eligible storm costs and replenishment of the storm reserve through a storm surcharge
totaling approximately $1.2 billion, related to Hurricanes Debby, Helene and Milton which impacted FPL's service area in 2024,
The amount is being collected over a 12-month period and is subject to refund based on an FPSC prudence review. See
Note 10 — Storm Cost Recovery.

On February 28, 2025, FPL filed a petition with the FPSC requesting, among other things, approval of a four-year base rate plan
that would begin in January 2026 replacing the 2021 rate agreement. See Note 10 — FPL 2025 Base Rate Proceeding.

In July 2025, the Florida Supreme Court affirmed the FPSC's final and supplemental final order regarding FPL's 2021 rate
agreement. See Note 10 — FPL 2021 Rate Agreement.

Operating Revenues

During the three and six months ended June 30, 2025, operating revenues increased $319 million and $481 million, respectively,
primarily reflecting an increase in storm cost recovery revenues of approximately $308 million and $426 million, respectively,
primarily associated with Hurricanes Debby, Helene and Milton, as discussed above. Additionally, retail base revenues increased
approximately $73 million and $159 million during the three and six months ended June 30, 2025, respectively, which was
primarily related to an increase of 1.7% in the average number of customer accounts for both periods. The increases in operating
revenues for the three and six months ended June 30, 2025 also reflect increases of approximately $63 million and $120 miillion,
respectively, in revenues from the storm protection plan cost recovery clause as a result of increased investments. The increases
in operating revenues for the three and six months ended June 30, 2025 were partly offset by decreases in fuel revenues of
approximately $145 million and $262 million, respectively, primarily related to lower fuel rates.







Operating Revenues

Operating revenues for the three months ended June 30, 2025 increased $269 million primarily due to:

«  revenues from new investments of $115 million; and

+  the impact of non-qualifying commaodity hedges due primarily to changes in energy prices (approximately $175 million of
losses for the three months ended June 30, 2025 compared to $284 million of losses for the comparable period in 2024).

Operating revenues for the six months ended June 30, 2025 increased $567 million primarily due to:

«  the impact of non-qualifying commodity hedges due primarily to changes in energy prices (approximately $13 million of
gains for the six months ended June 30, 2025 compared to $232 million of losses for the comparable period in 2024),

+  revenues from new investments of $225 million;

« netincreases in revenues of $177 million from the customer supply business;
partly offset by,

« net decreases in revenues of $102 million from the existing clean energy business.

Operating Expenses — net
Operating expenses — net for the six months ended June 30, 2025 increased $129 million primarily due to an increase of $67
million in depreciation and amortization.

Interest Expense

NEER's interest expense for the three months ended June 30, 2025 increased $115 million primarily reflecting higher average
debt balances. NEER's interest expense for the six months ended June 30, 2025 increased $491 million primarily reflecting
approximately $351 million of unfavorable impacts related to changes in the fair value of interest rate derivative instruments as
well as higher average debt balances.

Equity in Earnings (Losses) of Equity Method Investees

NEER recognized $469 million of equity in losses of equity method investees for the six months ended June 30, 2025, compared
to $341 million of equity in earnings of equity method investees for the six months ended June 30, 2024. The change for the six
months ended June 30, 2025 primarily reflects losses related to the investment in XPLR including an impairment charge of
approximately $0.7 billion ($0.5 billion after tax) (see Note 3 — Nonrecurring Fair Value Measurements), partly offset by higher net
earnings of $134 million related to NEER's other equity method investments.

Change in Unrealized Gains (Losses) on Equity Securities Held in NEER's Nuclear Decommissioning Funds — net
For the three months ended June 30, 2025, changes in the fair value of equity securities in NEER's nuclear decommissioning
funds related to favorable market conditions in 2025 compared to the prior year period.

Income Taxes

PTCs from wind and solar projects and ITCs from solar, battery storage and certain wind projects are included in NEER'’s
earnings. PTCs are recognized as wind and solar energy is generated and sold based on a per kWh rate prescribed in applicable
federal and state statutes. NEER's effective income tax rate is primarily based on the compaosition of pretax income (loss) in the
periods presented, as well as the amount of clean energy tax credits in the periods presented. During the three and six months
ended June 30, 2025, clean energy tax credits increased by approximately $164 million and $363 million, respectively, reflecting
growth in NEER's business. See Note 4.

Corporate and Other: Results of Operations

Corporate and Other is primarily comprised of the operating results of other business activities, as well as corporate interest
income and expenses. Corporate and Other allocates a portion of NEECH's corporate interest expense to NextEra Energy
Resources. Interest expense is allocated based on a deemed capital structure of 70% debt and differential membership interests
sold by NextEra Energy Resources' subsidiaries.

Corporate and Other's results decreased $68 million during the three months ended June 30, 2025 primarily due to higher
average interest rates and higher average debt balances. Corporate and Other's results decreased $852 million during the six
months ended June 30, 2025 primarily due to unfavorable after-tax impacts of approximately $719 miilion, as compared to the
prior year period, related to non-qualifying hedge activity as a result of changes in the fair value of interest rate derivative
instruments as well as higher average interest rates and higher average debt balances.
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Liquidity

At June 30, 2025, NEE's total net available liquidity was approximately $17.1 billion. The table below provides the components of
FPL's and NEECH's net available liquidity at June 30, 2025.

Maturity Date

FPL NEECH Total FPL NEECH
{millions)
Issuéd letters of credit (3) (495) (498}
Borrowings — (550) (550)
Issued letters of credit — (3,052) (3,052)
Commercial paper and other short-term borrowings outstanding!® (1,327)  (2,917)  (4,244)
Net available liquidity $ 4,727 $12,346  $17,073

{a) Provide for the funding of loans up to the amount of the credit facility and the issuance of letters of credit up to $3,200 million ($450 million for FPL and $2,750
million for NEECH). The entire amount of the credit facilities is available for general corporate purposes and to provide additional liquidity in the event of a loss
to the companies’ or their subsidiaries’ operating facilities (including, in the case of FPL, a transmission and distribution property loss). FPL's syndicated
revolving credil facilities are also available to support the purchase of $1,663 million of pollution control, solid waste disposal and industrial development
revenue bonds in the event they are tendered by individual bondholders and not remarketed prior to maturity, as well as the repayment of approximately
$1,976 million of floating rate notes in the event an individual noteholder requires repayment at specified dates prior to maturity. As of June 30, 2025,
approximately $5,239 million of NEECH's syndicated revolving credit facilities expire over the next 12 months.

(b) Only available for the funding of loans. As of June 30, 2025, approximately $1,875 million of FPL's and $2,300 million of NEECH's bitateral revolving credit
facilities expire over the next 12 months.

(c) Only available for the issuance of letters of credit. As of June 30, 2025, approximately $766 million of the letter of credit facilities expire over the next 12 months.

(d) Excludes short-term borrowings under NEECH's bilateral revolving credit facilities of $550 million, which are included in borrowings above.

Guarantees, Letters of Credit, Surety Bonds and Indemnifications (Guarantee Arrangements)

Centain subsidiaries of NEE issue guarantees and obtain letters of credit and surety bonds, as well as provide indemnities, to
facilitate commercial transactions with third parties and financings. Substantially all of the guarantee arrangements are on behalf
of NEE's consolidated subsidiaries, as discussed in more detail below. See Note 5 regarding guarantees of obligations on behalf
of XPLR subsidiaries. NEE is not required to recognize liabilities associated with guarantee arrangements issued on behalf of its
consolidated subsidiaries unless it becomes probable that they will be required to perform. At June 30, 2025, NEE believes that
there is no material exposure related to these guarantee arrangements.

NEE subsidiaries issue guarantees related to equity contribution agreements and engineering, procurement and construction
agreements, associated with the development, construction and financing of certain power generation facilities (see Note 10 —
Structured Payables) and a natural gas pipeline project, as well as a natural gas transportation agreement. Commitments
associated with these activities are included in the contracts table in Note 11.

In addition, at June 30, 2025, NEE subsidiaries had approximately $6.5 billion in guarantees related to obligations under
purchased power and acquisition agreements, nuclear-related activities, payment obligations related to PTCs, support for
NEER's retail electricity provider activities, as well as other types of contractual obligations (see Note 11 — Commitments).

In some instances, subsidiaries of NEE elect to issue guarantees instead of posting other forms of collateral required under
certain financing arrangements, as well as for other project-level cash management activities. At June 30, 2025, these
guarantees totaled approximately $2.0 billion and support, among other things, cash management activities, including those
related to debt service and operations and maintenance service agreements, as well as other specific project financing
requirements.
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Subsidiaries of NEE also issue guarantees to support customer supply and proprietary power and gas trading activities, including
the buying and selling of wholesale energy commodities. At June 30, 2025, the estimated mark-to-market exposure (the total
amount that these subsidiaries of NEE could be required to fund based on energy commodity market prices at June 30, 2025)
plus contract settlement net payables, net of collateral posted for obligations under these guarantees, totaled approximately $1.6
billion.

At June 30, 2025, subsidiaries of NEE also had approximately $5.9 billion of standby letters of credit and approximately $1.6
billion of surety bonds to support certain of the commercial activities discussed above. FPL's and NEECH's credit facilities are
available to support substantially all of the standby letters of credit.

In addition, as part of contract negotiations in the normal course of business, certain subsidiaries of NEE have agreed and in the
future may agree to make payments to compensate or indemnify other parties, including those associated with asset divestitures,
for possible unfavorable financial consequences resulting from specified events. The specified events may include, but are not
limited to, an adverse judgment in a tawsuit, or the imposition of additional taxes due to a change in tax law or interpretations of
the tax law. NEE is unable to estimate the maximum potential amount of future payments by its subsidiaries under some of these
contracts because events that would obligate them to make payments have not occurred or, if any such event has occurred, they
have not been notified of its occurrence.

NEECH, a 100% owned subsidiary of NEE, provides funding for, and holds ownership interests in, NEE's operating subsidiaries
other than FPL. NEE has fully and unconditionally guaranteed certain payment obligations of NEECH, including most of its debt
and all of its debentures registered pursuant to the Securities Act of 1933 and commercial paper issuances, as well as most of its
payment guarantees and indemnifications, and NEECH has guaranteed certain debt and other obligations of subsidiaries within
the NEER segment. Certain guarantee arrangements described above contain requirements for NEECH and FPL to maintain a
specified credit rating.

NEE fully and unconditionally guarantees NEECH debentures pursuant to a guarantee agreement, dated as of June 1, 1999
(1999 guarantee) and NEECH junior subordinated debentures pursuant to an indenture, dated as of September 1, 2006 (2006
guarantee). The 1999 guarantee is an unsecured obligation of NEE and ranks equally and ratably with all other unsecured and
unsubordinated indebtedness of NEE. The 2006 guarantee is unsecured and subordinate and junior in right of payment to NEE
senior indebtedness (as defined therein). No payment on those junior subordinated debentures may be made under the 2006
guarantee until all NEE senior indebtedness has been paid in full in certain circumstances. NEE's and NEECH's ability to meet
their financial obligations are primarily dependent on their subsidiaries’ net income, cash flows and their ability to pay upstream
dividends or to repay funds to NEE and NEECH. The dividend-paying ability of some of the subsidiaries is limited by contractual
restrictions which are contained in outstanding financing agreements.

Summarized financial information of NEE and NEECH is as follows:

Six Months Ended June 30, 2025 Year Ended December 31, 2024
Issuer/ Issuer/
Guarantor NEECH NEE Guarantor EECH NEE
Combined®  Consolidated® Consolidated®  Combined® Consolidated®  Consolidated®
millions
erating Income 0SS $ 190 § 807 $ 4,167 $ 331) § 1254 § 7 479
Net income (loss) attributable
to NEE/NEECH $ (960) $ 280 $ 2,862 $ (12) $ 2405 $ 6,946
June 30, 2025 December 31, 2024
Issuer/ Issuer/
Guarantor NEECH NEE Guarantor NEECH NEE
Combined®  Consolidated® Consolidated®  Combined® Consolidated®  Consolidated®
(millions)
Total noncurrent assets $ 2,586 $ 90,116 $ 186,337 §$ 2625 $ 85583 $ 178,193
Total noncurrent liabilities $ 42,606 $ 67,448 $ 114,851 § 33,793 $ 58,074 $ 103,928
Noncontrolling interests $ — $ 10,086 $ 10,086 $ — 10,359 $ 10,359

{a) Excludes intercompany transactions, and investments in, and equity in earnings of, subsidiaries.
{b) Information has been prepared on the same basis of accounting as NEE's condensed consolidated financial statements.
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Credit risk is also managed through the use of master netting agreements. NEE's credit department monitors current and forward
credit exposure to counterparties and their affiliates, both on an individual and an aggregate basis. For all derivative and
contractual transactions, NEE's energy marketing and trading operations, which include FPL's energy marketing and trading
division, are exposed to losses in the event of nonperformance by counterparties to these transactions. Some relevant
considerations when assessing NEE's energy marketing and trading operations’ credit risk exposure include the following:

e Qperations are primarily concentrated in the energy industry.

+ Trade receivables and other financial instruments are predominately with energy, utility and financial services related
companies, as well as municipalities, cooperatives and other trading companies in the U.S.

«  Overall credit risk is managed through established credit policies and is overseen by the EMC.

* Prospective and existing customers are reviewed for creditworthiness based upon established standards, with customers
not meeting minimum standards providing various credit enhancements or secured payment terms, such as letters of credit
or the posting of margin cash collateral.

- Master netting agreements are used to offset cash and noncash gains and losses arising from derivative instruments with
the same counterparty. NEE's policy is to have master netting agreements in place with significant counterparties.

Based on NEE's policies and risk exposures related to credit, NEE and FPL do not anticipate a material adverse effect on their
financial statements as a result of counterparty nonperformance. At June 30, 2025, NEE's credit risk exposure associated with its
energy marketing and trading operations, taking into account collateral and contractual netting rights, totaled approximately $2.9
billion ($92 million for FPL), of which approximately 92% (99% for FPL) was with companies that have investment grade credit
ratings. See Note 2.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

See Management's Discussion — Energy Marketing and Trading and Market Risk Sensitivity.
Item 4. Controls and Procedures

(a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As of June 30, 2025, each of NEE and FPL had performed an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation
of its management, including NEE's and FPL's chief executive officer and chief financial officer, of the effectiveness of the
design and operation of each company's disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in the Securities Exchange Act of
1934 Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)). Based upon that evaluation, the chief executive officer and the chief financial officer
of each of NEE and FPL concluded that the company's disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of June 30,
2025.

(b) Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

NEE and FPL are continuously seeking to improve the efficiency and effectiveness of their operations and of their internal
controls. This results in refinements to processes throughout NEE and FPL. However, there has been no change in NEE's
or FPL's internal control over financial reporting (as defined in the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f)) that occurred during NEE's and FPL's most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, NEE's or FPL's internal control over financial reporting.
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Exhibit 31(a)

Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification

I, John W, Ketchum, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2025 of NextEra Energy, Inc. (the registrant);

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material
fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made,
not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in
all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the
periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a)

(b)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting
to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report
our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period
covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual
report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control
over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over

financial

reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons

performing the equivalent functions):

(a)

(b)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize
and report financial information; and

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role
in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: July 23, 2025

JOHN W. KETCHUM

John W, Ketchum
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
of NextEra Energy, Inc.







Exhibit 31(c)

Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification

I, Armandao Pimentel, Jr., certify that:

1. | have reviewed this Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2025 of Florida Power & Light Company (the
registrant);

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material
fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made,
not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in
all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the
periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

{b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting
to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;

{c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report
our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period
covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual
report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control
over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize
and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role
in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

Date: July 23, 2025

ARMANDO PIMENTEL, JR.

Armando Pimentel, Jr.
President and Chief Executive Officer
of Florida Power & Light Company




Exhibit 31(d)

Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification

I, Michael H. Dunne, certify that:

1.

5.

Date:

| have reviewed this Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2025 of Florida Power & Light Company (the
registrant);

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material
fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made,
not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in
all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the
periods presented in this report;

The registrant's other certifying officer and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting
to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report
our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period
covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual
report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control
over financial reporting; and

The registrant's other certifying officer and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize
and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role
in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

July 23, 2025

MICHAEL H. DUNNE

Michael H. Dunne
Executive Vice President, Finance
and Chief Financial Officer
of Florida Power & Light Company










Exhibit B

2026 and 2027 Sources and Uses of Funds Forecast and
Construction Budget for Gross Property Additions
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Exhibit C

Statement of Capital Stock and Debt of
Florida Power & Light Company as of June 30, 2025
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